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You're coming up blank. v o e s

but you're coming up blank. Maybe it's because we're not as you remember us. We're not who we
used to be. Oh, we're still a real estate investment trust (REIT) that focuses on the ownership of
upscale commercial and resort hotels. We're still called Boykin Lodging Company. But we've
changed a lot over the years. Please read on to find out how. Learn more about our properties,

our locations, our plans for the future. Onfy then will you come to know who we really are.

Financial Highlights

(dollar amounts <n thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended Year Ended
i December 31, 2004 December 31, 2003
Total revenues $ 220,384 $ 231,555
Net lass attributable to comman shareholders $ (4,911) $ (8177
Net loss attributable to commen shareholders per diluted share $ {0.28) $ (0.47)
Weighted average number of ciluted common shares autstanding 17,553,201 17,469,652
Funds from operations attributable to common shareholders (FFO) S 9,742 S 18275

1.05
Common share dividends declared 3,174
Dividends declared per common share 0.18

5 0.56 S
$ $
$ $
Preferred share dividends declared $ 4,751 § 4,7
$ S
S S
S -

FFO per diluted common share

Dividends declared per preferred share 26.25 26.25
477,380 591,292
227,448 231,541

Totat assets
Total shareholders” equity

Quarterly Market Prices and Common Share
Distribution Information

Price Range Cash Distributions
High Low Declared Per Share
Year Ended December 31, 2004:
First Quarter $9.86 $9.03 $ —
Second Quarter $9.52 $7.00 s —
Third Quarter $ 874 $7.38 S —
Fourth Quarter $9.19 $8.17 $ —
Year Ended December 31, 2003:
First Quarter $9.42 $ 6.65 50.18
Second Quarter $ 8.58 $7.03 $ —
Third Quarter § 8.47 $7.44 $ —

Fourth Quarter $ 9.53 $782 § —




We are positionec
for Success. Metropolitan areas

are where the action is. Hotels in these bigger cities
rebound faster from economic downturns than those
that aren’t. That's why over 25% of our hotel rooms
are in the top 25 metro areas and over 50% are

in the top 50. Another 10% are in Florida beach

resort locations.







More means maore.

Ballrooms. Meeting Rooms. Conference Services. Restaurants. Catering. Spa Services,

We exceed the industry average in revenues contributed by full-service amenities.

We put our money where
OUr MOULH 1S, copinoging s et

double the industry average in value-added hotel improvements.
Since 1998, we have averaged 9.5% and in 2004 we reinvested

13% of revenues back into our properties.




You may not have
known who we are,
but you still know us.

Over 70% of our rooms are franchised under the

family brands of Hilton® and Marriott® Household
names and some of the biggest brands in the world.
Others are with the Radisson® Holiday Inn® Choice®

and Best Western® brands,






Letter to shareholders

We have all had those moments - you see the name, you remember
the company — at least, how it used to be. But we've been
changing, so | invite you to take a fresh look at Boykin Lodging.

It's a lot easier to talk about changing than it is to actually do it,
but our activities speak for themselves. We have been honing our
facus on upscale, full-service properties and increasing the proportion
of our rooms within the two premier franchise companies,
Marriott® and Hilton® We did this by taking advantage of the
“seller’s market” which began in 2004 - and which we expect
will continue in 2005. In 2004, we sold five non-core assets and
used the proceeds to reduce our debt. In 2005 to date, we have
continued this practice, selling our Chicago property, Hotel 71, at
a very attractive price of $95 million.

We'd like to redeploy this capital into new properties in our target
markets — the major metropolitan and beachfront markets ~ and
while we are actively looking, we will be patient and prudent in
selecting the right properties at the right price. We are managing
for the long term, because we know that a high-quality pertfelio
will create the best returns for our shareholders — but in the short-
term, while we are in the process of redeploying capital, the sale
of hotelis is dilutive to our FFO per share.




Meanwhile, the effect of a better portfolio mix is showing up in
our results. We saw RevPAR grow by 8.2% for the 2nd half, year
over year, and 2005 was off to a strong start with a double-digit
increase in January. While most of these gains were achieved
through occupancy growth in 2004, in 2005 we see the pendulum
shifting toward higher room rates — which will enable us to
improve margins.

The condo hotel business has been getting a lot of positive press,
and not everyone realizes we were an early participant in this
sector. We started back in 2002 with our successful sell out of
Sanibel View Villas, and in 2004 completed the White Sand Villas
project, netting a total profit of $12.5 million for the project.

We are in the marketing stages of our latest project, Captiva
Villas, and will begin construction this summer.

property. Real estate values on ocean front property have earned
greater than average rates of appreciation.

Over 70% of our portfolio hotel rooms are franchised under the
leading hotel family brands of Marriott International and Rilton
Hotels Corporation. Our alliances with these two brand families
inspire strong brand recognition among our guests and contribute
to repeat customer activity through their generous loyalty programs
and convenient reservation systems. We are able to combine our
requirements for a superb guest experience with the exacting
brand standards to provide guests with consistent quality in a
continually up-to-date and comfortable environment.

The underlying foundation to attractively located assets and
brand partnerships is our commitment to continually investing in
the care and competitiveness of our properties. Since 1998, Boykin

Recently, we announced that
our Melbourne Quality Suites
hotel will be converted into
the Melbourne Suites Beach
Resort hotel condominium.

Lodging Company has annually
reinvested on average 9.5%
of our annual total revenues
in capital improvements to

The hotel has been closed since
Hurricane Frances struck in early
September. Renovation of the
property will be extensive and
we expect to begin marketing
these units beginning in late

@Robert W. Boykin

Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

our portfolio. Qur fevel of
capital investment more than
exceeds the industry standard
of 4% to 5% of total revenues.
We have also been steadfast
in our preventative mainte-
nance programs for each

spring or early summer. The \

property. Typically these

renovation should be complete
and closings on sales are expected to begin early next year.

We are committed to strategies that produce tangible results.
The composition of our portfolio has changed and increasingly
grown stronger. Within the Boykin portfolio, 25% percent of our
hotel rooms are located in the top 25 Metropolitan Statistical
Areas (MSAs) of the United States. Major metropolitan areas
typically have higher barriers to entry, limiting the amount of
new supply that can enter the market. Additionally large cities,
centers of commerce and cultural activity, typically rebound
faster in times of recovery. Our assets located in the top 25
MSAs had RevPAR growth of 12.8% for the 2nd half of 2004,
leading the portfolio recovery. Furthermore, 50% of Boykin’s
hotel rooms are located in the top 50 MSAs, which lends stabitity
to the performance of the portfolio. Ten percent of the hotel
rooms in Boykin Lodging’s portfolio are located on ocean front

/ dollars are spent in areas
that the guest does not see. We spent significant dollars in 2004
for the maintenance of our properties, and while it negatively
impacted flow-through in the short term, we helieve in the positive
long-term effects of this investment and are confident that it wilf
yield gains in both overall customer satisfaction and long-term
cost savings.

We invite you to take a closer look at us today. Over time, we have
made strategic acquisitions and where prudent, traded on assets
that will allow us to more closely mirror our desired core asset
profile. We have collaborated with our brand partners to maintain
a consistency and desirability from a guest perspective. And finally
we've invested in the continued care and operability of our assets.

So put a face with the name. We may not be the same company
you remember — but we are the one you don’t want to forget.
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Form 10-K and the documents incorporated by reference herein contain statements that constitute forward-
looking statements. Those statements appear in a number of places in this Form 10-K and the documents
incorporated by reference herein and include statements regarding our intent, belief or current expectations or
those of our directors or officers with respect to:

« Leasing, management or performance of the hotels;

Our plans for expansion, conversion or renovation of the hotels;

Adequacy of reserves for renovation and refurbishment;

Our financing plans;

Our continued qualification as a REIT under applicable tax laws;

-

Our policies and activities regarding investments, acquisitions, dispositions, financings, conflicts of interest
and other matters;

National and international economic, political or market conditions; and

Trends affecting us or any hotel’s financial condition or results of operations.

You can identify the forward-looking statements by their use of forward-looking words, such as “believes,”
“expects,” “may,” “will,” “should,” “seeks,” “intends,” “plans,” “estimates,” or “anticipates,” or the negative of
those words or similar words. You are cautioned that any such forward-looking statement is not a guarantec of
future performance and involves risks and uncertainties, and that actual results may differ materially from those
in the forward-looking statement as a result of various factors. The factors that could cause actual results to differ
materially from those expressed in a forward-looking statement include, among other factors, financial
performance, real estate conditions, execution of hotel acquisition or disposition programs, changes in local or
national economic conditions and their impact on the occupancy of our hotels, military action, terrorism,
hurricanes, changes in interest rates, changes in local or national supply and construction of new hotels, changes
in profitability and margins and the financial condition of our operators and lessee and other similar variables,

The information contained in this Form 10-K, in the documents incorporated by reference herein and in Boykin’s
periodic filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission also identifies important factors that could cause
such differences.

With respect to any such forward-looking statement that includes a statement of its underlying assumptions or
bases, we caution that, while we believe such assumptions or bases to be reasonable and have formed them in
good faith, assumed facts or bases almost always vary from actual results, and the differences between assumed
facts or bases and actual results can be material depending on the circumstances. When, in any forward-looking
statement, we Or our management express an expectation or belief as to future results, that expectation or belief is
expressed in good faith and is believed to have a reasonable basis, but there can be no assurance that the stated
expectation or belief will result or be achieved or accomplished.

PARTI
Item 1. Business
(a) General Development of Business
About Boykin Lodging Company

Boykin Lodging Company (“Boykin”), an Ohio corporation, is a real estate investment trust (‘“REIT”) that as of
March 11, 2005 owned interests in 24 hotels located throughout the United States. Boykin was formed and
completed an initial public offering in 1996 (o continue and expand the nearly 40-year history of hotel ownership,
acquisition, redevelopment and repositioning activities of its predecessors, Boykin Management Company and its
affiliates (the “Boykin Group”). Boykin Hotel Properties, L.P., an Ohio limited partnership (the “Partnership”),
is the operating partnership that transacts business and holds the direct and indirect ownership interests in our
hotels. As of December 31, 2004, Boykin had an 85.3% ownership interest in, is the sole general partner of and
conducts all of its business through the Partnership.



Business and Growth Strategy

Our primary business objectives are to maximize current returns to our shareholders by increasing cash flow
available for distribution and long-term total returns to shareholders through appreciation in value of our common
shares. We seek to achieve these objectives through the following key business strategies relating to the ownership
and operation of our hotels:

Maximizing operating cash flows of our hotels through:

+ Aggressive asset management to maximize revenue and control expenses;

« Reinvestment in our hotels; and

» Strategic brand positioning.

Identifying opportunities to enhance returns on our hotels by investing in new initiatives such as:

» Developing ancillary conference centers meeting International Association of Conference Centers
(“IACC”) standards within certain of our existing hotels and in newly acquired properties; and

« Expanding and redeveloping our properties to improve asset performance.

Managing our hotel portfolio mix to enhance its potential for growth in RevPAR, meaning room revenue
per available room, and operating income by:

» Identifying key markets with high barriers to entry for future acquisitions;
+ Acquiring upscale commercial and resort hotels located in these key markets;
+ Acquiring assets with repositioning and rebranding opportunities; and

« Selling assets that we believe have lower long-term growth prospects because of their physical
characteristics or market location.

Our management has substantial hotel operating, development, acquisition and transactional experience. Our
executives have over 100 years of combined experience in the hotel industry and have directly overseen the
acquisition, disposition, recapitalization, development and repositioning of billions of dollars of hotel assets
throughout the United States.

Highlights from 2004 and Recent Developments

We sold or otherwise divested of five hotels during 2004, generating gross proceeds of $86.4 million. These
hotels included the Doubletree Portland Downtown, Marriott’s Hunt Valley Inn, the Holiday Inn
Minneapolis West, the Radisson Hotel Mount Laurel and the Ramada Inn Bellevue Center.

In late March 2004, we held the grand opening of the White Sand Villas hotel condominium tower at our
Pink Shell Beach Resort & Spa (the “Pink Shell”). The sales of all 91 available units were closed by
April. The profit realized from this development project was approximately $12.5 million. Additionally, all
unit owners have entered into agreements with the resort to put their units back to the resort for use as
hotel rooms.

Our next condominium hotel project is currently being marketed for sale. This project, Captiva Villas, is
the final component to the redevelopment of the Pink Shell. It will contain 43 beach-front units. Similar to
White Sand Villas, the units in the new building will be sold as condominiums, with the anticipation that
the owners will put their unused room nights back to the resort by contract. Zoning for the new building
has been approved. Buildings previously located on the site were demolished in February 2005 and
construction of the new building is set to commence once a sufficient level of pre-sales have been achieved.

In April 2004, we completed our third ancillary conference center project, located at our Doubletree
Portland Lloyd Center hotel. The physical characteristics and the service standards within the facility were
designed to meet criteria established by IACC. Upon completion of the project, the facilities were
inspected by, and awarded membership to, IACC.

In July 2004, the Indiana Gaming Commission (the “Commission”) selected Trump Hotels & Casino
Resorts (“Trump”) to develop and operate a casino in French Lick, Indiana. In March 2003, the
Commission announced that they would seek a replacement for the Trump group which is attempting to
reorganize in bankruptcy court. The Commission has indicated that they intend to move quickly to
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reinstitute a selection process for a new operator, The other two final applicants to develop and operate the
casino have each expressed their intent to make new proposals. The process to choose a new operator could
take several months. Once a new operator is chosen, the development and opening of a casino remains
subject to many items, including the operator’s ability to raise financing to fund construction of a casino.

Five of our hotels were impacted by hurricanes in Florida in August and September. Two hotels, the Best
Western Fort Myers Island Gateway Hotel and the Radisson Suite Beach Resort - Marco [sland, were
evacuated for several days, suffered minimal damage and were reopened. The Pink Shell was evacuated for
approximately one week, The hurricane damaged the 43 units in the Useppa and Captiva buildings, which
were subsequently demolished to make way for the new Captiva Villas building, while the remainder of the
resort reopened. At the beginning of September, Hurricane Frances hit the east coast of Florida, where the
Melbourne Hilton Oceanfront and the Metbourne Quality Suites are located. Both hotels were evacuated
prior to the storm and both hotels remain closed due to the damage from the storm. The hotels in
Melbourne are not expected to resume pormal operations until late 2005 or early 2006, subject to the
availability of labor and materials. We expect that a substantial portion of the costs to repair the properties
will be covered under our insurance policies. Additionally, we also maintain business interruption insurance
to partially offset the effects of the closure on our operating results.

-

Boykin Chicage, L.L.C., a joint venture between AEW Partners 111, L.P., and us, has entered into an
agreement to sell Hotel 71 in Chicago, Illinois. The completion of the sale, which is subject to customary
closing conditions, is expected to occur during the first quarter of 2005.

(b) Financial Information About Industry Segments

All of Boykin Lodging Company’s operations are in the hotel industry.

(¢) Narrative Description of Business
Boykin Lodging Company’s Hotel Portfolio

As of March 11, 2005, our hotel portfolio included 23 full-service and one limited-service hotel, all of which
compete in the upscale to moderate price segment of the hospitality market. All but one of our properties are
operated by taxable REIT subsidiaries of Boykin. Refer to Item 2(a) “Hotel Properties” for a current listing of
our hotels. Also refer to Item 7 “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations™ for discussion surrounding the results of the hotels” operations.

Application of Business Strategies

Maximizing Operating Cash Flow

Aggressive Asset Management

We closely monitor revenue generation, including rates, group pacing and yield management, and recommend
improvements to managers’ initiatives to improve hotel performance. We also utilize Smith Travel Research
reports to evaluate the performance of each of our hotels relative to their competitive set (the hotels in their
market that compete for the same business). We work closely with the respective management companies to
manage and improve cost control initiatives.

Reinvestment in Hotel Properties

We believe that our regular program of capital improvements at our hotels, including replacement and
refurbishment of furniture, fixtures, and equipment, helps maintain and enhance their competitiveness and
maximizes their profitability. Consistent with this strategy, we have made significant renovations at several of our
hotels in recent years. In 2004, 2003 and 2002 we spent $30.8 million, $25.8 million and $13.5 million,
respectively, on renovations, excluding the redevelopment of our Pink Shell Beach Resort & Spa and projects at
the Chicago, llinois and Lyndhurst, New Jersey hotels which are owned by unconsolidated joint ventures. This
represented 13%, 11% and 5% of 2004, 2003 and 2002 consolidated hotel revenues, respectively.
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Strategic Brand Positioning

We maximize our market share and revenue by taking advantage of our sales and marketing orientation to
identify the most effective branding strategy for each hotel and to further leverage the selected brands with
effective direct sales strategies. Factors we consider in determining the most effective branding strategy are:

 Brand strengths and their current presence in the specific market;

» Expected contribution to revenues;

« Expected capital requirements and ongoing costs of the franchise; and
» Strengthening strategic franchisor relationships.

Our portfolio contains properties that are currently operated under franchise license agreements with premier
nationally-recognized hotel chains including, but not limited to, Doubletree®, Marriott®, Radisson®, Hilton®,
Embassy Suites®, Holiday Inn®, Hampton Inn® and Quality Suites®. In certain circumstances, we have
concluded that operating a hotel independent of a franchise affiliation is the best branding strategy. Such is the
case with the French Lick Springs Resort and Spa in French Lick, Indiana, Hotel 71 in Chicago, Illinois, and our
Pink Shell Beach Resort & Spa in Ft. Myers Beach, Florida.

Initiatives to Enhance Returns on Hotels
IACC Ancillary Conference Centers

We identified a strategic opportunity to enhance revenues from certain of our hotels by developing ancillary
conference centers meeting IACC standards within those hotels. Each conference center is a business unit inside
an existing full-service hotel, designed to complement the existing transient and group business.

The conference center strategy is attractive to us because it creates demand for our guest and meeting rooms
from a new client base, those who prefer to hold meetings at conference centers that meet IACC standards or
who otherwise need the types of services provided at JACC conference centers. IACC requires facilities to meet
certain technical standards regarding technology, telecommunications, lighting, sound transmission and other
items, which standards appeal particularly to corporate and institutional training programs. Further, the
conference center services and pricing are designed on a complete meeting package basis, meaning that the users
pay a fixed daily price per person on an all-inclusive basis (rooms, meals, breaks, telephone services, etc.),
regardless of utilization, thus making the cost of the services predictable for the planner and the hotel.

The benefit of this pricing structure to us is that we anticipate a higher RevPOR, meaning revenue per occupied
room, because these guests purchase meals and other services at the hotel as a part of their packages.
Additionally, we expect higher operating margins from this business because predictable utilization of these
services results in the achievement of greater operational efficiency.

We currently have such centers at our Berkeley, Omaha and Portland properties.

Property Redevelopment and Expansion

We have undertaken a series of projects at our Pink Shell Beach Resort & Spa in Ft. Myers Beach, Florida to
elevate this resort’s position to a four-star level and to take advantage of the opportunity to sell portions of the
property while retaining long term cash flow. In 2001, we completed a $2.7 million renovation of the Sanibel
View Villas, a 60-unit tower, which we sold as condominium units. The units were sold and all of the owners put
their unused room nights back to the resort by contract for use as a hotel room. Therefore, in addition to the cash
flow generated from selling the units, we receive continuing income from the units placed in the rental program.
During 2002, we demolished and removed cottages to commence construction of a new 92-unit tower, the White
Sand Villas. The units within the new tower were also being sold as condominium units with the prospect that the
owners would put their unit back to us for use as hotel rooms. The tower opened in March 2004, and similar to
Sanibel View, all buyers signed agreements to allow us to use their units as hotel rooms. The final stage of the
redevelopment of the property, the Captiva Villas, is currently in the marketing phase. Two low-rise buildings at
the property were demolished during the first quarter of 2005 and are expected to be replaced with a new 43-unit
tower called Captiva Villas. Again, the new building will be sold as condominium units with the expectation that
the unit owners will put their unused room nights back to the resort for use as hotel rooms.

We are actively exploring the option of converting the Melbourne Quality Suites to a condominium hotel. We are
currently in the process of preparing condominium documents and the prospectus and anticipate marketing the
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units beginning in mid-2005. The conversion would he contingent upon the pre-sale of a minimum number of
units. Additionally, we may convert other hotels which we own in Florida into condominium hotels.

Managing Our Hotel Portfolio Mix
Acquiring Upscale Commercial and Resort Hotels in Kev Markets

Our acquisition criteria focuses on hotels in the upper upscale and upscale segments located in major
metropaolitan markets and destination beach markets. These markets have historically outperformed other markets
because of their high barriers to entry and diversified demand generators. Our current targets include Boston,
New York, Washington, D.C. as well as selected beachfront and other resort markets. Qur success in
implementing this strategy is illustrated by our most recent acquisition, the Radisson Suite Beach Resort on
Marco Island, Florida. Prior to Marco Island, our other recent acquisitions included the Meadowlands-Lyndhurst
Courtyard by Marriott in the New York City metropolitan area. We continue to identify and evaluate potential
acquisition candidates.

Funds for future acquisitions or development of hotels are expected 1o be derived, in whole or in part, from the
proceeds of the sale of non-strategic hotels, from capital obtained from borrowings, from additional issuances of
common shares, preferred shares, or other securities, from potential joint venture partners and from cash flows
from operations.

Disposing of Assets to Provide Capital for Better Investment Opportunities

We have been selling assets that we believe have lower long-term growth prospects because of physical
characteristics or market location. In 2004 we divested five hotels not located within our target markets for total
gross proceeds of $86.4 million. Those properties included the Doubletree Portland Downtown, Marriott’s Hunt
Valley Inn, the Holiday Inn Minneapolis West, the Radisson Hotel Mount Laurel and the Ramada Tnn Bellevue
Center.

We intend to maintain a geographically diversified hotel portfolio and may alse cluster hotels within certain
primary markets in order to take advantage of operational and managerial economies of scale. We will acquire or
develop additional hotel properties only as suitable opportunities arise, and will not undertake acquisition or
development of properties unless adequate sources of capital and financing are available.

Hotel Managers

In selecting operators, we seek hotel managers with demonstrated full-service hotel expertise, a stable operating
and financial performance history and an excellent reputation in the hospitality industry.

As of March 11, 2005, the hotels in our portfolio were managed by the following entities:

Number

Manager of Hotels
Boykin Management Company Limited Liability Company (“BMC”)..................... 21
Concord Hospitality Enterprises (“Concord”) ... ... i 1
Chambers GroUD ..ot i e e e 1
Outrigger Lodging Services (“Outrigger’™) ... .. i 1
24

BMC. Robert W. Boykin {our Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer) and his brother, John E.
Boykin, control BMC. BMC has continued the over 40-vear hotel operation and management business of the
Boykin Group. The Boykin Group has capabilities in all phases of development and management of hotel and
resort properties. BMC currently manages 29 hotel properties located throughout the United States, including 21
hotels owned by us. BMC’s subsidiaries include an award-winning hotel interior design business and a hotel and
restaurant food, beverage, supply and equipment purchasing business.

BMC and its owners, who have a subslantial interest in the Partnership, have interests that conflict with our
interests in connection with the structuring and enforcement of the management agreements and other
agreements between us and BMC and in connection with activities that may maximize profits for BMC without
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necessarily benefiting us. The following factors align the interests of BMC and its owners with our interests to
address these conflicts of interest:

+ BMC’s owners have retained their equity interests in the Partnership;

« QOur corporate charter documents require that our independent directors shall make all determinations to be
made on behalf of Boykin Lodging Company with respect to the relationships or opportunities that
represent a conflict of interest for any officer or director of Boykin Lodging Company;

+ Any affiliate of the Boykin Group, including Robert W. Boykin and John E. Boykin, will conduct all hotel
acquisition, development and ownership activities only through Boykin Lodging Company, other than the
acquisition through inheritance of the Miami Hampton Inn by Robert W. Boykin and John E. Boykin, for
which the initial development by William J. Boykin, their father, was approved by our Board of Directors;

» BMC is entitled to receive incentive management fees with respect to certain hotels it manages for us if
the hotel operating performance exceeds benchmarks set forth in the terms of each management
agreement;

+ A portion of BMC’s corporate-level senior executive team’s compensation is based upon the performance of
our hotels; and

+« BMC has a deferred compensation plan for its corporate-level senior executives under which the value of
each award is based on, and fluctuates with, the value of our common shares.

Concord.  Concord is a privately owned hotel investment and management company based in Raleigh, North
Carolina. Concord was formed to acquire, develop and manage both full and limited-service hotel properties.

Concord owns and operates hotels under franchise agreements with such franchisors as Marriott®, Radisson®,
Hilton®, Residence Inn® and Hampton Inn®.

Chambers Group. Chambers Group is a privately held regional hotel management company based in Seattle,
Washington. The Company provides consulting services to the hospitality industry in all aspects of development,
financial analysis, and operations. Chambers Group has operated a variety of mid-market hotels in the
Northwestern United States.

Outrigger. Outrigger is a privately held hotel management company based in Encino, California. Outrigger has
operated or currently operates a full range of hotel products, including Marriott®, Sheraton®, Hilton®, Residence
Inn®, Holiday Inn®, Radisson®, and many limited service products. In addition to branded hotels, Outrigger
operates upscale boutique hotels.

Terms of the Management Agreements

BMC manages 21 of the 24 hotels that we currently have an ownership interest in. The following is a summary of
the material terms of the BMC management agreements (the “Management Agreements”) and is qualified in its
entirety by reference to the Form of Management Agreement, which was filed as an exhibit to our Current
Report on Form 8-K, filed on January 14, 2002.

The Management Agreements have the material terms described below:

» Duration/Termination. As of December 31, 2004, the Management Agreements have remaining terms
ranging from one to eight years. We have the right to terminate 19 of the BMC agreements upon 90 days
advance written notice without having to pay any damages or a termination fee or penalty.

» Management Fees. Most of the Management Agreements provide for base and incentive management fees.
The Management Agreements have base fees which range from 1.5% to 3% of total revenues. All of the
Management Agreements have incentive management fees payable to BMC based upon the applicable
hotel reaching specified financial performance standards.

« Operating and Other Expenses. All of the Management Agreements provide that we are responsible for all
operating expenses associated with the hotels. In addition, we are responsible to either pay directly or
reimburse the operator for all other expenses relating to the hotel including, without limitation, real estate
taxes, insurance premiums and debt service.

o Indemnification. All of the Management Agreements provide that we will hold the operator harmliess
from and against all liabilities, losses, claims, damages, costs and expenses that arise from or in connection
with (a) the performance of the operator’s services under the agreement, (b) any act or omission (whether
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or not willful, tortious, or negligent) of us or any third party, or {(c) any other occurrence related 1o the
hotel, except for events that result from (i) the fraud, willful misconduct or gross negligence of the
operator or (ii) the breach by the operator of any provision of the agreement.

» Evenis of Default. Events of default include (a) failure to make any payment required by the agreement,
(b) failure to observe or perform any term or provision after 30 days’ notice to cure, and (c) failure of
either party to perform in accordance with an applicable franchise agreement.

Joint Ventures with Third Party Hotel Operators

We have formed joint ventures with third party operators to align the hotel operator’s economic interests with our
economic interests. In one of these joint ventures, the joint venture partner’s right to receive cash flow and equity
capital distributions is subordinated to our receipt of specified minimum distributions. In one of the joint ventures,
the operator leases the hotel from the joint venture and must maintain a specified net worth to support its lease
payment obligations and has pledged its joint venture interest as security for the lease payment obligations. We
are permitted to subject any majority-owned joint venture’s hotel to a mortgage or to sell the hotel or its interest
in the joint venture without obtaining the affected joint venture partner’s consent.

As of December 31, 2004, we had joint ventures formed with the following companies or their affiliates who
operated and/or leased the following hotels:

Boykin Ownership  JV Ownership

Name of Joint Venture JV Partner Percentage Percentage Hotel Owned Under Joint Venture

Boykin San Diego, LL.C.. Outrigger(a) 91% 9% Hampton 'Inn San Diego Airport/
Sea World

BoyCon, LL.C .......... Concord 50% 50% Meadowlands-Lyndhurst

Courtyard by Marriott

(a) Qutrigger leases the property {rom the joint venture.

Risk Factors

If any of the following risks occur, our business, financial condition, operating results and cash flows could be
materially adversely affected. Additional risks and uncertainties not discussed herein may also impair our
operations.

Risks Related to the Hotel Industry

Public reaction to acts of terrorism or military action could affect our cash flow. We are subject to disruptions in
the lodging industry that would likely result from terrorist attacks (actual or threatened) or military action
affecting the United States. The uncertainty that would result from these events would likely increase the public's
reluctance to travel, which could adversely affect our operations.

Competition, economic conditions and similar factors affecting us and the hotel industry generally could affect our
performance. Our hotels are subject to all operating risks common to the hotel industry. These risks include:

Competition for guests from other hotels based upon brand affiliations, room rates offered including those
via internet wholesalers and distributors, customer service, location and the condition and upkeep of each
hotel in general and in relation to other hotels in their local market;

Adverse effects of general and local economic conditions;

Dependence on demand from business and leisure travelers, which may fluctuate and be seasonal;

Increases in energy costs, airline fares, and other expenses related to travel, which may deter travel;

Impact of financial difficulties of the airline industry and potential reduction in service on the demand for
our hotel rooms and the collectibility of our outstanding receivables from the airlines;

Increases in operating costs attributable to inflation and other factors; and

Overbuilding in the hotel industry, especially in individual markets.

The need to make unexpected capital expenditures could adversely affect our cash flow. Hotels require ongoing
renovations and other capital improvements, including periedic replacement or refurbishment of furniture, fixtures
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and equipment. If necessary capital expenditures exceed expectations, there can be no assurance that sufficient
sources of financing will be available to fund such expenditures. We may also acquire hotels in the future that
require significant renovation,

Hotel investments are generally illiquid, and we may not be able to sell our hotels when it is economically
advantageous to do so. Hotel investments generally cannot be sold quickly. We may not be able to vary our
portfolio promptly in accordance with our strategies or in response to economic or other conditions. In addition,
provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, limit a REIT’s ability to sell its properties in some
situations when it may be economically advantageous to do so.

Risks Related to Our Operations

The profitability of our hotels depends on the performance of the hotel management companies. The profitability
of our hotels depends largely upon the ability of the management companies to generate revenues at our hotels in
excess of their operating expenses. The failure of the management companies to manage the hotels effectively
would adversely affect our cash flow received from hotel operations. Before January 1, 2002, our cash flow
consisted primarily of lease payments from lessees. Our lessees were legally bound to make minimum lease
payments even when such payments exceeded the cash flow from the hotel. Since implementing our taxable
REIT subsidiary (“TRS”) structure on January 1, 2002, the responsibility and risks associated with making the
minimum lease payments has shifted to lessees owned by the Partnership. Therefore, we have effectively assumed
the risks associated with operating shortfalls at our hotels operating under the TRS structure.

Our performance is dependent upon the performance of BMC. BMC currently manages 21 of our hotels. We are
therefore dependent to a large degree on the operating performance of BMC. Changes in management at these
hotels or at other hotels in the future could result in temporary service disruptions at the affected hotels, which
could in turn affect their operating and financial performance.

We are subject to conflicts of interest involving our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. Our Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer, Robert W. Boykin, and his brother, John E. Boykin, own BMC and therefore derive
benefits from BMC’s management of 21 of our hotels. Accordingly, Mr. Boykin has and will continue to have
conflicts of interest with us. He had conflicts of interest in connection with our January 2002 TRS transaction and
in connection with the structuring of the management agreements for the hotels currently managed by BMC. He
will have similar conflicts on renewal of those agreements and in connection with future management agreements
and other transactions that we may enter into with BMC. Conflicts of interest may also arise in connection with
BMC’s management of our hotels. Under certain circumstances, actions taken and decisions made by BMC to
maximize its profits will not necessarily benefit us. Additionally, a subsidiary of BMC provides design services to
us for a fee and also receives a portion of the fees we pay to an independent purchasing agent. Mr. Boykin may
have conflicts of interest with respect to our procurement of design services and capital goods. Additionally, the
sale of certain of our hotels may result in different and more adverse tax consequences to Mr. Boykin than would
be experienced by Boykin and our public shareholders, and he could seek to influence us not to sell a hotel even
though that sale might otherwise be financially advantageous to us and our public shareholders. Our articles of
incorporation provide that our independent directors are to make all determinations to be made on our behalf
with respect to the relationships or opportunities that represent a conflict of interest for any of our officers or
directors.

The covenants in our credit agreements may restrict our range of operating activities, and we are subject to
refinancing risks. We have a senior secured credit facility that enables us to borrow up to $60.0 million based
upon borrowing base availability and term loans with original balances of $130.0 million and $108.0 million,
respectively, each of which is secured by certain of our hotel properties. Our secured credit facility requires us,
among other things, to maintain a minimum net worth, a coverage ratio of EBITDA to debt service, a coverage
ratio of EBITDA to debt service and fixed charges, and a maximum leverage ratio, and places limitations on our
common share distributions and acquisitions. There is no assurance that we will be able to continue to meet the
financial covenants of the secured credit facility. In addition, our secured loans limit our ability to sell certain
hotel properties. These credit arrangements may limit our ability to sell certain hotels whose disposition might be
desirable for strategic or financial purposes. The initial term of the $108.0 million term loan expired in July 2003;
however, management utilized both of the two one-year extension options available under the terms of the
agreement, therefore the current maturity date is July 2005.

There can be no assurance that we will be able to renew our credit arrangements upon maturity on favorable
terms or at all. Further, if we are unable to make payments on or to refinance indebtedness secured by our
properties, the properties could be foreclosed upon with a consequent loss to us of income and asset value.
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A portion of our borrowings bear interest at a variable rate, as may other indebtedness we incur in the future.
Accordingly, increases in market interest rates could increase our debt service requirements, which could
adversely affect our cash flow,

We are subject to risks associated with development, redevelopment and acquisitions of hotels. New and
continued development projects and hotel acquisitions are subject to a number of risks, including:

» the availability of acceptable financing;

« competition with other entities for investment opportunities;

acquired properties’ failure to achieve anticipated operating results;

construction costs of a property exceeding original estimates;

delays in construction and renovation projects;

overruns with respect to the cost of improvements to bring acquired properties to the requisite standards;
and

the expenditure of funds on, and the devotion of management time to, transactions that may not come to
fruition.

We are subject to the risks associated with investments through joint ventures. One of our consolidated hotels is
owned by 4 joint venture in which we have a controlling interest. We may enter into similar joint ventures in the
future. Any joint venture investment involves risks such as the possibility that the co-venturer may seek relief
under federal or state insolvency laws, or have economic or business interests or goals that are inconsistent with
our business interests or goals. While the bankruptey or insolvency of our co-venturer generally should not disrupt
the operations of the joint venture, we could be forced to purchase the co-venturer’s interest in the joint venture
or the interest could be sold to a third party. Additionally, we have joint ventures in which we have non-
controlling interests and we may enter into similar joint ventures in the future. If we do not have control over a
joint venture, the value of our investment may be affected adversely by a third party that may have different goals
and capabilities than ours. It may also be difficult for us to exit a joint venture that we do not control after an
impasse. In addition, a joint venture partner may be unable to meet its economic or other obligations and we may
be required to or find it necessary to fulfill those obligations.

Obligations imposed by our franchise agreements could affect us adversely. Most of our hotels are subject to
franchise or license agreements. The continuation of a franchise or license agreement is generally subject to
specified operating standards. Action or inaction on our part or by any of our hotel managers could result in our
failure to meet those standards, which could resull in the loss of the franchise. A franchisor also could condition
the continuation of a franchise on the completion of capital improvements that we determine are too expensive or
otherwise unwarranted in light of general economic conditions or the operating results or prospects of the affected
hotel. In that event, we may elect to allow the franchise agreement to lapse. In any case, the loss of a franchise
agreement could have a material adverse effect upon the operations or the underlying value of the hotel covered
by the agreement because of the loss of associated name recognition, marketing support and centralized
reservation systems provided by the franchisor, or because of penalties payable upon early termination of the
agreement. Additionally, the franchise agreements may place restrictions on the transfer or sale of assets or make
such transfers or sales economically infeasible.

Our insurance may not be adequate to cover certain risks. We continue to carry comprehensive liability, fire,
flood, earthquake, terrorism and business interruption policies that insure us against losses within policy
specification and insurance limits that we believe are reasonable. There are certain types of risks, generally of a
catastrophic nature, that may be uninsurable or are not economically insurable or certain coverages that we
currently carry may become uneconomical or unavailable in the future. Should an uninsured loss or a loss in
excess of insured limits occur, we could lose our investment in the affected hotel as well as the anticipated future
cash flow from that hotel, while remaining obligated for any mortgage indebtedness or other financial obligations
related to that hotel.

The costs of complying with laws and regulations could adversely affect our cash flow. Our hotels must comply
with Title III of the Americans with Disabilities Act (the “ADA”) to the extent that they are “public
accommodations” or “commercial facilities” as defined in the ADA. Noncompliance with the ADA could result
in the imposition of fines or an award of damages to private litigants. If changes in these laws involve substantial
expenditures or must be made on an accelerated basis, our cash flow could be adversely affected.
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Under various federal, state and local laws, an owner or operator of real estate may be liable for the costs of
removal or remediation of certain hazardous or toxic substances on, under, or in the property. This liability may
be imposed without regard to whether the owner or operator knew of, or was responsible for, the presence of the
substances. Other laws impose on owners and operators certain requirements regarding conditions and activities
that may affect human health or the environment. Failure to comply with applicable requirements could
complicate our ability to operate or sell an affected property and could subject us to monetary penalties, costs
required to achieve compliance and potential liability to third parties. We may be potentially liable for such costs
or claims in connection with the ownership and operation of our current hotels and hotels we may acquire in the
future. We have not been notified by any governmental authority of, nor are we aware of, any material
noncompliance, liability or claim relating to hazardous or toxic substances or other environmental matters in
connection with any of our hotels. Nonetheless, it is possible that material environmental contamination or
conditions exist, or could arise in the future, in the hotels or on the land upon which they are located.

We have and will continue to incur additional costs for systems, staffing and third party services in maintaining
compliance with federal laws and regulations addressing corporate governance issues, including the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002, and with the listing requirements of the New York Stock Exchange.

We bear the risk factors common to real estate development as a result of our projects at the Pink Shell Beach
Resort & Spa. Common risk factors related to development include, but are not limited to competition from other
condominium projects, construction delays due to weather, reliance on contractors and subcontractors,
construction cost overruns, the ability of condominium purchasers to secure financing and completion of the
development in accordance with our agreements.

Employees

As of March 11, 2005, we had 18 employees. These employees perform, directly or through the Partnership,
various acquisition, development, redevelopment and corporate management functions. All persons employed in
the daily operations of the hotels are employees of the management companies that the lessees have contracted
with to operate the hotels.

Executive Officers of the Registrant

Our executive officers are elected and serve at the discretion of the Board of Directors until their successors are
duly chosen and qualified, and are as follows:

Name A_gf Position

Robert W. Boykin............. 55  Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

Richard C. Conti.............. 54  President and Chief Operating Officer

Shereen P. Jones.............. 43 Executive Vice President, Chief Financial and Investment
Officer

Russ C. Valentine ............. 59  Senior Vice President, Acquisitions

Andrew C. Alexander.......... 41  Senior Vice President and General Counsel

The following is a biographical summary of the business experience of our executive officers.

Robert W. Boykin has served as our Chief Executive Officer since our formation. He served as the President and
Chief Executive Officer of Boykin Management Company from 1985 until November 1996. He served as Boykin
Management Company’s Executive Vice President from 1981 until 1985,

Richard C. Conti has served as our Chief Operating Officer since May 1998. In January 2001, Mr. Conti was
promoted to President and Chief Operating Officer. Prior to joining us, Mr. Conti was a Principal and Director
with Coopers & Lybrand L.L.P. Mr. Conti was responsible for Coopers & Lybrand L.L.P.’s hospitality consulting
practice in the Midwest and has been involved in the hospitality industry for over 25 years. Mr. Conti has worked
closely with many of the leaders in the industry and brings significant industry knowledge and contacts.

Shereen P. Jones has served as our Executive Vice President, Chief Financial and Investment Officer since
February 2002. She also serves as our Treasurer. Prior to joining Boykin, she was with Credit Suisse First Boston
in New York where she was Director and Global Head of Hospitality Investment Banking, spearheading the
development of its lodging investment banking practice. Previously, she spent seven years with Lehman Brothers,
serving most recently as Senior Vice President and head of its Real Estate, Lodging and Gaming Mergers &
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Acquisitions practice. Prior to joining Lehman, she was Vice President, Corporate Finance, for Oppenheimer &
Co. and Kidder, Peabody & Co.

Russ C. Valentine joined us in June 1999 as our Senior Vice President, Acquisitions. Prior to joining us,

Mr. Valentine served as Senior Vice President of Acquisitions for American General Hospitality, a real estate
investment trust that was based in Dallas, Texas. Mr. Valentine played a significant role in American General’s
successful acquisition program from 1990 to 1998. For over 25 years, Mr. Valentine has worked for major
consulting, investment banking, and hotel organizations.

Andrew C. Alexander became our Vice President-Corporate Counsel in July 1997 and was promoted to Senior
Vice President and General Counsel in June 1999. From July 1995 until July 1997, Mr. Alexander served as Vice
President-Corporate Counsel of Renaissance Hotel Group, N.V., a publicly traded hotel company. From
Septemnber 1989 until July 1995, Mr. Alexander was an attorney at the law firm of Calfee, Halter & Griswold,
LLP.

There are no arrangements or understandings known to us between any exccutive officer and any other person
pursuant to which any executive officer was elected to office. There is no family relationship between any of our
directors or executive officers and any other director or executive officer.

Corporate Governance

We believe that the composition, structure and performance of our Board of Directors provide us a strong
corporate governance function and the partnership interest and share ownership of our officers and directors serve
to align the interests of our management with our shareholders’ interests. In addition, the terms of our
arrangements with BMC serve to minimize conflicts of interest and to align the interests of BMC with the
interests of Boykin and its shareholders.

Our articles of incorporation and corporate governance guidelines require that a majority of our directors be
independent. Under the New York Stock Exchange’s listing standards, a majority of our Board qualifies as
independent. Our articles of incorporation also require that any determination to be made by our Board in
connection with any matter presenting a conflict of interest for any officer of Boykin, or for any Boykin director
who is not an independent director, be made by our independent directors.

We have made available on our website at www,boykinlodging.com copies of the charters of the audit,
compensation and corporate governance and nominating committees of the Board of Directors, our code of ethics
and our corporate governance guidelines. Copies of these documents are available in print to any shareholder who
requests them. Requests should be sent to Boykin Lodging Company, Guildhall Building, Suite 1500, 45 W.
Prospect Avenue, Cleveland, Ohio, 44115, Attn: Investor Relations.

(d) Financial Information About Foreign and Domestic Operations and Export Sales

All of our operations are conducted in the United States.

(e) Available Information

We maintain a website at www.boykinlodging.com. We make available free of charge on our website our filings
with the Securities and Exchange Commission, including our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on
Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, as soon as reasonably
practicable after we electrenically file such material with the Securities and Exchange Commission.




Item 2. Properties

(a) Hotel Properties

As of March 11, 2005, we own interests in the following 24 hotel properties:

Number
Pro__[ig_rty of Rooms Location
Doubletree Portland, Lloyd Center. ............................. 476 Portland, OR
Doubletree Sacramento ...ttt 448 Sacramento, CA
Doubletree Omaha Downtown ................ ... ... ..., 414 Omaha, NE
Doubletree Kansas City .. ..., 388 Kansas City, MO
Doubletree Hotel & Executive Meeting Center — Berkeley Marina . . . 369 Berkeley, CA
Doubletree Boise Riverside .. ..., 304 Baise, ID
Doubletree Colorado Springs........ ..., 299 Colorado Springs, CO
Doubletree San AntOnio. . ......o.v i 290 San Antonio, TX
Cleveland Adrport Marriott .......... .o i 375 Cleveland, OH
Buffalo Marriott . ... 356 Buffalo, NY
Columbus North Marrott . ... . i 300 Columbus, OH
Meadowlands-Lyndhurst Courtyard by Marriott................... 227 Lyndhurst, NJ
High Point Radisson......... . ... i, 251 High Point, NC
Radisson Suite Beach Resort - Marco Island ..................... 233 Marco Island, FL
Holiday Inn Crabtree . ............. o i 176 Raleigh, NC
Embassy Suites Southfield. ....... ... . .. .. ... o L 239 Southfield, MI
Hampton Inn San Diego Airport/Sea World ..................... 199 San Diego, CA
Melbourne Hilton Oceanfront............ ... ... ... ... ... .. ... 118 Melbourne, FL
Clarion Hotel & Conference Center..............coviivien.... 208 Yakima, WA
Melbourne Quality Suites ........... ... i 208 Melbourne, FL
French Lick Springs Resortand Spa ............ ... . ... .. .... 485 French Lick, IN
Hotel 71 . . 454 Chicago, IL
Pink Shell Beach Resort & Spa ................. ..o iiiiia.. 192 Fort Myers, FL
Best Western Fort Myers Island Gateway Hotel .................. 157 Fort Myers, FL

7,166

(b) Office Space
Pursuant to a shared services and office space agreement, we were reimbursed approximately $12,100 per month

in 2004 from BMC and its subsidiaries for the right to use certain office space located in Cleveland, Ohio and
receive certain related services.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings
We are subject to various legal proceedings and claims that arise in the ordinary course of business. In our

opinion, the amount of any ultimate liability with respect to these actions will not materially affect our financial
statements.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

There were no matters submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year covered
by this Annual Report on Form 10-K.




PART I

Ttem 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Shareholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities

(a) Market Information
Our common shares are traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “BOY.” The following table

sets forth for the indicated periods the high and low sales prices for the common shares and the cash distributions
declared per share:

Price Range Cash Distributions
High Low Declared Per Share

Year Ended December 31, 2003:

First QUArter . . ..ottt s $9.42  $6.65 $.18
Second QUArtET . ... ... e $8.58  §7.03 —
Third Quarter . ... i e $8.47  $7.44 —
Fourth Quarter . ......... it e $9.53  87.82 —
Year Ended December 31, 2004:
First Quarter .. .......ooviirenian e $9.86  $9.03 —
Second QUATter. .. ..ot e $9.52  $7.00 —_
Third QUarter ... ... e e $8.74  $7.38 —
Fourth Quarter ....... ... . i $9.19  $8.17 —

(b) Shareholder Information

As of March 2, 2005, there were 866 record holders of our common shares, including shares held in “street
name” by nominees who are record holders, and approximately 8,200 beneficial owners.

In order to comply with certain requirements related to our qualification as a REIT, our charter limits the
number of common shares that may be owned by any single person or affiliated group to 9% of the outstanding
commen shares.

(¢) Dividend and Distribution Information

The declaration and payment of future dividends refated to our common shares is at the discretion of our Board
of Directors and depends on, among other things, our receipt of cash distributions from the Partnership, our
results of operations, level of indebtedness and restrictions imposed by our lenders, any contractual restrictions,
the annual dividend requirements under the REIT provisions of the Internal Revenue Code, economic conditions
and other factors considered relevant by our Board. The level of our cash dividends is determined by the Board of
Directors in light of our cash needs, including our requirements for investing and financing activities and other
anticipated cash needs.

As a result of the economic downturn in the hotel industry that was exacerbated by the terrorist attacks on
September 11, 2001, and its adverse impact on our cash flow from operations, our Board of Directors suspended
our fourth-quarter 2001 and first and second-quarter 2002 dividends. In August 2002, our Board of Directors
reinstated a dividend on our common shares by declaring a dividend of $0.18 per common share for the third
quarter of 2002. Dividends were also declared for the fourth quarter of 2002 and first quarter of 2003 at the same
level. The fourth quarter dividend was paid in January and the first quarter dividend was paid in May 2003. No
further common share dividends were declared or paid for the remainder of 2003 or in 2004. Based upon the
improving performance of the hotels anticipated in 2005, we will continue to review our cash flow and taxable
income projections throughout the year and may consider recommending to the Board the reinstatement of a
common share dividend during 2003,



(d) Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

The following sets forth the securities authorized for issuance under our equity compensation plans as of
December 31, 2004:

Number of securities
remaining available for

Number of securities to Weighted-average future issuance under

be issued upon exercise of exercise price of  equity compensation plans

outstanding optiens, outstanding options, (excluding securities

warrants and rights  warrants and rights reflected in column (a))

Plan category (a) (b) (¢)

Equity compensation plans approved by security holders . . 839,139* $11.24%* 196,149
Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders . . None None None
Total . 839,139 $11.24 196,149

*  Includes 613,006 options which are exercisable as of December 31, 2004.
**  The weighted-average exercise price of the 613,006 exercisable options as of December 31, 2004 is $12.21.
(e) Sales of Unregistered Securities

Not applicable.

(f) Use of Proceeds from Sales of Registered Securities

Not applicable.

(g) Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers

Not applicable.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data
The following tables set forth selected historical operating and financial data for Boykin Lodging Company.

The following selected financial data should be read in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and all of the financial statements and notes thereto included
elsewhere in this Form 10-K. The financial data related to 2004, 2003 and 2002 is not directly comparable to the
prior years as a result of our implementation of TRS structures in 2002. Subsequent to the transactions, our
financial results include the operating results of the hotels under the TRS structure whereas in prior years, only
lease revenue was recorded for the properties.
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BOYKIN LODGING COMPANY
SELECTED HISTORICAL OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA
(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT FOR PER SHARE DATA)

Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
OPERATING DATA:

Hotel, lease and other operating revenue .. . ... $ 212,843 5194672  $205,037 $ 57,247 §$ 67,857
Revenues from condominium development and

umit sales ... e 7,541 36,883 8,715 — —
Total TeVENUES .. ..o vi v i iiein s 220,384 231,555 213,752 57,247 67,857
Property taxes, insurance, hotel operations,

general and other ............... ... ... .. 183,032 168,430 164,997 14,472 14,152
Cost of condominium development and unit

Sales ... .. 5,509 24,645 6,474 — —
Real estate related depreciation and

amortization .. . ... ... i 24,017 26,085 23,377 22,309 22,781
Impairment of real estate ... ................ —_ — — 13,613 3,600
Costs associated with termination of leases .. .. — — — 14,575 —
Gain o1 property inSurance recovery ......... - — — — (407)
Operating income (loss) ................... 7,826 12,395 18,904 (7.722) 27,731
Otherincome. .........coviiiiviinnnnnn., 8 39 80 137 410
Interest income . .......... ... ..., 387 602 126 312 315
Interest expense. . ...... ...l (13,629) (14,923) (18,068) (19,639) (22,380)
Amortization of deferred financing costs ...... (1,367) (1,906) (2,10%) (1,129) (1,146)
Minority interest in (earnings) loss of joint

ventures and operating partnership ......... 1,738 1.813 847 2,291 (220)
Equity in income (loss) of unconsolidated joint

VEMEUIES « oot ee e (814) (870) (2,040) 589 68
Income (loss) before gain (loss) on

sale/disposal of assets, discontinued

operations and cumulative effect of change in

accounting principle .......... ... L (5.851) (2,850) (2,256)  (25,161) 4,778
Gain (loss) on sale/disposal of assets ........ 3,157 954 (16) 240 —
Income (loss) before discontinued operations

and cumulative effect of change in

accounting principle ......... .. . (2,694) (1,896) (2,272)  (24,921) 4,778
Discontinued operations, net of minority

ADETESE L oot e e 2,534 (1,530) 1,901 (4,276) 2,952
Tncome (loss) before cumulative effect of

change in accounting principle ............ (160) (3,426) (371)  (29,197) 7,730
Cumulative effect of change in accounting

principle, net of minority interest .......... — — — (373) —
Net income (1088) « ..o, a60) (3426 (371) - (29,570) 7,730
Preferred dividends ............ ... ... oL (4,751) (4,751) (1,109) — —

Wet income (loss) attributable to common

shareholders .. ..ot i $ (4,911) $ (8177) § (1,480) §(29,570) § 7,730




EARNINGS PER SHARE:

Net income (loss) attributable to common
shareholders before discontinued operations and
cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle:

Diluted . ........ e

Net income (loss) attributable to common
shareholders before cumulative effect of change
in accounting principle:

Diluted ...

Net income (loss) attributable to common
shareholders:

Weighted average number of common shares
outstanding: ‘

HISTORICAL BALANCE SHEET DATA:
Investment in hotel properties, net .............
Assets of discontinued operations, net ..........
Total assets ...t
Total debt ... ... i
Liabilities of discontinued operations ...........
Minority interest . .......... .. i
Shareholders’ equity ............ ... ..ot

OTHER DATA:

Funds from operations attributable to common
shareholders (FFO) (a)(¢) ... tt.

Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortization (EBITDA)(b)(¢) .............

Net cash provided by operating activities........

Net cash provided by (used in) investing
ACHIVIEIES . . o

Net cash provided by (used in) financing
activities .. ... ...

Cash dividends declared — common shares. .. ...

Weighted average number of common shares and
units outstanding:

Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

$ (043) $ (0.38) $ (0.20) $ (145 $ 028
$ (043) $ (038) $ (020) $ (145 $ 0.8
$ 015 $ (009 $ 011 $ (025 $ 0.17
$ 014 $ (009) $ 011 $ (025 $ 0.7
$ (0.28) $ (047) $ (0.09) $ (1.70) $ 045
$  (0.28) $ (047) $ (009 $ (1.70) $ 045
$ (028) $ (047) $ (0.09) $ (1.72) $ 0.45
$ (028) $ (047) $ (0.09) $ (L72) $ 0.45
17,426 17,336 17,248 17,176 17,137
17,553 17,470 17,383 17,281 17,305
$ 410,795  $409,876  $376,003  $399,954  $432,037
— 82,784 119,133 122,151 135,156
477,380 591,292 575,531 559,218 600,593
199,985 282,019 241,082 285226 277,696
— 19,772 40,725 36,413 37,086
10,989 12,462 15,176 16,933 14,709
227,448 231,541 240291 202,646 253,266
$ 9742 $ 18275 $ 25391 $ (2,635 $ 35,579
S 32807 $ 45629 $ 54099 $ 21,639 $ 65837
$ 42640 $ 2,173 $ 39,188 § 34,043 $ 43,400
$ 63,527  $(23,783) $(11,985) $(14,798) $(23,109)
$(106,659) $ 10,170 $ (5,360) $(19,810) $(20,087)
— $ 3174 $ 6297 $ 19030 § 28,889
20,144 20,055 19,966 18,467 18,428
20,271 20,188 20,101 18,572 18,596

(a) The White Paper on Funds From Operations approved by the Board of Governors of the National
Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts (“NAREIT”) in April 2002 defines FFO as net income (loss)

16




The

(b)

(computed in accordance with GAAP), excluding gains (or losses) from sales of properties, plus real estate
related depreciation and amortization, and after comparable adjustments for our portion of these items
related to unconsolidated entities and joint ventures. We believe that FFQ is helpful as a measure of the
performance of an equity REIT because it provides investors and management with another indication of the

Company’s performance prior to deduction of real estate related depreciation and amortization.

We compute FFO in accordance with our interpretation of standards established by NAREIT which may not
be comparable to FFO reported by other REITs that do not define the term in accordance with the current
NAREIT definition or that interpret the NAREIT definition differently than us. FFO does not represent
cash generated from operating activities as determined by GAAP and should not be considered as an
alternative to GAAP net income as an indication of our financial performance or to cash flow from operating
activities as determined by GAAP as a measure of our liquidity, nor is it indicative of funds available to fund

our cash needs, including our ability to make cash distributions.

following is a reconciliation between net income (loss) and FFO (in thousands):
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

Net income (1oss) .......oooviviini. ., $  (160) $(3,426) $§ (371) $(29,570) $ 7,730
Minority interest ............. .. ... ..., 803 (3,319) (507) (2,999) 860
Real estate related depreciation and

amortization .. ..., .. 24,017 26,085 23,377 22,309 22,781
Real estate related depreciation and

amortization included in discontinued

OPerations . ... ... ... 2,602 5,632 6,797 6,165 7,593
(Gain) loss on sale/disposal of assets. .. ... (13,065) (1,724) 16 (240) —
{Gain) loss on sale/disposal of assets

included in discontinued operations. ... .. (15) (550) 2 —_ —
Cumulative effect of change in accounting

principle ... oo — — — 373 —
Gain on property insurance recovery. ., ... .. — — — — (407)
Equity in (income) loss of unconsolidated

jolnt ventures .. ... 814 870 2,040 (589) (68)
FFO adjustment related to joint ventures. .. 1,016 2,324 (852) 1,718 (229)
Preferred dividends declared ............. (4,751)  (4,751)  (1,109) — —
Funds from operations after preferred

dividends. ...........o 11,261 21,141 29,393 (2,833) 38,260
Less: Funds from operations related to

minority interest............ . ......... 1,519 2,866 4,002 (198) 2,681
Funds from operations attributable to

common shareholders . ................ $ 9,742 $18,275 825391  § (2,635) $35,579

We believe that EBITDA is helpful to investors and management as a measure of the performance of the
Company because it provides an indication of the operating performance of the properties within the

portfolio and is not impacted by the capital structure of the REIT.



The following is a reconciliation between operating income (loss) and EBITDA (in thousands):

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
Operating income (loss) ................. $ 7826 $12,395 $18904  $(7,722) $27,731
Otherincome ........................ 8 39 80 137 410
Interestincome ...................... 387 602 126 312 315
Real estate related depreciation and
amortization ......... ... ... 24,017 26,085 23,377 22,309 22,781
EBITDA attributable to discontinued
OpPerations . .........c.ovvviiren.n. (1,959) 2,783 11,060 3,534 13,354
Company’s share of EBITDA of
unconsolidated joint ventures ......... 2,713 2,667 724 2,784 1,428
EBITDA applicable to joint venture
minority interest. . ..... ... ... (185) 1,058 (172) 285 (182)
EBITDA. ... ... ... .. ... ......... $32,807  $45,629 $54,099  $21,639  $65,837

(c¢) Neither FFO nor EBITDA represent cash generated from operating activities as determined by GAAP and
neither should be considered as an alternative to GAAP net income as an indication of the Company’s
financial performance or to cash flow from operating activities as determined by GAAP as a measure of
liquidity, nor is either indicative of funds available to fund cash needs, including the ability to make cash
distributions. FFO and EBITDA may include funds that may not be available for the Company’s
discretionary use due to functional requirements to conserve funds for capital expenditures and property
acquisitions, and other commitments and uncertainties.




Ttem 7. Ma t's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
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Overview

Boykin Lodging Company (“Boykin), an Ohio corporation, is a real estate investment trust (“REIT”) that was
formed and completed an initial public offering in 1996 to continue and expand the nearly 40-year history of hotel
ownership, acquisition, redevelopment and repositioning activities of its predecessors, Boykin Management
Company and its affiliates. Boykin Hotel Properties, L.P., an Ohio limited partnership (the “Partnership™), is the
operating partnership that transacts business and holds the direct and indirect ownership interests in Boykin’s
hotels. As of March 2, 2005, Boykin has an 85.4% ownership interest in, is the sole general partner of and does
all its business through the Partnership.

Since our initial public offering, we have raised capital through a combination of common and preferred share
issuances, various debt financings, capital from strategic joint venture partners and cash flow generated from
operations.

At the end of 2004, we owned interests in 24 hotels containing a total of 7,209 guestrooms located in 16 different
states. During February 2005, 43 units comprised of the two-low rise buildings at the Pink Shell Beach Resort &
Spa were demolished to make way for Captiva Villas, Therefore, as of March 11, 2005, we owned interests in 24
hotels containing 7,166 guestrooms located in 16 different states.

Critical Aceounting Policies

The critical accounting policies which we believe are the most significant to fully understand and evaluate our
reported financial results include the following:

« Investment in Hotel Properties — Hotel properties are stated at cost, net of any impairment charges, and are
depreciated using the straight-line method over estimated useful lives ranging from ten to 35 years for
buildings and improvements and three to 20 years for furniture, fixtures and equipment.

We review our hotel properties for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the
carrying value of the hotel properties may not be recoverable. Events or circumstances that may cause a
review include, but are not limited to, adverse changes in the demand for lodging at the properties due to
declining nationat or local economic conditions, new hotel construction in markets where the hotels are
located or changes in the expected holding period of the property. When such conditions exist,
management performs an analysis to determine if the estimated undiscounted future cash flows from
operations and the proceeds from the ultimate disposition of a hotel property are equal to or exceed its
carrying value. If the estimated undiscounted f{uture cash flows are less than the carrying amount of the
asset, an adjustment to reduce the carrying amount to the related hotel property’s estimated fair market
value is recorded and an impairment loss recognized.

{n 2004, we recorded a charge of $4.3 million for the impairment of real estate on the Ramada Inn
Bellevue Center due to a change in the intended holding period of the property. In 2003, we recorded a
charge of $2.8 million for impairment of real estate on our Holiday Inn Minneapolis West, as a result of
a change in management’s intended holding period of the property. Pursuant to the terms of the joint
venture which owned the property, over 40% of this charge was allocable to the joint venture’s minority
interest partner. There were no charges recorded for impairment of real estate in 2002. As of

December 31, 2004, we did not believe that there were any factors or circumstances indicating
impairment of any other of our investments in hotel properties.

We estimate the fair market values of our properties through a combination of comparable property sales,
replacement cost and cash flow analysis taking into account each property’s expected cash flow generated
from operations, holding period and ultimate proceeds from disposition. Tn projecting the expected cash
flows from operations of the asset, we base our estimates on future projected earnings before interest
expense, income taxes, depreciation and amortization, or EBITDA, and deduct expected capital
expenditure requirements. We then apply growth assumptions to project these amounts over the expected
holding period of the asset. Qur growth assumptions are based on estimated changes in room rates and
expenses and the demand for lodging at our properties, as impacted by local and national economic
conditions and estimated or known future new hotel supply. The estimated proceeds from disposition are
judgmentally determined based on a combination of anticipated cash flow in the year of disposition,
terminal capitalization rate, ratio of selling price to gross hotel revenues and selling price per room.
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If actual conditions differ from those in our assumptions, the actual results of each asset’s future
operations and fair market value could be significantly different from the estimated results and value used
in our analysis. Our operating results are also subject to the risks set forth under Items 1(c) and 7 of this
Form 10-K.

* Revenue recognition

Hotel revenues - Hotel revenues, including room, food, beverage and other hotel revenues, are recognized
as the related services are delivered. Ongoing credit evaluations are performed and an allowance for
potential credit losses is provided against the portion of accounts receivable that is estimated to be
uncollectible.

Lease revenue — Percentage lease revenue is based upon the room, food and beverage and other revenues
of our hotels.

Hotel Condominium revenues—

Percentage of completion - In 2003, we began recognizing revenue related to the White Sand Villas
project under the percentage of completion method. Condominium project revenues and expenses are
recognized on the percentage of completion method upon satisfaction of the following criteria:

(a) construction is determined to be beyond a preliminary stage, (b) the buyer is not entitled to a
refund except for nondelivery of the unit, {c¢) sufficient units are under binding contract to assure the
entire property will not revert to rental property, (d) sales prices have been determined to be
collectible, and (e) aggregate sales proceeds and costs can be reasonably estimated. In 2003 and
2004, revenue was recognized under percentage of completion accounting as the project had satisfied
the criteria outlined above. Percentage of completion accounting involves the use of estimates for the
relation of revenues on sold units to total revenues of the project and for total cost of the project.
The sales of all of the 91 available units closed in 2004, and the proceeds had been collected;
therefore, all project revenues have been recognized as of December 31, 2004. White Sand Villas
unit owners contract with the resort to allow their unused room nights to be rented out by the resort
as hotel rooms.

Sales of condominium units - During 2001, we completed a renovation of a 60-unit tower at the Pink
Shell Beach Resort. These renovated units were sold as Sanibel View Villas Condominiums; the
revenue related to the sales was recorded upon closing of the sales. As of December 31, 2003, we
had closed on the sale of all 59 of the available units within the tower and all of the unit owners
have contracted with us to allow their unused room nights to be rented out as hotel rooms.

The related gross rental income generated by the units put back to the resort by contract is recorded
by the resort and included in hotel revenues within the consolidated financial statements. Under the
terms of their contracts, a percentage of the gross rental income of each unit is to be remitted to the
respective unit owner. The remitted amounts are recorded as expenses within the property taxes,
insurance and other line of the consolidated financial statements.

Insurance Recoveries - In 2003, we disposed of certain assets due to water infiltration remediation
activities. Property insurance proceeds received in 2003 and 2004 in excess of the net book value of the
disposed assets are recorded within the gain (loss) on sale/disposal of assets within the consolidated
financial statements. Advances on our business interruption insurance claim related to the period in
which the remediation activities occurred are recorded as other hotel revenues within the consolidated
financial statements.

Since September 2004, our two hotels located in Melbourne, Florida have been closed due to damage
sustained from Hurricane Frances. We have recorded estimated business interruption insurance recoveries
in the amount of the loss sustained by the hotels since the storm. These estimates are recorded as other
hotel revenues within the consolidated financial statements. Estimated property insurance recoveries have
been recorded as gain on sale/disposal of assets within the consolidated financial statements to the extent
we experienced a loss on the writeoff of the damaged or destroyed assets.

As other property insurance claims are filed for repair work done at the properties, we record estimated
recoveries to offset the costs incurred, less appropriate deductibles.

o Income Tax Valuation Allowance. Upon the effective date of the establishment of Boykin’s taxable REIT
subsidiaries (“TRSs”), the subsidiaries became subject to federal and state income taxes. Boykin’s TRSs
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account for income taxes in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 109, *“Accounting for Income
Taxes.” As of December 31, 2004, Boykin's TRSs have a deferred tax asset of approximately $10.2 million,
prior to any valuation allowance, related to the assumption of the retained deficit of Westboy as well as the
operating losses of the TRSs and their subsidiaries. Boykin's TRSs have recorded a 100% valuation
allowance against this asset due to the uncertainty of realization of the deferred tax asset thus no provision
or benefit from income taxes is reflected in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

Our significant accounting policies are more fully described in Note 2 to Boykin Lodging Company’s Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements included within this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Financial Condition
December 31, 2004 Compared to December 31, 2003

In accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No. 144,
“Accounting for the Tmpairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” the assets and liabilities of the Doubletree
Portland Downtown Hotel, Marriott’s Hunt Valley Inn, the Holiday Inn Minneapolis West, the Radisson Hotel
Mount Laurel and the Ramada Inn Bellevue Center as of December 31, 2003 have been classified as
discontinued operations in the accompanying financial statements. As such, the only materal changes in our
financial condition as a result of the disposal of the hotels in 2004 has been the removal of these segregated assets
and liabilities and the receipt of the cash in excess of the paydown of the related debt instruments, of which a
portion was used to fund restricted cash balances.

As a result of the completion of the White Sand Villas and the closing of the sale of the 91 available units during
2004, outstanding accounts receivable related to the recognition of revenue for the units based upon the
percentage of completion method decreased by more than $32.1 million. Release of restricted cash related to
deposits made on the pre-sales (approximately $4.7 million at December 31, 2003) and the remaining proceeds
from the closing of the sale of the 91 units were used to repay the construction loan related to the project

($13.2 million outstanding as of December 31, 2003) as well as to provide cash for general corporate purposes.
Additionally, approximately $7.8 million of payables related to deposits received for pre-sales (whether or not
used to fund construction) were released upon closing of the units.

Included in accounts receivable as of December 31, 2004 is $4.7 million of property damage and business
interruption insurance recoveries related to the two Melbourne properties closed since Hurricane Frances struck
the area in September 2004.

Results of Operations
The operating results of the properties sold in 2004 and 2003 are reflected in the financial statements as
discontinued operations for all periods presented.

Results of Operations Year Ended December 31, 2004 Compared to 2003
Total revenues from continuing operations decreased to $220.4 million in 2004 from $231.6 million in 2003.

+ Hotel revenues increased $18.0 million from $192.4 million in 2003 to $210.4 million in 2004 as a result of
the following:

» An increase of $10.8 million related to the inclusion of the hotel revenue of the Marco Island property
for a full year in 2004 versus a partial year in 2003, as it was acquired in August 2003;

A $3.3 million decrease in revenue contribution from the two Melbourne, Florida properties as a result of
their closure after Hurricane Frances struck in early September;,

.

The inclusion of approximately $2.3 million of business interruption insurance recoveries within other
hotel revenues related to (a) a remediation project at a property which left rooms out of service during
2003 and 2004 and (b) the closure of the two Melbourne properties; and

An approximate 3.3% increase in revenue per available room (“RevPAR”) from 2003 for the

18 consolidated hotels which were open and operated under the TRS structure for both full years of 2004
and 2003. The increase in RevPAR was the result of an increase in occupancy levels of 1.9 points
combined with a 0.1% increase in the average daily rate.
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» Revenues from condominium development and unit sales decreased to $7.5 million in 2004 versus
$36.9 million in 2003 as a result of the completion of the White Sand Villas development project in 2004
and the completion of sales of Sanibel View Villas units during 2003.

Hotel operating expenses

» In 2004, we incurred total hotel operating expenses, which include hotel departmental expenses, indirect
expenses and management fees, of $159.1 million. The gross operating profit of these hotels for the periods
owned and operated under a TRS totaled 24.4% in 2004 versus 24.2% for 2003. The hotels experienced
decreases in general and administrative expenses as a percentage of revenues, offset by increases in
franchise fees.

Property Taxes, Insurance and Other

+ Total expenses related to property taxes, insurance and other of $15.1 million recorded for 2004 increased
$0.6 million over 2003. The increase is primarily due to increased contractual payments to owners of the
condominiums at the Pink Shell for use of their units as hotel rooms as a result of the sellout of Sanibel
View Villas in 2003 and the completion and sales of the White Sand Villas tower in 2004. All unit owners
in each building contractually put their units back to the resort for use as hotel rooms. In addition, a full
year of taxes and insurance expenses related to the Marco Island property are recorded in 2004, as opposed
to a partial year in 2003.

Corporate general and administrative

s+ Total expenses recorded for 2004 were $8.8 million compared with 2003 expenses of $8.1 million primarily
as a result of additional staffing and third party services in maintaining compliance with new federal laws
and regulations addressing corporate governance issues, including the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, and
with the new listing requirements of the New York Stock Exchange.

Cost of condominium development and unit sales
« Total expenses recorded for 2004 were $5.5 million compared with $24.6 million in 2003

« Amounts expensed under the percentage of completion method of accounting for the White Sand Villas
totaled $5.5 million during 2004 versus $21.6 million in 2003.

* 2003 costs include $3.0 million related to the sale of 19 Sanibel View Villas units.
Real estate related depreciation and amortization
« Depreciation and amortization decreased approximately $2.1 million in 2004 from 2003 as a result of:

» The inclusion of $3.4 million of accelerated depreciation related to pending demolition and removal of
two existing buildings at the Pink Shell to make way for the new Captiva Villas in 2003,

» An additional $0.5 million of depreciation in 2004 related to a full year of ownership of the Marco Island
property, and

+ Increases in depreciation related to recent capital expenditures.
Interest expense
+ Interest expense decreased approximately $1.3 million in 2004 from 2003 as a result of:

+ A decrease in the weighted average interest rate due to the expiration of a previously existing swap in
2003 which fixed $83.0 million of our debt at 7.32% during the first six months of 2003; and

« An approximate 4% decline in our weighted average outstanding debt during 2004. The decline was due
to the application of proceeds from property sales to reduce borrowings on the credit facility as well as
the scheduled amortization of the $130.0 million term loan.

Amortization of deferred financing costs

+ Amortization of deferred financing costs decreased approximately $0.5 million to $1.4 million in 2004
primarily as a result of the replacement of the previously existing credit facility and a $45.0 million term
loan with a new credit facility in October 2003. The new facility had approximately $2.0 million less of
deferred costs to be amortized.
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Gain (loss) on sale/disposal of assets

» Gain on sale/disposal of assets increased to $3.2 million in 2004 from $1.0 million in 2003 primarily as a
result of additional property insurance recoveries received.

Discontinued operations

+ Please refer to Note 4 of Boykin Lodging Company’s Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included
within this Annual Report on Form 10-K for a summary of discontinued operations. Discontinued
operations reflect the operations of the properties disposed of during 2004 prior to their sale/disposal.
Included in 2004 discontinued operations is a $4.3 million impairment charge related to the Ramada Inn
Bellevue Center and $2.1 million of minority interest expense related to the joint venture partner as a result
of the sale of Marriott’s Hunt Valley Inn. Also included in 2004 discontinued operations is the net gain on
sale/disposal of the five properties of $8.4 million.

Based upon the above, 2004 had a net loss attributable to common shareholders of $4.9 million compared to the
$8.2 million loss for 2003.

Our FFO for 2004 was $9.7 million compared to $18.3 million in 2003. For a detailed definition of FFO, a
reconciliation of net loss to FFO and a discussion of why we believe FFO is a useful measure of a REITs
financial performance, please see Item 6 “Selected Financial Data.”

Results of Operations Year Ended December 31, 2003 Compared to 2002
Total revenues from continuing operations increased to $231.6 million in 2003 from $213.8 million in 2002.

» Hotel revenues decreased $10.3 million from $202.7 million in 2002 to $192.4 million in 2003 as a result of
the following:

-

Increase of $2.7 million related to the inclusion of the hotel revenue of the Marco Island property
subsequent to its acquisition in August 2003; offset by

An approximate 5.9% decrease in revenue per available room (“RevPAR”) from 2002 for the 20
consolidated hotels which were operated under the TRS structure for both full years of 2003 and 2002.
Comprising the decline in RevPAR was a drop in occupancy levels of 2.8 points combined with a
decrease in the average daily rate of approximately 1.6%, primarily as a result of the weak economy.

Revenues from condominium development and unit sales increased to $36.9 million in 2003 versus

$8.7 million in 2002 as we started recognizing revenue under the percentage of completion method in 2003
related to the White Sand Villas project as certain thresholds regarding number of pre-sales and progress
on construction were met. Total revenue recognized in 2003 totaled $32.2 million. Additionally, 2003
revenues include $4.7 million related to the sales of the remaining 19 Sanibel View Villas units whereas in
2002 there were revenues of approximately $8.7 million related to the sales of 40 Sanibel View Villas units,

Hotel operating expenses

o In 2003, we incurred total hotel operating expenses, which include hotel departmental expenses, indirect
expenses and management fees, of $145.8 million. This is related to the costs associated with operating the
21 hotels under the TRS structure for the full year 2003 as well as the expenses related to the Marco
Island property subsequent to acquisition. The gross operating profit of these hotels for the periods owned
and operated under a TRS totaled 24.2% for 2003 versus 28.1% in 2002. The main drivers for the loss of
gross profit margins include increases in payroll and related employee costs and benefits, insurance, food
and energy.

Property Taxes, Insurance and Other

« Total expenses related to property taxes, insurance and other of $14.5 million recorded for 2003 increased
$1.6 million over 2002. The addition of Marco Island accounted for $0.3 million of this increase.
Additionally, the portfolio experienced an increase in insurance costs.

Corporate general and administrative

« Total expenses recorded for 2003 were $8.1 million compared with 2002 expenses of $6.4 million as a
result of increased legal and professional fees, costs related to the exchange of collateral for the
$130.0 million loan and increased directors and officers insurance costs.
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Cost of condominium development and unit sales
» Total expenses recorded for 2003 were $24.6 million compared with $6.5 million in 2002

« Due to progress made on the White Sand Villas, amounts expensed under the percentage of completion
method of accounting totaled $21.6 million

+ 2003 costs include $3.0 million related to the sale of 19 Sanibel View Villas units where in 2002 costs
totaled $6.5 million. The decline in cost per unit was due to depreciation taken on the units prior to sale.

Real estate related depreciation and amortization

+ Depreciation and amortization in 2003 of $26.1 million included $3.4 million of accelerated depreciation
related to pending demolition and removal of two existing buildings at the Pink Shell to make way for the
new Captiva Villas.

» Depreciation and amortization in 2002 of $23.4 million included $1.7 million of accelerated depreciation
related to the demolition and removal of the cottages at the Pink Shell to make way for the new White
Sand Villas building.

 Disregarding these events, the depreciation and amortization for 2003 increased approximately $1.0 million
as a result of recent capital expenditures and the acquisition of the Marco Island property in August 2003.

Interest expense
* Interest expense decreased approximately $3.1 million in 2003 from 2002 as a result of:

» A significant decrease in the weighted average outstanding balance on our applicable secured credit
facilities;

+ Approximately $42.0 million on the previously existing $45.0 million term note was outstanding for just
over 9 months during 2003 versus being outstanding at $45.0 million for the first nine months of 2002
and $42.0 million for the remaining months of 2002;

+ An average interest rate decline on the outstanding balance of our $108.0 million term loan of
approximately 60 basis points; and

¢ A declining outstanding principal balance on our $130.0 million term loan as a result of the loan’s
amortization schedule.

Equity in income (loss) of unconsolidated joint ventures

» Our share of loss related to our unconsolidated joint ventures totaled $0.9 million in 2003 versus
$2.0 million in 2002 as both of the hotels we owned and accounted for as unconsolidated joint ventures
were in their ramp up periods after major guestroom renovations. The primary driver behind this change
relates to our share of the joint venture which owns Hotel 71. The hotel experienced a significant number
of room nights out of service related to its renovation in 2002; subsequent to completion, these rooms were
back in service and due to the upgrade of the hotel, the property experienced higher average daily room
rates. Similarly, the total operating costs of the property increased as a result of the increased number of
rooms occupied in 2003 compared with 2002. The depreciation related to Hotel 71 in 2003 increased
significantly over 2002 levels as the costs related to the renovation, which were in excess of $20.0 million,
began depreciating in late 2002 in conjunction with the completion of the renovation.

Discontinued operations

« Please refer to Note 4 of Boykin Lodging Company’s Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included
within this Annual Report on Form 10-K for a summary of discontinued operations. Discontinued
operations reflect the operations of the properties disposed of during 2003 and 2004 prior to their sale.
Included in 2003 discontinued operations is the $2.8 million impairment charge related to the Holiday Inn
Minneapolis West and the offsetting $1.2 million of the charge that was allocated to the joint venture
partner. Also included in 2003 discontinued operations is the net gain on sale of the five properties of
$0.7 million.

Distribution to preferred shareholders

« Approximately $4.8 million of dividends related to the outstanding preferred depositary shares were
declared in 2003; those dividends reduced net income attributable to common shareholders. The preferred
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shares were issued during the fourth quarter of 2002 and there was approximately one quarter of this
amount declared for 2002.

Based upon the above, 2003 had a net loss attributable to common shareholders of $8.2 million compared to the
$1.5 million loss for 2002.

Our FFO for 2003 was $18.3 million compared to $25.4 million in 2002. For a detailed definition of FFO, a
reconciliation of net loss to FFO and a discussion of why we believe FFO is a useful measure of a REIT’s
financial performance, please see Item 6 “Selected Financial Data.”

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our principal source of cash to meet our cash requirements, including dividends to shareholders, is our share of
the Partnership’s cash flow from the operations of the hotels and condominium sales. Cash flow from hotel
operations is subiect to all operating risks common to the hotel industry, including, but not limited to:

Competition for guests from other hotels;

Adverse effects of general and local economic conditions;

Dependence on demand from business and leisure travelers, which may be seasonal and which may be
adversely impacted by health and safety-related concerns;

Increases in energy costs, airline fares, and other expenses related to travel, which may deter traveling;

Impact of the financial difficulties of the airline industry;

Increases in operating costs related to inflation and other factors, including wages, benefits, insurance and
energy;

Overbuilding in the hotel industry, especially in particular markets; and

Actual or ihreatened acts of terrorism and actions taken against terrorists that cause public concern about
travel safety.

The cash flow from condominium development is subject to risk factors common to real estate sales and
development, including, but not limited to:

+ Competition from other condominium projects;

+ Construction delays;

« Reliance on contractors and subcontractors;

« Construction cost overruns; and

» The ability of the condominium purchasers to secure financing.

As of December 31, 2004, we had $13.5 million of unrestricted cash and cash equivalents and $13.0 million of
restricted cash for the payment of capital expenditures, real estate taxes, interest and insurance. There were
outstanding borrowings at year end totaling $193.5 million against our two term notes payable.

We have a $60.0 million credit facility ($6.4 million outstanding as of December 31, 2004} to fund acquisitions
of additional hotels, renovations and capital expenditures, and for our working capital needs, subject to limitations
contained in the credit agreement. The borrowing base availability under the credit facility was approximately
$47.0 million at December 31, 2004.

For information relating to the terms of our credit facility and our term notes, please see Notes 5 and 6,
respectively, of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of Boykin Lodging Company included in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Our $130.0 million and $108.0 million term notes payable are property-specific mortgages and have only financial
reporting covenants. The credit facility contains covenants regarding overall leverage and debt service coverage.
As of December 31, 2004, we are in compliance with such covenants.

The remaining balance of the $108.0 million term note matures in July 2005. We anticipate refinancing this
obligation by utilizing a combination of increased borrowing availability under the credit facility and proceeds
from additional secured debt facilities.
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We may seek to negotiate additional credit facilities, replacement credit facilities, or we may issue debt
instruments. Any debt incurred or issued by us may be secured or unsecured, long-term, medium-term or short-
term, bear interest at a fixed or variable rate, and be subject to such other terms as the Board of Directors
considers prudent, The availability of borrowings under the credit facility is restrained by borrowing base and
loan-to-value limits, as well as other financial performance covenants contained in the agreement. There can be
no assurance that funds will be available in anticipated amounts from the credit facility.

Currently, we expect to continue to pay a regular quarterly dividend on our preferred shares. The resumption of a
common dividend will depend upon the improving performance of our hotels and other factors that our Board of
Directors considers relevant.

In 2005, we expect to spend approximately $18.0 million related to capital expenditures at our consolidated
hotels, excluding the Pink Shell Beach Resort & Spa project discussed below as well as the restoration of the
Melbourne, Florida properties. This amount includes planned refurbishments and replacements at selected existing
hotels. We expect to use cash available from operations and restricted capital expenditure reserves, as well as
borrowings under our line of credit, to fund our 2005 renovations. Current estimates are that the aggregate cost of
the repairs from the damage caused by the hurricanes at our two Melbourne, Florida properties may exceed

$30 million.

We expect to commence construction of Captiva Villas at the Pink Shell in mid-2005. We are currently talking
to various lenders regarding our financing options for the construction of Captiva Villas.

We have considered our short-term (defined as one-year or less) liquidity needs and the adequacy of our
estimated cash flow from operations and other expected liquidity sources to meet these needs. We expect our
principal short-term liquidity needs will be to fund normal recurring expenses, debt service requirements,
scheduled debt maturities, distributions on the preferred shares and any minimum distribution required to
maintain our REIT status. We anticipate that these needs will be met with cash flows provided by operating
activities, using availability under the credit facility, proceeds from dispositions of non-core assets and proceeds
from additional financings. We also consider capital improvements and property acquisitions as short-term needs
that can be funded either with cash flows provided by operating activities, by utilizing availability under our credit
facility, or from proceeds from additional financings.

We expect to meet long-term (defined as greater than one year) liquidity requirements such as property
acquisitions, scheduled debt maturities, major renovations, development projects and other nonrecurring capital
improvements utilizing cash flow from operations, proceeds from dispositions of non-core assets, additional debt
financings and preferred or common equity offerings. We expect to acquire or develop additional hotel properties
only as suitable opportunities arise, and we will not undertake acquisition or development of properties unless
stringent criteria have been met.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

We believe that neither Boykin nor its unconsolidated entities have entered into any off balance sheet
arrangements which would have a current or future impact on our financial condition, changes in financial
condition, results of operations, liquidity or capital resources in ways which would be considered material to our
investors.
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Tabular Disclosure of Contractual Obligations

The following is a summary of Boykin’s obligations and commitments as of December 31, 2004, excluding
unconsolidated joint ventures (in thousands):

Payments due by period

Less than More than
Contractual Obligations Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years
Long-Term Debt Obligations ...................un.. $193,539  §95010 $ 8614 $ 9,922 § 79,993
Capital Lease Obligations .................ooviin.. $ 0 3 0 $ 0 $ 0o 9 0
Operating Lease Obligations . ....................... $ 27,080 $ 1,793 $ 1,639 $ 1,060 $ 22,588
Purchase Obligations ................ ... cvi.on, $ 2763 §$2206 $ 368 § 100 § 39
Other Long-Term Liabilities Reflected on the
Registrant’s Balance Sheet under GAAP ........... $ 6235 § 258 § 253 § 335 $§ 5,389
Total. . e $229,617  $99,267 $10,874 $11.417  $108,059

In addition to the amounts disclosed above, Boykin and its subsidiaries are subject to various franchise,
management, lease and other agreements with parties that have ongoing fees that are contingent upon future
results of operations of the hotels in its portfolio as well as a potential for termination fees dependent upon the
timing and method of termination of such agreements.

Included in long-term liabilities above are liabilities relating to Boykin Kansas City, LLC. These liabilities were
assumed in connection with the acquisition of the Doubletree Kansas City in November of 1997. Please refer to
Note 13 of Boykin Lodging Company’s Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included within this Annual
Report on Form 10-K for a discussion of our obligations refated to the tax increment financing of the Doubletree
Kansas City.

Inflation

Operators of hotels in general can change room rates quickly, but competitive pressures may limit operators’
ability to raise rates to keep pace with inflation.

Our general and administrative costs as well as real estate and personal property taxes, property and casualty
insurance and ground rent are subject to inflation.

Seasonality

Our hotels’ operations historically have been scasonal. The five hotels located in Florida experience their highest
occupancy in the first quarter, while the remaining hotels maintain high occupancy rates during the second and
third quarters. This seasonality pattern can be expected to cause fluctuations in our quarterly operating results and
cash flow received from hotel operations.

Competition and Other Economic Factors

Our hotels are localed in developed areas that contain other hotel properties. The future occupancy, average daily
rate and RevPAR of any hotel could be materially and adversely affected by an increase in the number of or
quality of the competitive hotel properties in its market area. Competition could also affect the quality and
quantity of future investment opportunities, or our ability to sell existing properties.

As a postion of the lodging industry’s sales are based upon business, commercial and leisure travel, changes in
general economic conditions, demographics, or changes in local business economics, could affect these and other
travel segments, This may affect demand for rooms, which would affect hotel revenues.

Please refer to Ttem 1(¢) of this Form 10-K for further discussion regarding Competition.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In November 2002, the Financial Accounting Standard Board (“FASB”) issued Interpretation No. 45,
“Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of
Indebtedness of Others,” which addresses the disclosure to be made by a guarantor in its interim and annual
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financial statements about its obligations under guarantees. Interpretation No. 45 also requires the recognition of a
liability by a guarantor at the inception of certain guarantees. Interpretation No. 45 requires the guarantor to
recognize a liability for the non-contingent component of the guarantee, this is the obligation to stand ready to
perform in the event that specified triggering events or conditions occur. The initial measurement of this liability
is the fair value of the guarantee at inception. The recognition of the liability is required even if it is not probable
that payments will be required under the guarantee or if the guarantee was issued with a premium payment or as
part of a transaction with multiple elements. We have adopted the disclosure requirements of Interpretation

No. 45 and will apply the recognition and measurement provisions for all guarantees entered into prior to

January 1, 2003. There are no guarantees which require recognition under this Interpretation as of December 31,
2004.

In December 2002, the FASB issued Statement No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation-Transition
and Disclosure ~ an amendment of FASB Statement No. 123.” Statement No. 148 amends FASB Statement
No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” to provide alternative methods of transition for a
voluntary change to the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation. In
addition, Statement No. 148 amends the disclosure requirements of Statement No. 123 to require prominent
disclosures in both annual and interim financial statements about the method of accounting for stock-based
employee compensation and the effect of the method used on reported results. Adoption did not have a material
effect on the financial condition or results of operations of Boykin.

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,” which
addresses consolidation by business enterprises of variable interest entities. In general, a variable interest entity is
a corporation, partnership, trust, or any other legal structure used for business purposes that either (a) does not
have equity investors with voting rights or (b) has equity investors that do not provide sufficient financial
resources for the entity to support its activities. Interpretation No. 46 requires a variable interest entity to be
consolidated by a company if that company is subject to a majority of the risk of loss from the entity’s activities
or is entitled to receive a majority of the entity’s residual returns or both. The consolidation requirements of
Interpretation No. 46 apply immediately to variable interest entities created after January 31, 2003 and apply to
older entities in the fourth quarter of 2003. In December 2003, the FASB issued a revised Interpretation which
_modifies and clarifies various aspects of the original Interpretation. We do not believe that we have any
unconsolidated variable interest entities as of December 31, 2004.

On April 30, 2003 the FASB issued Statement No. 149 (“SFAS 149”), “Amendment of Statement 133 on
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.” SFAS 149 amends and clarifies accounting for derivative
instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts, and for hedging activities under
Statement 133. In particular, this Statement clarifies under what circumstances a contract with an initial net
investment meets the characteristic of a derivative as discussed in Statement 133 and it clarifies when a derivative
contains a financing component that warrants special reporting in the statement of cash flows. SFAS 149 is
effective for contracts entered into or modified after December 31, 2003 and for hedging relationships designated
after December 31, 2003 and is to be applied prospectively. This statement has not had and is not expected to
have a material impact on our financial position or results of operations.

In May 2003, the FASB issued Statement No. 150 (“SFAS 1507), “Accounting for Certain Financial
Instruments with Characteristics of Both Liabilities and Equity,” which establishes standards for how an issuer
classifies and measures certain financial instruments with characteristics of both liabilities and equity. It requires
that an issuer classify a financial instrument that is within its scope as a liability. The effective date of a portion
of the Statement has been indefinitely postponed by the FASB. We did not enter into new financial instruments
subsequent to May 2003 which would fall within the scope of this statement. This statement has not had and is
not expected to have a material impact on our financial position or results of operations.

As of December 31, 2004, Boykin had a Long-Term Incentive Plan (“LTIP”). Boykin has adopted the disclosure
only provisions of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” and applies Accounting
Principles Board Opinion No. 25 and related interpretations in accounting for its employee share option plan. If
Boykin had elected to recognize compensation costs for the LTIP based on the fair value at the grant dates for
option awards consistent with the method prescribed by SFAS No. 123, reported amounts of net loss and net loss
per share would have been changed to the pro forma amounts indicated below.
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(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT FOR PER SHARE DATA)}
Year Ended December 31,
200:

2003

Pro Forma Pro Forma

Net loss attributable to common shareholders . .......... ... oot $(4,911) $(8,177)

Stock-based employee compensation expense . ... (126) (126)

Proforma net loss attributable to common shareholders ...................... $(5,037) $(8,303)
Proforma net loss attributable to common shareholders per share:

BaSIC . o et e e $ (0.29) $ (0.48)

DHIILEA ottt e $ (0.29) $ (0.48)

In December 2004, the FASB issued revised SFAS No. 123 (Statement 123(R)), Share-Based Payment
(“SFAS No. 123R”). SFAS No. 123R requires all entities to recognize the fair value of share-based payment
awards (stock compensation) classified in equity, unless they are unable to reasonably estimate the fair value of
the award. Boykin will adopt the provisions of SFAS No. 123R on July 1, 2005, using the modified prospective
approach permitted by the literature. This approach requires that any unvested portion of options at the time of
adoption be expensed in the earnings statement over the remaining service period of those options. We expect
adoption of this approach to result in an immaterial impact on net income.

In December 2004, the FASB decided to defer the issuance of their final standard on earnings per share

(EPS) entitled “Earnings per Share - an Amendment to FAS 128.” The final standard will be effective in 2005
and will require retrospective application for all prior periods presented. The significant proposed changes to the
EPS computation are changes to the treasury stock method and contingent share guidance for computing year-to-
date diluted EPS, removal of the ability to overcome the presumption of share settlement when computing
diluted EPS when there is a choice of share or cash scttlement and inclusion of mandatorily convertible securities
in basic EPS. We are currently evaluating the proposed provisions of this amendment to determine the impact on
our consolidated financial statements.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Interest Rate Risk

Qur primary markel risk exposure consists of changes in interest rates on borrowings under our debt instruments
that bear interest at variable rates that fluctuate with market interest rates. These debt instruments include the
secured credit facility, the $108.0 million secured term loan and our share of floating rate debt under our
unconsolidated joint ventures of $25.0 million at year end.

We have entered into both variable and fixed rate debt arrangements to allow us to optimize the balance of using
variable rate debt versus fixed rate debt. Our variable rate debt allows us to maximize financial flexibility when
selling properties and minimize potential prepayment penalties typical of fixed rate loans. Qur $130.0 million,
6.9% fixed rate term note allows us to minimize our interest rate risk exposure. Approximately 51% of our
outstanding debt at December 31, 2004 was fixed-rate in nature, compared with 41% at the end of 2003, primarily
as a result of the paydown of outstanding debt with proceeds from the 2004 property sales. The weighted average
interest rate of our variable rate debt and total debt as of December 31, 2004 was 4.7% and 5.8%, respectively.
The weighted average interest rate of qur variable rate debt and total debt as of December 31, 2003 was 4.1% and
5.2%, respectively.

We review interest rate exposure continuously in an effort to minimize the risk of interest rate Ructuations. It is
our policy to manage our exposure to fluctuations in market interest rates on our borrowings through the use of
fixed rate debt instruments, to the extent that reasonably favorable rates are obtainable with such arrangements,
and after considering the need for financial flexibility related to our debt arrangements. We may enter into
forward interest rate agreements, or similar agreements, to hedge our variable rate debt instruments where we
believe the risk of adverse changes in market rates is significant. Under a forward interest rate agreement, if the
referenced interest rate increases, we would be entitled to a receipt in settlement of the agreement that
economically would offset the higher financing cost of the debt issued. If the referenced interest rate decreases,
we would make payments in settlement of the agreement, creating an expense that economically would offset the
reduced financing cost of the debt issued. As of December 31, 2004, we do not have any material market-
sensitive financial instruments.



We do not believe that changes in market interest rates will have a material impact on the performance or fair
value of our hotel portfolio as the value of our hotel portfolio is based primarily on the operating cash flow of the
hotels, before interest expense charges. However, a change of 1/4% in the index rate to which our variable rate
debt is tied would change our annual interest incurred by $0.2 million, based upon the balances outstanding on
our variable rate instruments at December 31, 2004.

Using sensitivity analysis to measure the potential change in fair value of financial instruments based on changes
in interest rates, we have determined that a hypothetical increase of 1% in the interest rates for instruments with
similar maturities would decrease the fair value of our fixed rate debt by $3.0 million as compared with the fair
value at December 31, 2004, which approximated $103,000.

Item 8. Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplemental Data

See Index to the Financial Statements on page F-1.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

On April 14, 2004, the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors voted to approve the engagement of Grant
Thornton LLP (“Grant”) as the Company’s independent auditor for the year ending December 31, 2004, to be
effective upon Grant’s acceptance of the engagement to act as the Company’s independent auditor. On April 16,
2004, Grant accepted the engagement. As such, on April 16, 2004, Deloitte & Touche, LLP (“*D&T”), was
dismissed as Boykin’s independent auditor.

The reports of D&T on the Company’s financial statements for the two fiscal years ended December 31, 2003 and
2002 did not contain an adverse opinion or a disclaimer of opinion and were not qualified or modified as to
uncertainty, audit scope or accounting principles.

In connection with the audits of the Company’s financial statements for each of the two fiscal years ended
December 31, 2003 and 2002, and during the interim period through April 16, 2004, there were no disagreements
with D&T on any matters of accounting principles or practices, financial statement disclosure, or auditing scope
and procedures which, if not resolved to the satisfaction of D&T would have caused D&T to make reference to
the matter in their report. During the two fiscal years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the subsequent
interim period through April 16, 2004, there were no reportable events as defined in Item 304(a) (1) (v) of
Regulation S-K. D&T has furnished the Company a letter addressed to the Securities and Exchange Commission
stating that it agrees with the above statements. A copy of that letter, dated April 19, 2004, was filed as

Exhibit 16.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
on April 20, 2004.

During the two fiscal years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 and their subsequent interim period through

April 16, 2004, neither the Company nor anyone on behalf of the Company consulted with Grant regarding either
the application of accounting principles to a specified transaction, either completed or proposed; or the type of
audit opinion that might be rendered on the Company’s financial statements; or on any matter considered
important by the Company in reaching a decision as to any accounting, auditing or financial reporting issue or any
matter that was either the subject of a disagreement as defined in Item 304(a) (1) (v) (iv) of Regulation S-K, or
any reportable event, as defined in Item 304(a) (1) (v) of Regulation S-K.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive officer and
our principal financial officer, we conducted an evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures, as such term
is defined under Exchange Act Rules 13a -~ 15(e) and 15d - 15(e). Based upon this evaluation, our principal
executive officer and our principal financial officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were
effective as of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting,
as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a - 15(f) and 15d - 15(f). Management assessed the
effectiveness of our internal control as of December 31, 2004. In making this assessment, management used the
criteria set forth in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
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Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on our assessment, management concluded that our internal
control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2004, Grant Thornton LLP, an independent
registered public accounting firm, has audited and issued their report on management’s assessment of its internal
control over financial reporting, which is included herein.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There have not been any changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during our last
fiscal quarter that have materally affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over
financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information

None.

PART HI
Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

The information required by this Item 10 is incorporated by reference to the information under the headings
“Election of Directors™ and “Section 16 (a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” contained in Boykin’s
Proxy Statement in connection with its Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on May 24, 2005, and the
information under the headings “Executive Officers of the Registrant™ and “Corporate Governance” in Part T of
this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this ltem 11 is incorporated by reference to the information under the heading
“Executive Compensation” contained in Boykin's Proxy Statement in connection with its Annual Meeting of
Shareholders to be held on May 24, 2005.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

The information required by this Item 12, other than the information required by Item 201(d) of
Regulation S-K, is incorporated by reference to the information under the heading “Security Ownership of
Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” contained in Boykin's Proxy Statement in connection with its
Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on May 24, 2003. The information required by Item 201(d) of
Regulation S-K is set forth in section (d) of Item 5 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Item 13, Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information required by this Ttem 13 is incorporated by reference to the information under the heading
“Certain Relationships and Related Transactions” contained in Boykin's Proxy Statement in connection with its
Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on May 24, 2003.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by this Item 14 is incorporated by reference to the information under the heading
“Principal Accounting Fees and Services” contained in Boykin's Proxy Statement in connection with its Annual
Meeting of Shareholders to be held on May 24, 2005,




PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

(a) See page F-1 for an index to financial statements and required schedules. All other financial statement

schedules within the provisions of Regulation S-X that are not listed in the index are either not required to
be included under the related instructions or are not applicable or the appropriate information is included in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements and therefore, have been omitted.

Exhibits

3.1
32
4.1
4.2
4.3

(a)
(b)
(b)
(a)
{d)

4.3a(g)

10.1
10.2
10.3
10.4
10.5
10.6
10.7
10.8
10.9

(i)
(b)
(b)
(b)
(b)
(b)
(b)
(b)
(b)

10.10(b)
10.11(c)
10.12(d)
10.13(e)

10.14(e)

10.15(e)

10.16(f)
10.17(f)
10.18(g)
10.19(g)
10.20(g)
10.21(j)

10.22

10.23

10.24

12

16.1
21

23.1
232
311
31.2
321
322

(2)
()

(c)
(d)
(e)
N

(h)

Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation, as amended

Code of Regulations

Specimen Share Certificate

Dividend Reinvestment and Optional Share Purchase Plan

Shareholder Rights Agreement, dated as of May 25, 1999 between Boykin Lodging Company and National City Bank as rights
agent

Amendment to Shareholder Rights Agreement, dated as of December 31, 2001

Third Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Boykin Hotel Properties, L.P.

Form of Registration Rights Agreement

Long-Term Incentive Plan*

Directors’ Deferred Compensation Plan*

Employment Agreement between the Company and Robert W. Boykin*

Form of Percentage Lease

Intercompany Convertible Note

Agreements with General Partners of the Contributed Partnerships

Form of Noncompetition Agreement

Alignment of Interests Agreement

Description of Employment Arrangement between the Company and Richard C. Conti*

Limited Liability Company Agreement of Boykin/AEW LLC dated as of February 1, 1999

Stock Purchase Option Agreement by and among Boykin Lodging Company, Boykin Hotel Properties, L.P. and AEW Partners
H1, L.P. dated as of February 1, 1999

Warrant to Purchase Class A Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series 1999-A of Boykin Lodging Company dated as of February 1,
1999

Registration Rights Agreement by and among Boykin Lodging Company and AEW Partners I1I, L.P. dated as of February 1,
1999

Key Employee Severance Plan*

Form of Severance Agreement*

Master Contribution Agreement between BMC, JABO LLC, the Company and the Partnership dated as of December 31, 2001
Form of Hotel Management Agreement®

Registration Rights Agreement between the Company and JABO LLC dated January 1, 2002

Description of Employment Arrangement between the Company and Shereen P. Jones*

Hotel Purchase and Sale Agreement; Hotel 71 Chicago, Illinois, By and Between Boykin Chicago L.L.C., as Seller and the Falor
Companies, Inc., as Purchaser

Modification Letter - Stock Purchase Option Agreement by and among Boykin Lodging Company, Boykin Hotel Properties, L.P.
and AEW Partners 111, L.P. dated as of February 1, 1999

Modification of Employment Agreement between the Company and Robert W, Boykin*

Statement re Computation of Ratios

Letter of Deloitte & Touche LLP required by Item 304 of Regulation S-K

Subsidiaries of the Registrant

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Certification Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a), in Accordance with Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a), in Accordance with Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Incorporated by reference from Boykin’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1999.

Incorporated by reference from Amendment No. 3 to Boykin’s Registration Statement on Form S-11 (Registration No. 333-6341)
(the “Form S-117) filed on October 24, 1996. Each of the above exhibits has the same exhibit number in the Form S-11.

Incorporated by reference from Boykin’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1998.

Incorporated by reference from Boykin’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 1999.

Incorporated by reference from Boykin's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 1999.

Incorporated by reference from Boykin’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999.
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Incorporated by reference from Boykin’s Form 8-K filed on January 14, 2002,

Incorporated by reference from Boykin's Form §-K filed on April 20, 2004,

Incorporated by reference from Boykin's Form 8-K filed on October 4, 2002,

Incorporated by reference from Boykin’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002,

Management contract or compensatory plan or afrangement.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and
Shareholders of Boykin Lodging Company

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal
Control over Financial Reporting included in Item 9a of the Form 10K, that Boykin Lodging Company (an Ohio
Corporation) and subsidiaries maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2004, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSQ). Boykin Lodging Company’s management is
responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s
assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions arc recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinton, management’s assessment that Boykin Lodging Company maintained effective internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on criteria
established in Intemal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (COSQ). Also in our opinion, Boykin Lodging Company maintained, in all material
respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria established
in Tnternal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSQ).

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the consolidated balance sheet of Boykin Lodging Company as of December 31, 2004, and the
related statements of operations, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2004 and
our report dated March 1, 2005 expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements.

/s/ GRANT THORNTON LLP

Cleveland, Ohio
March 1, 2005




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Boykin Lodging Company

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Boykin Lodging Company (an Ohio
corporation) and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of
the Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
{United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Boykin Lodging Company and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a
whole. Schedule IIT is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic
financial statements. This schedule has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the effectiveness of Boykin Lodging Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSQO) and our report dated March 1,
2005 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ GRANT THORNTON LLP

Cleveland, Ohio
March 1, 2005




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Boykin Lodging Company:
Cleveland, Ohio

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Boykin Lodging Comparny (an Ohio
corporation) and subsidiaries (the “Company™) as of December 31, 2003, and the related consolidaled statements
of operations, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31,
2003. These financial statements arc the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Boykin Lodging Company and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2003, and the results of their operations and
their cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2003, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
Cleveland, Ohio

March 25, 2004 (March 2, 2005 as to the effects of the discontinued operations in fiscal 2004 described in
Note 4)




BOYKIN LODGING COMPANY

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2004 AND 2003

(DOLLAR AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)

ASSETS
Investment in hotel properties .......... ... .. ... oo.... e
Accumulated depreciation. . ... ... . i e

Investment in hotel properties, net. . ... e
Cash and cash equIvalents ............ .0 ittt e
Restricted cashi. .. .. o
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $87 and $144 as of
December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively .. ... . ... i
Receivables from lessee. . ..o i e
INVEntOmIES .. o e
Deferred financing costs and other, net.......... .. .. i
Investment in unconsolidated joint ventures .. ..........c. i
Other @880 .\ oottt e e e
Assets related to discontinued operations, net ............ ..

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Borrowings against credit facility ...... ... ..
Term notes payable . ... ...
Accounts payable and accrued eXpenses . ... ... i e
Accounts payable to related party ... ...
Dividends/distributions payable ... ... ... .
DUe 10 18SSEES . . . oottt e
Minority interest in JOINt VENTUTES ... ..ottt et e ie e ee e e eeee e
Minority interest in operating partnership. ... ... i
Liabilities related to discontinued Operations ...............ieriiieiinennennenn..
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY:
Preferred shares, without par value; 10,000,000 shares authorized; 181,000 shares
issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 (liquidation preference
Of 845,250 . oo e
Common shares, without par value; 40,000,000 shares authorized; 17,450,314 and
17,344,380 shares outstanding at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.......
Additional paid-in capital ... .. e
Distributions in excess of income. ......... ..
Unearned compensation ~ restricted shares .. .......... ... ... ... .. ..,

Total shareholders” equity . .. ... it e e e

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

2004 2003

$ 545142 § 534,475
(134,347)  (124,599)

410,795 409,876

13,521 14,013
13,022 15,365
12,170 39,988
10 254
1,709 1,591
2,014 2,948
14,048 16,158
10,091 8,315
— 82,784

$ 477,380 § 591,292

$ 6446 § 71945
193,539 210,074

36,707 43,273
1,063 873
1,188 1,188

— 164
927 967
10,062 11,495
— 19,772

358,688 357,290
(129.232)  (124,321)
(2,008) (1,428)

227,448 231,541
$ 477,380  § 591,292




BOYKIN LODGING COMPANY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004, 2003 AND 2002

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT FOR PER SHARE DATA)

2004 2003 2002
Revenues:
Hotel revenues:

RO . . ettt e et e e e e e $133,597  8$122,821  §129,341
Food and beverage. . . 407 58,268 61.728
Other............ 14,414 11,314 11,632

Total hotel revenues . 210,418 192,403 202,701

Other lease revenue. 2,045 1,958 1,885

Other operating revenue - ... 380 311 451

Revenues from condominium development and u it s . . 7,541 36,883 8,715
TOMAY TEVETIIES . ..ot ittt i e e e s 220,384 231,555 213,752

Expenses:

Hotel operating expenses:
ROOIIIS . ottt et e e et et e e 33,772 30,850 31,432
Food and beverage. . 43,045 40,877 42,984
Other direct . 8,181 7,142 7.342
Indirect ... ......... ... 68,256 61,672 57912
Management fees to related p: 5,801 4,339 3,741
Management fees - other ... 59 882 2,261

Total hotel operating expenses .
Property taxes, insurance and o
Cost of condominium development and unit sales.
Real estate related depreciation and amortization .

159,114 145,762 145,672
14,530 12,921
24,645 6,474
26,085 23,377

Corporate general and administrative ... .. .. .o s 8,138 6,404
Total OPerating EXPERSES . . ...\ . 'ttt et e e e 219,160 194,848
Operating income 7826 12,395 18,904

INterest MMCOME ...\ L e e 387 602 126

Other income .. .. . 8 39 80

Interest expense ..
Amortization of deferred financing costs .
Minority interest in earnings of joint ventures .
Minority interest in loss of operating pannershxp
Equity in loss of unconsolidated joint ventures

(13629)  (14923)  (18,068)
(1367)  (1,906)  (2,105)
(141) (133) (133
1,879 1,946 980
(814) (870)  (2,040)
(5851)  (2850)  (2,236)
3,157 954 (i6)
(2604)  (L896)  (2,272)

Loss before gain (loss) on sale/disposal of assets and discontinued operations .
Gain (loss) on sale/disposal of assets.............

Loss before discontinued operations
Discentinued operations:
Operating income {loss) from discontinued operations, net of operating partnership minority interest

income (expensc) of $1.038, $387 and $(340), for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and

2002, TESPEUIVElY L o ot e e e (5,890) (2,184) 1,901
Gain on sale of assets, net of operating partnership minority interest expense of $1,434 and $116 for the
years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively ... o oo 8,424 654 —
N 085 e+ et vttt ettt et e e e e e § (160) 3 (3426) § (371)
Preferred dividends . ... ... (4,751) {4.751) (1,109)
Net loss attributable to common sharehalders .. ... o § (4911) S (8,177) § (1,480)
Net loss per share attributable to common shareholders before discontinued operations
BASIC - e $ (043) S (038) § (0.20)
DUted L $ (043) § (038) 3 (0.20)
Discontinued operations per share
Basic $ 015 & (009) § 011
Diluted $§ 014 § (009) $§ ol
Net loss per share attributable to common shareholders®
B0 L e e e e e $ {0.28) $ (047) $ (0.09)
Diluted Cieeeeoe 8 (D28) S {047) § (0.09)

Weighted average number of common s

17,426 17,336 17,248
17,553 17,470 17,383

Diluted ..

(a) Per share amounts may not add due to rounding

See notes to consolidated financial statements.




Balance at January 1, 2002.......
Issuance of common shares, net
of offering expenses of $3 ... .
Issuance of preferred shares, net
of offering expenses of $2,016
Common share purchases for
treasury ...l
Dividends declared
- $0.36 per common share ...
- $6.125 per Class A preferred
share ....................
Amortization of unearned
compensation ..............
Netloss......cooviiivnnL.
Other comprehensive income
~ net unrealized gain on
interest rate swap..........

Total comprehensive income. . . .

Balance at December 31, 2002. ...
Issuance of common shares, net
of offering expenses of $4 .. ..
Common share purchases for
easury ...
Dividends declared
- $0.18 per common share ...
- $26.25 per Class A preferred
share ............. ... ..
Amortization of unearned
compensation ..............
Netloss......ooovviiinn.
Other comprehensive income
- net unrealized gain on
interest rate swap..........

Total comprehensive loss. ... ...

Balance at December 31, 2003 .. ..
Issuance of common shares. .. ..
Restricted common share grants
Common share purchases for

tTreasury ..ot
Dividends declared
- $26.25 per Class A preferred
share ......... ... ... ...,
Amortization of unearned
compensation ..............
Netloss....................

Balance at December 31, 2004 . ...

BOYKIN LODGING COMPANY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004, 2003, AND 2002

(DOLLAR AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)

Additional

Distributions

Other

Preferred Common Paid-In  In Excess of Comprehensive Unearned
Shares Shares Capital Income Gain/(Loss) Compensation Total
— 17,191,954 $312,171  $(105,193) $(2,838) $(1,494) $202,646
— 104,461 1,126 — — (692) 434
181,000 — 43,234 — — — 43,234
— (20,008) (303) — — — (303)
— — — (6,297) — — (6,297)
— — — (1,109) — — (1,109)
— — — — — 992 992
— — — (371) — — (371)
— — — — 1,065 — 1,065
— — — —_ — — 694
181,000 17,276,407 356,228 (112,970) (1,773) (1,194) 240,291
— 77,528 1,143 — — (990) 153
— (9,555) (81) — — — (81)
— — — (3,174) — — (3,174)
—_ — — (4,751) — — (4,751)
— — — — — 756 756
— — — (3,426) — — (3,426)
— — — — 1,773 — 1,773
—_ — — — — — (1,653)
181,000 17,344,380 357,290 (124,321) — (1,428) 231,541
— 128,745 - — — — —
— — 1,589 — — (1,589) —
— (22,811) (191) — — — (191)
_ —_ — (4,751) — - (4,751)
—- — — — — 1,009 1,009
— — — (160) — — (160)
181,000 17,450,314 $358,688  $(129,232) $ — $(2,008) $227,448

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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BOYKIN LODGING COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OQF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004, 2003 AND 2002

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)

2004 2003 2002
Cash flows from operating activities:
Nt 1085 © ottt e $  (160) $ (3,426) $ (371)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash flow provided by operating
activities ~
(Gain) loss on sale/disposal of assets .......... ... ... ... (13,080) (2,274) 18
Impairment of real estate. ...t 4,300 2,800 —
Depreciation and amortization. ... 28,073 33,822 32,356
Amortization of unearned corapensation ...... ... ... .. 1,009 756 992
Equity in loss of unconsolidated joint ventures ...................... 814 870 2,040
MAROLIY T0ETESIE . . ..ttt 803 (3,319) (307)
Changes in assets and liabilities -
Accounts receivable and inventories .. ........ . el 28,808 (31,083) 266
Restricted cash ... ...oouii i 2,343 (1,851) (4,069)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses ......... ... . el (9,118) 1,902 1,321
Amounts due to/from lessees . ........ .. i 80 (217) 3,092
OEhEr oot e e (1,232) 4193 4,050
Net cash flow provided by operating activities .......................... 42,640 2,173 39,188
Cash flows from investing activities:
Cash assumed in connection with termination of leases. ................ — — 5,765
Tavestment in unconsolidated joint veatures .............. ..ol (438) (481) (4,408)
Distributions received from unconsolidated joint ventures ............... 1,698 572 148
Improvements and additions to hotel properties, net ................... (30,834)  (54,210)  (13,490)
Net proceeds from sale of assets........... ... ... ... L. 93,101 30,336 —
Net cash flow provided by (used in) investing activities .................. 63,527 (23,783)  (11,985)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Payments of dividends and distributions. ........... ... ... . ... .. (4,751)  (11,485) (3,638)
Net borrowings (repayments) against credit facilities .................. (65,500) 71,946 (39,000)
Term note BOITOWINES . .. ...t ie e i e e 14,133 13,222 —
Repayment of term notes. ... i (47,537)  (61,106) (5,144)
Payment of deferred financing costs ... (327) (2,339) (830)
Net proceeds from issuance of preferred shares ....................... — — 43,234
Net proceeds from issuance of common shares........................ — 153 434
Cash payment for common share purchases .......................... (191) (81) (172)
Distributions to joint venture minority interest partners, net............. (2,486) (140) (244)
Net cash flow provided by (used in) financing activities .................. (106,659) 10,170 (5,360)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents............................... $ (492) $(11,440) § 21,843
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year ......... .. ... ... ... .. .. 14,013 25,453 3,610
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year ............ ... ... ool $ 13,521 § 14,013 § 25453

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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BOYKIN LODGING COMPANY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004, 2003 AND 2002

(DOLLAR AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)

1. Background:

Boykin Lodging Company, an Ohio Corporation (together with its subsidiaries “Boykin”), is a real estate
investment trust (“REIT”) that owns hotels throughout the United States of America. As of December 31, 2004,
Boykin owned interests in 24 hotels containing a total of 7,209 guestrooms located in 16 states, 21 of which were
affiliated with nationally-recognized franchisors. Boykin’s largest franchise affiliation is with Doubletree®. As of
December 31, 2004, Boykin owned eight Doubletree hotels in seven states, which accounted for approximately
41% of the total rooms in Boykin’s portfolio. Other brands that Boykin is affiliated with include Hilton®,
Marriott® and Radisson®.

The operations of the hotels have historically been seasonal. The five hotels located in Florida have historically
experienced their highest occupancy in the first quarter, while the remaining hotels have historically maintained
higher occupancy rates during the second and third quarters.

Formation

Boykin was formed and completed an initial public offering (the “IPO”) in 1996 to continue and expand the
nearly 40-year history of hotel ownership, acquisition, redevelopment and repositioning activities of its
predecessors, Boykin Management Company and its affiliates. Boykin Hotel Properties, L.P., an Ohio limited
partnership (the “Partnership”), is the operating partnership that transacts business and holds the direct and
indirect ownership interest in Boykin’s hotels. As of December 31, 2004, Boykin had an 85.3% ownership interest
in and is the sole general partner of the Partnership.

Since the IPO, Boykin has raised capital through a combination of common and preferred share issuances,
various debt financings, capital from strategic joint venture partners and cash flow generated from operations.

As of December 31, 2004, Boykin Management Company Limited Liability Company (“BMC”) and certain of
its subsidiaries managed 21 of the 24 hotels in which Boykin had ownership interests. BMC is owned by Robert
W. Boykin, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Boykin (53.8%) and his brother, John E. Boykin (46.2%).

Consolidated Joint Ventures

During the three year period ended December 31, 2004, Boykin was a party to the following joint ventures for the
purposes of owning hotels. In 2004, the joint ventures which owned the Holiday Inn Minneapolis West and
Marriott’s Hunt Valley Inn, sold their respective hotels.

Boykin v

Ownership Ownership Hotel  Date of Hotel
Name of Joint Venture JV Partner Percentage Percentage  Hotel Owned Under Joint Venture Manager Sale
BoyStar Ventures, L.P. Interstate Hotels and Resorts 91% 9% Holiday Inn Minneapolis West BMC  August 2004
Shawan Road Hotel L.P. Davidson Hotel Company 91% 9% Marriott’s Hunt Valley Inn Davidson  July 2004
Boykin San Diego LLC Outrigger Lodging Services 91% 9% Hampton Inn Outrigger N/A

San DiegoAirport/Sea World

Unconsolidated Joint Ventures

In 1999, Boykin formed a joint venture with AEW Partners 111, L.P. (“AEW?”), an investment partnership
managed by AEW Capital Management, L.P., a Boston-based real estate investment firm. Boykin has a 25%
ownership interest in the joint venture. In the same year, the Boykin/ AEW venture formed and acquired a 75%
ownership interest in Boykin Chicago, L.L.C., which purchased a hotel in downtown Chicago, now named
Hotel 71. In 2000, Boykin purchased the remaining 25% ownership interest in Boykin Chicago, L.L.C. from a
private investor thereby increasing Boykin’s total ownership percentage in the hotel to 43.75%. Boykin Chicago,
L.L.C. entered into a contract to sell Hotel 71 in 2004.
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In July 2001, Boykin formed a joint venture with Concord Hospitality Enterprises (“Concord™), a privately
owned hotel investment and management company based in Raleigh, North Carolina. Boykin has a 50%
ownership interest in the joint venture, which acquired a full-service hotel in Lyndhurst, New Jersey.

Because of the non-controlling nature of Boykin’s ownership interests in these joint ventures, Boykin accounts for
these investments using the equity method. Refer to Note 9 for further discussions of the aforementioned joint
venture with AEW.

Boykin’s carrying value of its investments in these joint ventures differs from its share of the partnership equity
reported in the balance sheets of the unconsolidated joint ventures due to Boykin’s cost of its investment in excess
of the historical net book values related to the direct investment in Boykin Chicago, L.L.C. Boykin’s additional
basis is allocated to depreciable assets and is recognized on a straight line basis over 30 years.

The following table sets forth the total assets, liabilities, revenues and net income (loss), including Boykin’s share,
related to the unconsolidated joint ventures discussed above as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 and for each of
the three years in the period ended December 31, 2004:

Boykin/AEW Boykin/Concord

December 31, December 31,

2004 2003 2004 2003

Total @S8etS. . ..\ttt e $65,975  $68,601  $21,069  $22,272
Accrued EXPENSEes ... ... 2,593 2,884 485 469
Outstanding debt ........ ... ...l 36,116 37,236 18,398 16,728
Total Habilities . ........... .. 38,709 40,120 18,883 17,197
Minority interest ... 6,781 7,081 —_ —_
s TR 20485 21,400 2,186 5,075
Boykin's share of equity and minority interest.............. 11,999 12,627 1,093 2,537
Boykin's additional basis in Boykin Chicago, L.L.C. ........ 936 994 — —_
Investment in unconsolidated joint venture ................ $12,955 $13,621 $ 1,093 § 2,537
Boykin/AEW Boykin/Concord

December 31, December 31,

2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002

Revenues .......... ...t $ 16,093 $14942 $10,049 $ 7437 § 6,709 $ 5529
Hotel operating expenses ................ (10,698) (9.836) (8,752) (4,297) (3,836) (3.495)
Management fees - related parties. ........ (483) (446) (75) - — —
Real estate related depreciation....... ..., (3,102)  (3,099) (1,93%8) (L,114) (1,139) (1,0l1)
Property taxes, insurance and other........ (1,710) (1,245) (1,360) (554) (537) (493)
Operating income (loss) ................. 100 316 (2,076) 1472 1177 530
Interest and other income. ............... 35 14 26 5 13 2
AMOTHZAtON ..\ttt (289)  (282)  (334)  (151) (88) (87)
IDtErest eXPenSe . . ... v oo (1,760) (1,716) (1,648) (926) (792) (799)
S TR @ (5  (107)  (1%6)  (578) (94)
Net income {loss) before minority interest (1,915) (1,673) (4.139) 244 (268) (448)
Boykin’s share of net income (loss) ....... (936) (736) (1,816) 122 (134) (224)

Taxable REIT Subsidiary Transactions

The Work Incentives Improvement Act of 1999 (“REIT Modernization Act”) amended the tax laws to permit
REITs, like Boykin, to lease hotels to a subsidiary that qualifies as a taxable REIT subsidiary (“TRS”) as long
as the TRS engages an independent hotel management company to operate those hotels under a management
contract. Boykin implemented this structure for certain properties previously leased to the hotel management
companies effective January 1, 2002.

In conjunction with the transaction, the Partnership acquired 16 subsidiaries of BMC for consideration comprised
of limited partnership units (Note 8) and the assumption of working capital liabilities in excess of assets relating
to Westboy LLC (“Westboy™), one of the subsidiaries (Note 14).
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The Partnership then contributed the acquired subsidiaries to Bellboy, Inc. (“Bellboy™), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Partnership, or terminated the existing lease agreement with the hotel managers and re-leased
the properties to subsidiaries of Bellboy. Bellboy has elected to be treated as a TRS.

Effective September 1, 2002, Shawan Road Hotel L.P. formed a TRS, Hunt Valley Leasing, Inc. (“Hunt
Valley™), to lease the Marriott’s Hunt Valley Inn. Davidson continued to manage the property until Shawan
Road Hotel L.P. sold the hotel in 2004,

As Boykin Chicago, L.L.C. and the Boykin/Concord joint venture each also have TRS entities which lease their
properties, 71 E. Wacker Leasing, Inc. and BoyCon Leasing, Inc., respectively, as of December 31, 2004, all
hotels Boykin had an ownership interest in, other than the Hampton Inn San Diego Airport/Sea World, were
operated under the TRS structure.

As a result of the TRS transactions discussed above, from the effective date of each transaction going forward,
the consolidated financial statements of Boykin include the operating results of the consolidated hotels under the
TRS structure. Previously, revenues recorded on the consolidated financial statements were derived primarily from
lease payment obligations which were made out of the net operating income of the properties; now reported
revenues reflect total operating revenues from the properties with the related operating expenses also being
reported.

Hilton Modification Agreement

Westboy, a subsidiary of Bellboy subsequent to the TRS transaction, historically leased from Boykin ten
Doubletree branded hotels which were managed by a subsidiary of Hilton Hotels Corporation (“Hilton”) under a
long-term management agreement. On April 30, 2003, Boykin entered into an agreement (the “Modification
Agreement”) with Hilton to terminate the long-term management agreement. Six of the hotels continued to be
Doubletree hotels under license agreements which became effective in May 2003, and Boykin then engaged BMC
to manage the properties. One of these properties, the Doubletree Portland Downtown, was subsequently divested
in 2004. Of the remaining four properties, three were subsequently sold and one property, the Yakima hotel was
managed by Hilton until February 2004, at which point it became a Clarion hotel and Boykin entered into an
agreement with the Chambers Group to manage the property.

The terms of the Modification Agreement included a discounted payoff of $3,600 on a $6,000 deferred incentive
management fee which had been expensed by Boykin but was not yet payable to Hilton, a $2,100 termination fee
and other professional fees related to the transaction. The approximate gain of $150 recorded on the transaction is
reflected in property taxes, insurance and other expenses in 2003.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:
Basis of Presentation

The separate financial statements of Boykin, the Partnership, Beilboy, Hunt Valley and the consolidated joint
ventures discussed above are consolidated because Boykin exercises unilateral control over these entities. All
significant intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated. Boykin believes that the results of
operations contained within the consolidated financial statements reflect all costs of Boykin doing business.

Investment in Hotel Properties

Hotel properties are stated at cost, net of any impairment charges, and are depreciated using the straight-line
method over estimated useful lives ranging from ten to 35 years for buildings and improvements and three to
20 years for furniture, fixture and equipment.

F-11




Investment in hotel properties as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 consisted of the following:

2004 2003

Land oo $§ 55009 S 55009
Buildings and Improvements. ... ... i 416,563 409,393
Furniture and equipment .......... . i e 68,893 64,659
COnSIrUCon I PIOZTESS . . vttt ettt e e e 4,677 5414
545,142 534,475

Less — Accumulated depreciation . ... (134,347)  (124,599)

$ 410,795 3 409,876

Boykin reviews the hotel properties for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the
carrying value of the hotel properties may not be recoverable. Events or circumstances that may cause a review
include, but are not limited to, adverse changes in the demand for lodging at the properties due to declining
national or local economic conditions, new hotel construction in markets where the hotels are located or changes
in the expected holding period of the property. When such conditjons exist, management performs an analysis to
determine if the estimated undiscounted future cash flows from operations and the proceeds from the ultimate
disposition of a hotel property exceed its carrying value. If the estimated undiscounted future cash flows are less
than the carrying amount of the asset, an adjustment to reduce the carrying amount to the related hotel property’s
estimated fair market value is recorded and an impairment loss recognized.

In 2004, Boykin identified changes in circumstances, namely the intended holding period of the property, which
indicated that the carrying value of the Ramada Inn Bellevue Center was impaired and accordingly recorded an
impairment charge of $4,300. In 2003, management identified changes in circumstances, namely the intended
holding period of the property, which indicated that the carrying value of one of its properties, the Holiday Inn
Minneapolis West, was impaired and accordingly recorded an impairment charge of $2,800. Both of these
properties were sold in 2004. Boykin noted no such circumstances in 2002. Boykin does not believe that there are
any factors or circumstances indicating impairment of any other investments in hotel properties at this time.

Fair market values of hotel properties are estimated through a combination of comparable property sales,
replacement cost and a discounted cash flow analysis taking into account each property’s expected cash flow
generated from operations, holding period and ultimate proceeds from disposition. In projecting the expected cash
flows from operations of the asset, the estimates are based on future projected earnings before interest expense,
income taxes, depreciation and dmortization, or EBITDA, and deduct expected capital expenditure requirements.
Growth assumptions are applied to project these amounts over the expected holding period of the asset. The
growth assumptions are based on estimated inflationary increases in room rates and expenses and the demand for
lodging at the properties, as impacted by local and national economic conditions and estimated or known future
new hotel supply. The estimated proceeds from disposition are judgmentally determined based on a combination
of anticipated cash flow in the year of disposition, capitalization rate, ratio of selling price to gross hotel revenues
and selling price per room.

1f actual conditions differ from the assumptions, the actual results of each asset’s future operations and fair
market value could be significantly different from the estimated results and value used in the analysis.

There were no consolidated properties held for sale at December 31, 2004 and 2003, as defined within the
provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 144 “Accounting for the Impairment
or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” Boykin considers assets to be “held for sale” when they are under contract,
significant non-refundable deposits have been made by the potential buyer and the assets are immediately
available to be sold.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash on hand and in banks plus short-term investments with an original
maturity of three months or less.

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash consists of cash held in escrow reserves under the terms of the term notes payable discussed in
Note 6 and deposits on the White Sand Villas condominium sales as discussed further below. The escrow reserves
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relate to the payment of capital expenditures, real estate taxes, interest and insurance as well as reserves relating
to the financing of Boykin Chicago L.L.C.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable, consisting primarily of recognition of revenue related to projects accounted for under the
percentage of completion method and hotel guest receivables, is stated at fair value. Bad debt expense for the
hotels owned as of December 31, 2004 was $67, $93 and $733 for 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Inventories

Inventories consisting primarily of food and beverages and gift store merchandise are stated at the lower of
first-in, first-out cost or market.

Deferred Financing Costs and Other, net

Included in deferred financing costs and other at December 31, 2004 and 2003 were the following:

2004 2003

Financing CostS. ... .ottt e $ 5269 §$ 5092
Franchise fees ... .. i 352 272
5,621 5,364

Accumulated amortization .. ... .. . (3,607) (2,416)

$ 2,014 § 2948

Deferred financing costs are being amortized using the straight-line method over the terms of the related
financing agreements, including extension options where it is the intent of Boykin to exercise such options. In
2004, additional financing costs amounted to $554 and write offs due to repayments or maturities of underlying
agreements amounted to $377. Additionally, financing costs for 2003 have been restated to reflect the removal of
costs related to the debt collateralized by the properties sold during 2004 of $198. Accumulated amortization at
December 31, 2004 and 2003 was $3,491 and $2,324, respectively.

Deferred franchise fees are being amortized on a straight-line basis over the terms of the related franchise
agreements. In 2004, additional franchise fees amounted to $80. Franchise fees for 2003 have been restated to
reflect amounts related to properties sold during 2004 of $199. Accumulated amortization at December 31, 2004
and 2003 was $116 and $92, respectively.

Officers Life Insurance

Pursuant to our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer’s employment agreement, Boykin was obligated to provide
certain split-dollar life insurance benefits to him. During 2004, Boykin amended its agreement with Mr. Boykin to
provide that Mr. Boykin would surrender one policy (along with the cash surrender value of such policy) to
Boykin and the split dollar feature would be removed from the other policy. In consideration of Mr. Boykin’s
agreement to surrender one policy and remove the split dollar features from the other, the Compensation
Committee of the Board of Directors agreed to make a one-time payment of $416 to Mr. Boykin and increase his
annual base compensation by $40 to compensate for the current value and lost future benefit that the Company
would otherwise be required to provide. Amounts recorded for the two policies totaled $924 and $478 as of
December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, and are reflected in the consolidated balance sheets as other assets. As
of December 31, 2004 and 2003, there were loans against the cash surrender value of the policies related to the
2004 and 2003 premiums totaling $244 and $121, respectively, which are reflected in the consolidated balance
sheets as accounts payable and accrued expenses.

Deferred Compensation Plans

As of December 31, 2004, Boykin had nonqualified deferred compensation programs which permitted certain
employees to annually elect (via individual contracts) to defer a portion of their compensation on a pre-tax basis.
To assist in the funding of these programs, Boykin has purchased shares of mutual funds as directed by the
participants and placed them in rabbi trusts. The market value of the mutual fund shares included in other assets
totaled $2,634 and $1,858 at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. A liability of the equal amount is
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recorded within accounts payable and accrued expenses within the consolidated financial statements as of each
period.

Dividends

The payment of dividends on Boykin’s common shares is dependent upon the receipt of distributions from the
Partnership. The declaration of a common dividend and at what rate is subject to the discretion of Boykin's Board
of Directors.

Dividends on the preferred shares (Note 7) are cumulative from the date of issue at the rate of 10':% of the
liquidation preference per year and are payable quarterly in arrears based upon authorization of the Board of
Directors. Dividends will accrue whether or not Boykin has earnings, whether or not there are funds legally
available for the payment of such dividends and whether or not such dividends are declared.

Revenue Recognition

Hotel revenues - Hotel revenues, including room, food, beverage and other hotel revenues, are recognized
as the related services are delivered. Ongoing credit evaluations are performed and an allowance for
potential credit losses is provided against the portion of accounts receivable that is estimated to be
uncollectible.

Lease revenue - Boykin recognizes lease revenue for interim and annual reporting purposes on an accrual
basis pursuant to the terms of the respective percentage leases once all terms have been satisfied and
certain thresholds have been met. Boykin recognizes the revenue in accordance with Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”) Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB™) No. 10t “Revenue Recognition in
Financial Statements.” The adoption of SAB No. 101 impacts the interim reporting of revenues related
to Boykin’s leases for properties not operated under the TRS structure, but has no impact on its interim
cash flow or year-end results of operations.

Percentage of Completion - The revenue and expenses of condominium projects under construction are
recognized on the percentage of completion method upon satisfaction of the following criteria:

(a) construction is determined to be beyond a preliminary stage, (b) the buyer is not entitled to a refund
except for nondelivery of the unit, (¢) sufficient units are under binding contract 10 assure the entire
property will not revert to rental property, (d) sales prices have been determined to be collectible, and
(e) aggregate sales proceeds and costs can be reasonably estimated. Beginning in 2003, Boykin
recognized revenue under percentage of completion accounting as the White Sand Villas project had
satisfied the criteria outlined above. Percentage of completion accounting involves the use of estimates for
the relation of revenues on sold units to total revenues of the project and for total cost of the project.

Condominium Units

The related gross rental income generated by the units put back to the resort by contract for use as hotel rooms
and the units owned by Boykin is recorded by the resort and included in hotel revenues within the consolidated
financial statements. Under the terms of the contract, a percentage of the gross rental income of each unit is to
be remitted to the respective unit owner.

White Sand Villas

During 2002, Boykin began construction of a 92-unit tower at the Pink Shell Beach Resort. In order to prepare
the site for construction of the tower, Boykin paid for the removal of cottages occupying the space. Depreciation
of the cottages was accelerated through the period of disposal resulting in an additional $1,700 charge in 2002,
recorded in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 144 as it relates to asset abandonment. The costs of
removing the cottages and preparing the site for construction of the new building were capitalized to the extent
that total expected costs did not exceed the expected net realizable value for the project.

Deposits totaling $7,864 at December 31, 2003 received for the purchase of units in the White Sand Villas are
included in accounts payable and accrued expenses on the balance sheet. A portion of the deposits was available
for use as payment of construction costs. The portion that was not available was reflected in restricted cash.

The amount of costs in excess of the revenue recognized on the White Sand Villas project was $518 as of
December 31, 2003 and is reflected in other assets within the consolidated balance sheet. The outstanding




accounts receivable related to the recognition of revenue for the White Sand Villas units totaled $32,173 as of
December 31, 2003.

The sales of all of the 91 available units closed in 2004, the proceeds had been collected and the contractors had
completed their obligations; therefore, all project revenues and related costs have been recognized as of
December 31, 2004,

Boykin reported $7,541 and $32,173 in revenues and $35,509 and $21,629 in costs under the percentage of
completion method of accounting for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003.

All of the White Sand Villas unit owners have contracted with the resort to allow their unused room nights to be
rented out as hotel rooms. For the year ended December 31, 2004, $1,188 was remitted to third party unit owners
and is included within property taxes, insurance and other in the consolidated financial statements.

Sanibel View Villas

During 2001, Boykin completed a $2,700 renovation of a 60-unit tower at the Pink Shell Beach Resort. These
renovated studio units were sold as Sanibel View Villas Condominiums. The revenue related to the sale of the
units was recorded upon satisfaction of the following two criteria: (a) the profit is determinable and (b) the
earnings process is virtually complete. These criteria are generally met at the closing of the sale. Through
December 31, 2002, 40 of the units were sold, generating revenues of $8,715 and costs of $6,474.

As of December 31, 2003, all of the 59 available units were sold. Revenues from condominium development and
unit sales for 2003 include $4,710 of revenue related to the sale of 19 Sanibel View Villas condominium units.
Costs of the Sanibel View unit sales totaled $3,016 during 2003.

All of the Sanibel View unit owners have contracted with the resort to allow their unused room nights to be
rented out as hotel rooms. For the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, $882 and $923 was remitted to
third party unit owners and is included within property taxes, insurance and other in the consolidated financial
statements.

Captiva Villas

During 2003, Boykin made the decision to move forward with the plans for the final phase of redevelopment of
the Pink Shell Beach Resort; which includes the demolition of two existing low-rise buildings and the
construction of a new 43-unit building. Similar to the other projects at the resort, the units in the new building
will be sold as condominiums with the prospect that the owners will put their unused room nights back to the
resort by contract for use as hotel rooms. In conjunction with the pending demolition of the existing buildings, in
accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 144 as it relates to asset abandonment, depreciation on the existing
buildings was accelerated, resulting in an additional $3,456 of depreciation in 2003. Through December 31, 2004
and 2003, costs incurred in preparing for the construction totaling $1,015 and $554, respectively, as well as the
original $900 basis in the land on which the new building will be constructed are reflected in the consolidated
balance sheets as other assets.

Insurance Recoveries

In 2003, Boykin disposed of certain assets due to water infiltration remediation activities. Property insurance
proceeds received in 2003 in excess of the net book value of the disposed assets were $913 and are recorded
within the gain (loss) on sale/disposal of assets within the consolidated financial statements. Additional property
insurance proceeds of $3,383 received in 2004 are recorded as a gain on sale/disposal of assets within the
consolidated financial statements. During 2004, Boykin received a $750 advance on its business interruption
insurance claim related to the period in which the remediation activities occurred. These proceeds are recorded as
other hotel revenues within the consolidated financial statements.

Since September 2004, Boykin’s two hotels located in Melbourne, Florida have been closed due to damage
sustained from Hurricane Frances. Boykin has recorded estimated business interruption insurance recoveries in
the amount of the loss sustained by the hotels since the storm. These estimates, totaling $1,514, are recorded as
other hotel revenues within the consolidated financial statements. Estimated property insurance recoveries totaling
$5,656 have been recorded as gain on sale/disposal of assets within the consolidated financial statements to the
extent Boykin experienced a loss on the writeoff of the damaged or destroyed assets. Included in accounts
receivable as of December 31, 2004 is $4,669 of property damage and business interruption insurance recoveries
related to these properties.




As other property insurance claims are filed for repair work done at the properties, Boykin records estimated
recoveries to offset the costs incurred, less appropriate deductibles.

Minority Interests

Minority interest in the Partnership represents the limited partners’ proportionate share of the equity in the
Partnership. Income is allocated to minority interest based on the weighted average limited partnership percentage
ownership throughout the period.

Minority interest in joint ventures represents the joint venture partners’ proportionate share of the equity in the
joint ventures. Income and losses are allocated to minority interest based on the joint venture partners' percentage
ownership throughout the period and flow of cash distributions, subject to minimum returns to the Partnership, as
defined in the joint venture agreements.

Income Taxes

Boykin qualifies as a REIT under Sections 856-860 of the Internal Revenue Code. As a REIT, Boykin generally
will not be subject to federal corporate income tax on that portion of its net income that relates to non-TRS
subsidiaries. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes has been reflected in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements for the corporate level entities.

Upen the effective date of the establishment of Boykin's TRSs, Bellboy and Hunt Valley, the subsidiaries became
subject to federal and state income taxes. Boykin’s TRSs account for income taxes in accordance with the
provisions of SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, Boykin’s
TRSs have a deferred tax asset of $10,155 and $5,735, respectively, prior to any valuation allowance, related to
the assumption of the retained deficit of Westboy as well as the net operating losses of the TRSs and their
subsidiaries. Boykin’s TRSs have recorded a 100% valuation allowance against these assets due to the uncertainty
of realization of the deferred tax asset and therefore, no provision or benefit from income taxes is reflected in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations. As of December 31, 2004, the net operating loss
carryforwards have remaining lives of 17 to 19 years.

Boykin’s earnings and profits, as defined by federal income tax law, will determine the taxability of distributions to
sharcholders. Earnings and profits will differ from income reported for financial reporting purposes primarily due
to the differences in the estimated useful lives and methods used to compute depreciation, differences in timing of
certain revenue recognition, and differences in the timing of when certain expenses are deductible for tax
purposes. For federal income tax purposes, dividends to shareholders applicable to 2004, 2003 and 2002 operating
results represented the following allocations of ordinary taxable income, qualified, return of capital, and 20%
capital gain:

Common Shares

Year Ordinary Income Return of Capital 20% Capital Gain Total

2004, N/A N/A N/A N/A
2003 — 100.0% — 100.0%
2002, e e 90.8% — 9.2% 100.0%

Preferred Shares

Year Ordinary Income ~ Qualified  Return of Capital ~ 20% Capital Gain  Total
2004 .. 89.9% 8.1% 2.0% — 100.0%
2003 . 92.9% — 7.1% — 100.0%
2002 ... 90.8% — — 9.2% 100.0%
Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is based on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the
period whereas diluted earnings per share adjusts the weighted average shares outstanding for the effect of all
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dilutive securities. For the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, the weighted average basic and
diluted common shares outstanding were as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002

BasiC . o 17,426,458 17,336,258 17,248,173
Effect of dilutive securities:

Common stock options . ........ ...l 28,213 18,332 51,523

Restricted share grants ............. ... i 98,530 115,062 83,063

Diluted ... 17,553,201 17,469,652 17,382,759

There are no adjustments to the reported amounts of income in computing diluted per share amounts.

Partnership Units/Minority Interests

A total of 2,718,256 limited partnership units (Note 8) were issued and outstanding at December 31, 2004 and
2003. The weighted average number of limited partnership units outstanding for each of the periods ended
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 was also 2,718,256.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair values are determined by using available market information and appropriate valuation methodologies.
Boykin’s principal financial instruments are cash, cash equivalents, restricted cash, accounts receivable, borrowings
against the credit facility, the term notes payable and interest rate protection instruments.

Cash, cash equivalents, restricted cash and accounts receivable, due to their short maturities, are carried at
amounts which reasonably approximate fair value. As borrowings against the credit facility (Note 5) bear interest
at variable market rates, its carrying value approximates market value at December 31, 2004.

At December 31, 2004, the fair value of the $130,000 term note payable (Note 6) approximated $105,000 versus
the carrying vaiue of $102,414 as the interest rate associated with the note exceeds market rates currently offered
for debt with similar risk factors, terms and maturities.

At December 31, 2004, the fair value of the $91,125 remaining balance of the $108,000 term loan (Note 6)
approximates the carrying value due to its short-term nature.

Boykin has adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities.” This statement requires companies to carry all derivative instruments, including embedded derivatives,
in the balance sheet at fair value. The accounting for changes in the fair value of a derivative instrument depends
on whether it has been designated and qualifies as part of a hedging relationship and, if so, on the reason for
holding it. For financial reporting purposes, the change in market value of the effective portion of an instrument
defined as a cash flow hedge flows through the other comprehensive income component of equity. All other
changes will flow through earnings.

Subject to the terms of the $108,000 term loan, Boykin is required to maintain interest rate protection on the
outstanding balance to cap the interest rate at no more than 10.25%. Changes in the fair value of the interest rate
cap are recorded through the statement of operations. The interest rate cap is with a third party and had no value
at December 31, 2004 based upon estimated market valuations. In March 2001, Boykin entered into an interest
rate swap, which fixed the overall interest rate at 7.32% on $83,000 of Boykin’s $108,000 term note. Changes in
the contract’s fair value, if applicable, were recorded through the statement of operations. The swap expired in
July 2003, and Boykin did not renew the swap or purchase a replacement instrument.

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income is defined as changes in shareholders’ equity from non-owner sources, which for Boykin
consisted of the difference between the cost basis and fair market value of its interest rate swap. For the years
ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, the difference between net income (loss) and comprehensive income
(loss) was due to the change in the market value of the swap.
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New Accounting Pronouncements

In November 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Interpretation No. 45,
“Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of
Indebtedness of Others,” which addresses the disclosure to be made by a guarantor in its interim and annual
financial statements about its obligations under guarantees. Interpretation No. 45 also requires the recognition of a
liability by a guarantor at the inception of certain guarantees. Interpretation No. 45 requires the guarantor to
recognize a liability for the non-contingent component of the guarantee, this is the obligation to stand ready to
perform in the event that specified triggering events or conditions occur. The initial measurement of this liability
is the fair value of the guarantee at inception. The recognition of the liability is required even if it is not probable
that payments will be required under the guarantee or if the guarantee was issued with a premium payment or as
part of a transaction with multiple elements. Boykin has adopted the disclosure requirements of Interpretation
No. 45 for all guarantees entered into prior to January 1, 2003. There are no guarantees which require recognition
under this Interpretation as of December 31, 2004.

In December 2002, the FASB issued Statement No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation-Transition
and Disclosure - an amendment of FASB Statement No. 123.” Statement No. 148 amends FASB Statement
No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” to provide alternative methods of transition for a
voluntary change to the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation. In
addition, Statement No. 148 ameunds the disclosure requirements of Statement No. 123 to require prominent
disclosures in both annual and interim financial statements about the method of accounting for stock-based
employee compensation and the effect of the method used on reported results. Adoption did not have a material
effect on the financial condition or results of operations of Boykin.

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,” which
addresses consolidation by business enterprises of variable interest entities. In general, a variable interest entity is
a corporation, partnership, trust, or any other legal structure used for business purposes that either (a) does not
have equity investors with voting rights or (b) has equity investors that do not provide sufficient financial
resources for the entity to support its activities. A variable interest entity often holds financial assets, including
loans or receivables, real estate or other property. A variable interest entity may be essentially passive or it may
engage in research and development or other activities on behalf of another company. The objective of
Interpretation No. 46 is not to restrict the use of variable interest entities but to improve financial reporting by
companies involved with variable interest entities. Until now, a company generally has included another entity in
its consolidated financial statements only if it controlled the entity through voting interests. Interpretation No. 46
changes that by requiring a variable interest entity to be consolidated by a company if that company is subject to
a majority of the risk of loss from the variable interest entity’s activities or is entitled to receive a majority of the
entity’s residual returns or both. The consolidation requirements of Interpretation No. 46 apply immediately to
variable interest entities created after January 31, 2003. In December 2003, the FASB issued a revised
Interpretation which modifies and clarifies various aspects of the original Interpretation. The consolidation
requirernents apply to older entities in the first fiscal year or interim period beginning after December 15, 2003 for
those entities which may be defined as special purpose entities. Certain of the disclosure requirements apply in all
financial statements issued after January 31, 2003, regardless of when the variable interest entity was established.
Boykin does not have any unconsolidated variable interest entities as of December 31, 2004.

On April 30, 2003 the FASB issued Statement No. 149 (“SFAS 149”), “Amendment of Statement 133 on
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.” SFAS 149 amends and clarifies accounting for derivative
instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts, and for hedging activities under
Statement 133. In particular, this Statement clarifies under what circumstances a contract with an initial net
investment meets the characteristic of a derivative as discussed in Statement 133 and it clarifies when a derivative
contains a financing component that warrants special reporting in the statement of cash flows. SFAS 149 is
effective for contracts entered into or modified after December 31, 2003 and for hedging relationships designated
after December 31, 2003 and is to be applied prospectively. This Statement has not had and is not expected to
have a material impact on Boykin’s financial position or results of operations.

In May 2003, the FASB issued Statement No. {50 (“SFAS 1507), “Accounting for Certain Financial
Instruments with Characteristics of Both Liabilities and Equity,” which establishes standards for how an issuer
classifies and measures certain financial instruments with characteristics of both liabilities and equity. It requires
that an issuer classify a financial instrument that is within its scope as a lability. The effective date of a portion
of the Staternent has been indefinitely postponed by the FASB. Boykin did not enter into new financial
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instruments subsequent to May 2003 which would fall within the scope of this statement. This statement has not
had and is not expected to have a material impact on our financial position or results of operations.

At December 31, 2004, Boykin had a Long-Term Incentive Plan, which is described more fully in Note 11.
Boykin has adopted the disclosure only provisions of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation,” and applies Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25 and related interpretations in
accounting for its employee share option plan. If Boykin had elected to recognize compensation costs for the
LTIP based on the fair value at the grant dates for option awards consistent with the method prescribed by SFAS

No. 123, reported amounts of net loss and loss per share would have been changed to the pro forma amounts
indicated below.

Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
Pro Forma Pro Forma Pro Forma

Net loss attributable to common shareholders .................... $(4,911) $(8,177)  $(1,480)
Stock-based employee compensation eXpense . ..............oo.. .. (126) (126) (151)

Proforma net loss attributable to common shareholders ............ $(5,037) $(8,303) $(1,631)

Proforma net loss attributable to common shareholders per share:

Basic. ... $ (029) § (048) $ (0.09)
Diluted . ... $ (0.29) §$ (0.48) $ (0.09)

In December 2004, the FASB issued revised SFAS No. 123 (Statement 123(R)), Share-Based Payment
(“SFAS No. 123R”). SFAS No. 123R requires all entities to recognize the fair value of share-based payment
awards (stock compensation) classified in equity, unless they are unable to reasonably estimate the fair value of
the award. Boykin will adopt the provisions of SFAS No. 123R on July I, 2005, using the modified prospective
approach permitted by the literature. This approach requires that any unvested portion of options at the time of
adoption be expensed in the earnings statement over the remaining service period of those options. Boykin expects
adoption of this approach to result in an immaterial impact on net income.

In December 2004, the FASB decided to defer the issuance of their final standard on earnings per share

(EPS) entitled “Earnings per Share ~ an Amendment to FAS 128.” The final standard will be effective in 2005
and will require retrospective application for all prior periods presented. The significant proposed changes to the
EPS computation are changes to the treasury stock method and contingent share guidance for computing year-to-
date diluted EPS, removal of the ability to overcome the presumption of share settlement when computing
diluted EPS when there is a choice of share or cash settlement and inclusion of mandatorily convertible securities

in basic EPS. Boykin is currently evaluating the proposed provisions of this amendment to determine the impact
on its consolidated financial statements.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and

the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year financial statements to conform with the current year
presentation.
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3. Hotel Transactions:

The following table summarizes Boykin's hotel acquisition and dispositions in 2004, 2003 and 2002:

Percentage

Acquisition/ Number of  Purchase/ owned by
Hotel Location Disposition Date Rooms Sale Price  Partnership Manager
Acquisition:
Radisson Suite Beach Resort Marco Island, FL August 2003 233 $27,250 100% BMC
Dispositions:
Ramada Inn Bellevue Center Bellevue. WA November 2004 208 $ 9,800 100% BMC
Radisson Hotel Mount Laurel Mount Laurel, NJ September 2004 283 $14,250 100% BMC
Holiday Inn Minneapolis West Minneapolis, MN August 2004 196 $ 9,325 91% BMC
Marriott’s Hunt Valley Inn Hunt Valley, MD July 2004 392 $31,000 91%  Davidson
Doubletree Portland Downtown Portland, OR March 2004 235 $22,000 100% BMC
Doubletree Spokane Valley Spokane, WA August 2003 237 $ 5,400 100% Hilwon
Springtield Springfield, OR July 2003 234 $ 6,500 100% Hilton
Holiday Inn Lake Norman Charlotte, NC June 2003 119 $ 2,550 100% BMC
Hampton Inn Lake Norman Charlotte, NC February 2003 117 $ 3.700 100% BMC
Knoxville Hilton Knoxville, TN February 2003 317 $11,500 100% BMC

The operating results of the Radisson Suite Beach Resort are included in the consolidated operating results of
Boykin starting on the date of acquisition.

4. Discontinued Operations:

The provisions of SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” require
that hotels sold or held for sale be treated as discontinued operations. Boykin considers assets to be “held for
sale” when they are under contract, significant non-refundable deposits have been made by the potential buyer
and the assets are immediately available to be sold.

During 2004, Boykin disposed of the Doubletree Portland Downtown, Marriott’s Hunt Valley Inn, the Holiday
Inn Minneapolis West, the Radisson Hotel Mount Laurel and the Ramada Inn Bellevue Center for aggregate
proceeds of $86,375. The proceeds from the acquisition of the Doubletree Portland Downtown by the City of
Portland through its power of eminent domain, were used to reduce the outstanding balance on the $130,000 term
loan and for general corporate purposes. The proceeds from the sales of Marriott’s Hunt Valley Inn and the
Holiday Inn Minneapolis West were used to reduce the outstanding balance on the credit facility. The proceeds
from the sales of the Radisson Hotel Mount Laurel and the Ramada Inn Bellevue Center were used to reduce
the outstanding balance on the credit facility and for general corporate purposes.

During 2003, Boykin sold the Knoxville Hilton, the Hampton Inn Lake Norman, the Holiday Inn Lake Norman,
a hotel in Springfield, Oregon and the Doubletree Spokane Valley for aggregate proceeds of $29,650. The net
proceeds of the Knoxville Hilton, Hampton Inn Lake Norman and Holiday Inn Lake Norman were applied to
the $108,000 term loan in connection with a release of the assets as security for the loan. Net proceeds from the
sale of the Springfield hotel and the Doubletree Spokane Valley were used to pay off outstanding amounts on
Boykin’s previously existing credit facility as well as for general corporate purposes,

The assets and liabilities of the five properties sold in 2004 as of December 31, 2003 and the results of operations
of the properties through the 2004 disposal/sale date and for years ended December 31, 2003, and 2002, have
been reclassified as discontinued operations in the accompanying financial statements. The operating results of the
five properties sold during 2003 have also been reclassified as discontinued operations in the accompanying
financial statements. Interest expense and deferred loan costs have been attributed to the properties, as applicable,
based upon the term loan amounts that were repaid with the proceeds of the sales.
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The results of operations and the financial position related to the applicable properties were as follows:
Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002

Fease revemUE ... o\ttt e $ —  $ — § 2,845
Hotel revenues ... i e e e e 20,169 44,745 50,258
Hote!l operating expenses .. ...t (16,281)  (35,422)  (38,153)
Management fees torelated party .......... ... . i (261) (419) (598)
Management fees~other.... ... ... ... . i (193) (672) (798)
Property taxes, insurance and other . .......... ... .. ... . ... (1,076) (2,674) (2,979)
Other EXPeRSES . .. vttt e e e (71) (35) (96)
Interest fMCOME . . ..ottt ettt e et et e e e 14 18 17
Other INCOME . ...t e e e 40 42 564
Interest eXpense ... ... ...t e (200) (1,307) (1,943)
Real estate related depreciation and amortization ................. (2,602) (5,632) (6,797)
Impairment of real estate ......... ... ..o (4,300) (2,800) —
Amortization of deferred financing costs ............... .. ..., (87) (200) (77
Minority interest in {(earnings) loss of joint ventures............... (2,095) 1,235 —
Gain (loss) on sale of individual assets .......................... 15 550 (2)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations .. .................. $ (6928) $ (2,571) $ 2,241
December 31,

2003

Accounts receivable, net ... .. e $ 879
INVENTOTIES « . o oot e 229
L@ 18 1 T3 gl 1111 - PP 669
Deferred financing Costs, NET ... ..ottt e 158
Investment in hotel properties, net . ... ... i e 80,849
TOtal ASSCLS .« v v vttt e $82,784
Accounts payable and accrued eXpenses .. .. ... e $ 2,574
Accounts payable to related party . . ... . . e 118
Term notes payable . ... . 16,870
MINOTItY INTETEST . o\ oot ottt et et e e e e e e 210
Total HabilIties. . ..ot ottt e $19,772

5. Credit Facility:

In October 2003, Boykin entered into a new secured, revolving credit facility with a financial institution which
enabled Boykin to borrow up to $78,000, subject to borrowing base and loan-to-value limitations. The credit
facility was reduced from $78,000 to $60,000 in 2004. Boykin had borrowed $6,446 and $71,945 as of
December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The facility expires in October 2006 and bears interest at a floating
rate of LIBOR plus 3.75% (6.19% at December 31, 2004). Boykin is required to pay a fee of 0.375% on the
unused portion of the credit facility. The new facility is secured by five hotel properties with a net carrying value
of $53,635 at December 31, 2004 and seven hotel properties with a carrying value of $90,518 at December 31,
2003.

The credit facility requires Boykin, among other things, to maintain a minimum net worth, a coverage ratio of
EBITDA to debt service, a coverage ratio of EBITDA to debt service and fixed charges and a maximum leverage
ratio. Further, Boykin is required to maintain the franchise agreement at each hotel and to maintain its REIT
status. The terms of the agreement provide certain restrictions on common share dividends; however, Boykin is
entitled to distribute sufficient dividends to maintain its REIT status. Boykin was in compliance with its covenants
at December 31, 2004.
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6. Term Notes Payable:

Red Lion Inns Operating L.P. (“OLP”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Partnership, has a $130,000 term loan
agreement that expires in June 2023 and may be prepaid without penalty after May 21, 2008. The outstanding
balance as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 was $102,414 and $122,597, respectively. The loan bears interest at a
fixed rate of 6.9% until May 2008, and at a new fixed rate to be determined thereafter. The loan was secured by
six Doubletree hotels with a net carrying value of $189,333 at December 31, 2004 and seven Doubletree hotels
with a net carrying value of $209,123 at December 31, 2003. The loan requires principal repayments based on a
25-year amortization schedule. Under covenants in the loan agreemnent, assets of OLP are not available to pay the
creditors of any other Boykin entity, except to the extent of permitted cash distributions from OLP to Boykin.
Likewise, the assets of other Boykin entities are not available to pay the creditors of OLP. The loan agreement
also requires OLP to hold funds in escrow for the payment of capital expenditures, insurance and real estate taxes
and requires OLP to maintain certain financial reporting requirements. OLP was in compliance with these
requirements at December 31, 2004 and 2003.

Boykin Holding, LLC (“BHC”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Partnership, has a $108,000 term loan
agreement. In connection with the sale of the Knoxville Hilton, the Hampton Inn Lake Norman and the Holiday
Inn Lake Norman in 2003, the loan balance was reduced to $91,125. The loan had an initial maturity date of
July 2003. Boykin exercised its options to extend the maturity date to July 2005. As of December 31, 2004 and
2003, the loan was secured by six hotel properties with a net carrying value of $65,916 and $61,273, respectively.
The term loan bears interest at a rate that fluctuates at LIBOR plus 2.35% (4.63% at December 31, 2004).
Under covenants in the loan agreement, assets of BHC are not available to pay the creditors of any other Boykin
entity, except to the extent of permitted cash distributions from BHC to Boykin. Likewise, the assets of other
entities are not available to pay the creditors of BHC, The loan agreement also requires BHC to hold funds in
escrow for the payment of capital expenditures, insurance, interest and real estate taxes and requires BHC to
maintain certain financial reporting requirements. BHC was in compliance with these requirements at

December 31, 2004 and 2003.

In 2001, the Partnership entered into an interest rate swap which fixed the overall interest rate at 7.32% on
$83,000 of debt designated to BHC's $108,000 term note. The swap expired in July 2003, and Boykin did not
renew the swap or purchase a replacement instrument. BHC also had interest rate protection on the remaining
$25,000 original principal to cap the overall loan interest rate at no more than 10.25%. The initial cap matured in
July 2003, at which time BHC purchased interest rate protection on the entire outstanding balance of $91,125, to
cap the interest rate at no more than 10.25% for a period of one year. In conjunction with the extension of the
maturity date of the loan to July 2005, BHC purchased another one-year cap. The cap had no value at
December 31, 2004.

Boykin previously had an outstanding term loan which had an original balance of $45,000 and was secured by
three hotel properties. Boykin used a portion of the net proceeds from the preferred stock offering in October
2002 (Note 7) to reduce the outstanding loan balance to $41,967. The loan bore interest at a rate that fluctuated
at LIBOR plus 2.0% to LIBOR plus 4.0%. In October 2003, Boykin used a portion of the proceeds from the new
credit facility to repay the entire outstanding balance of $41,967.

In 2003, White Sand Villas Development LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Bellboy, closed on a $23,300
construction loan with a bank. The loan, which had an outstanding balance of $13,222 at December 31, 2003,
required principal payments based upon the closing of White Sand Villas unit sales and was repaid during the
first quarter of 2004, The loan bore interest at a rate that fluctuated at LIBOR plus 2.50%.

As a part of normal business activities, Boykin issues letters of credit through major banking institutions as
required by certain debt and insurance agreements. As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, there were no letters of
credit outstanding. As of December 31, 2004, Boykin has not entered into any significant other off-balance sheet
financing arrangements.




Maturities of long-term debt at December 31, 2004 were as follows:

2005 e $ 95,010
2006 . o 4,166
2007 L 4,448
2008 L 4,788
20000 . . 5,134
2010 and thereafter ... .. . e e 79,993

$193,539

7. Description of Capital Shares:

Common Shares

Holders of Boykin’s common shares are entitled to receive dividends, as and if declared by the Board of
Directors, out of funds legally available therefore. The holders of common shares, upon any liquidation,
dissolution or winding-up of Boykin, are entitled to share ratably in any assets remaining after payment in full of
all liabilities of Boykin and all preferences of the holders of any outstanding preferred shares. The common shares
possess ordinary voting rights, each share entitling the holder thereof to one vote. Holders of common shares do
not have cumulative voting rights in the election of directors and do not have preemptive rights.

Preferred Shares

The Board of Directors is authorized to provide for the issuance of two classes of preferred shares, each in one or
more series, to establish the number of shares in each series and to fix the designation, powers, preferences and
rights (other than voting rights) of each series and the qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereon. Because
the Board of Directors has the power to establish the preferences and rights of each series of preferred shares, the
Board of Directors may afford the holders of any series of preferred shares preferences, powers and rights. The
issuance of preferred shares could have the effect of delaying or preventing a change in control of Boykin. As a
result of the preferred offering in October 2002 as discussed below, there were 181,000 preferred shares issued
and outstanding at December 31, 2004 and 2003.

In October 2002, Boykin completed an underwritten public offering of 1,800,000 preferred depositary shares. Each
depositary share represents a 1/10 interest in one share of Boykin’s 10'2% Class A Cumulative Preferred Shares,
Series 2002-A, and has a liquidation preference of $25 per share. Dividends on the depositary shares are payable
quarterly, upon authorization by the Board of Directors, beginning on January 15, 2003 at an annual rate of
$2.625 per depositary share and are senior to the common shares. The shares are listed and traded on the New
York Stock Exchange. The shares do not have a stated maturity and are not subject to any sinking fund or
mandatory redemption provisions., Net proceeds from the offering were used to repay the outstanding balance on
the previously existing credit facility and pay down $3,033 on the previously existing $45,000 term note (Note 6).
An additional 10,000 depositary shares were later issued to cover over-allotments.

8. Limited Partnership Interests:

Pursuant to the Partnership Agreement, the minority interest limited partners of the Partnership have exchange
rights which enable them to cause the Partnership to pay cash for their interests in the Partnership or, at Boykin’s
election, to exchange common shares for such interests. The exchange rights may be exercised in whole or in
part. As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, there were 2,718,256 minority interest limited partnership units
outstanding. The number of shares issuable upon exercise of the exchange rights will be adjusted upon the
occurrence of stock splits, mergers, consolidations or similar pro rata share transactions, which otherwise would
have the effect of diluting the ownership interests of the limited partners or the shareholders of Boykin.

Boykin owns a corresponding Series A Preferred equity interest in the Partnership that entitles it to income and
distributions in amounts equal to the dividends payable on the Series A Preferred shares discussed in Note 7.

9, Joint Venture with AEW:

In February 1999, Boykin formed a joint venture with AEW. Pursuant to the joint venture agreement, AEW has
contributed $22,396 of equity capital into the joint venture. Boykin has contributed $7,465, has served as the
operating partner of the joint venture for which it receives compensation from the joint venture, and has the right
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to receive incentive returns based on the performance of acquired assets. Because of the non-controlling nature of
its ownership interest in the joint venture, Boykin accounts for its investment utilizing the equity method.

In August 1999, the Boykin/AEW venture partnered with a private investor, forming Boykin Chicago, L.L.C., in
which Boykin/AEW has a 75% interest. Boykin Chicago, L.L.C. purchased Hotel 71, located in Chicago, Illinois
for cash consideration of $48,000. The acquisition was accounted for as a purchase and was funded with proceeds
from a $30,000 secured mortgage note with the remainder in cash from the partners. In September 2000, Boykin
purchased the 25% interest in Boykin Chicago, L.L.C. from the private investor for $6,270, thereby increasing
Boykin’s total ownership interest in the hotel from 18.75% to 43.75%. A subsidiary of BMC leased the property
pursuant to a long-term percentage lease agreement, which was terminated on June 30, 2001. Subsequently, a
TRS of Boykin Chicago, L.L.C. entered into & management agreement with the subsidiary of BMC to manage
the property.

10. Percentage Lease Agreements:

Rent due under percentage leases is the greater of minimum rent, as defined, or percentage rent. Percentage rent
applicable to room and other hotel revenues varies by lease and is calculated by multiplying fixed percentages by
the total amounts of such revenues over specified threshold amounts. Both the minimum rent and the revenue
thresholds used in computing percentage reats applicable to room and other hotel revenues are subject to annual
adjustments based on increases in the United States Consumer Price Index (“CPI"). Effective January 1, 2002,
the majority of Boykin's hotels were leased to consolidated subsidiaries under the TRS structure (Note 1).

Percentage lease revenues related to the hotel owned as of December 31, 2004 that is not operated under the
TRS structure were $2,045, $1,958 and $1,885 respectively, for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and
2002, of which approximately $673, $611 and $569, respectively, was in excess of minimum rent. As of
December 31, 2004, the lease related to this hotel has a noncancelable remaining term of approximately three
years, subject to earlier termination on the occurrence of certain contingencies, as defined. The net book value of
the hotel subject to this lease was $7,739 and $7,997 as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Future
minimum rentals (excluding future CPI increases) to be received by Boykin from this lease for each of the years
in the period 2005 to 2007 are as follows:

2005 o e e $1,418
2006 - . e 1,418
2007 o e 1,209

$4,045

11. Share Compensation Plans:

Boykin has a Long-Term Incentive Plan (“LTIP") which provides for the granting to officers and eligible
employees of incentive or nonqualified share options, restricted shares, deferred shares, share purchase rights and
share appreciation rights in tandem with options, or any combination thereof. Boykin has reserved 1,700,000
common shares for issuance under the LTIP.




Share Option Plan

The following summarizes information related to share option activity in 2004, 2003 and 2002:
Weighted Average Per

Number of Options Share Exercise Price
QOutstanding at January 1,2002 ............................. 594,139 $12.84
Options granted (officers and employees) ................... 353,000 $ 8.30
Options exercised/forfeited/expired . .............. ... ... .. (108,000) $10.48
QOuistanding at December 31,2002 .......................... 839,139 $11.24

Options granted ......... ..ttt — —
Outstanding at December 31,2003 .. ...... ... .............. 839,139 $11.24
Options granted ......... . i — —
Options exercised/forfeited/expired . ....................... — —

Outstanding at December 31,2004 .......................... 839,139 $11.24

Options exercised/forfeited/expired . ....................... —

Weighted Average Exercisable Options

Options Fair Value of Weighted Average Per
Xe_a_[ Granted Options Granted  Options Outstanding Share Exercise Price
2004 ... — — 613,006 $12.21
2003 . — — 518,539 $12.87
2002 ... 353,000 $1.05 422,405 $13.72
As of December 31, 2004, information related to outstanding options was as follows:
Total Options Exercisable Options
Weighted Average Weighted Average Weighted Average
Range of Options Per Share Remaining Options Per Share
Exercise Prices Outstanding - Exercise Price Contractual Life Outstanding Exercise Price
$7.295-8840................. 479,000 $ 8.00 7.0 years 272,667 $ 7.72
$10.938 -8$13.75 .. ... ... 235,139 $12.36 4.5 years 215,339 $12.49
$20.00 -$25.626 . .............. 125,000 $21.52 2.1 years 125,000 $21.52
839,139 $11.24 5.6 years 613,006 $12.21

Options vest over various periods ranging from one to nine years from the date of grant. In addition, certain
outstanding options are also subject to vesting based upon financial performance targets. The term of each option
granted will not exceed ten years from date of grant, and the exercise price may not be less than 100% of the fair
market value of Boykin’s common shares on the grant date.

The fair value of employee share options used to compute the pro forma amounts of net income (loss) and basic
earnings per share presented in Note 2 was estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the
following weighted average assumptions:

Options Issued In:

w04 2003 2002
Dividend yield ... ... . — — 10.00%
Expected volatility .. ...t e — — 34.30%
Risk-free interest rate .. ... it e — — 4.40%
Expected holding period . ..., .. — — 5.0 years




Restricted Share Grant Plan

The following table summarizes Boykin's restricted share grant activity related to its officers, eligible emplovees
and non-employee directors.

2004 2003
Restricted shares outstanding - beginning of year .......... ... ... . ... ... 288,740 219,352
New share grants . . ... ... o i e 174,789 132,000
Shares cancelled ... ... e — (3,481)
SHATES VeStEd . . .t e (128,745) (59.131)
Restricted shares outstanding-end of year ....... ... ... i 334,784 288,740

The restricted shares vest over various periods ranging from one to five years from the date of grant. The value of
shares granted has been calculated based on the average of the high and low share price on the date of grant and
is being amortized as compensation expense over the respective vesting periods. For the years ended

December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, Boykin's compensation expense related to these restricted shares was $1,009,
$756 and $992, respectively. As of December 31, 2004, the unearned compensation related to restricted share
grants was $2,008 and has been classified as a component of shareholders’ equity in the accompanying balance
sheet.

12. Employee Benefit Plans:

Boykin maintains two employee benefit plans, the Boykin Lodging Company Money Purchase Pension Plan and
the Boykin Lodging Company Profit Sharing Plan. Both plans are defined contribution plans which were
established to provide retirement benefits to eligible employees. Boykin’s contributions to these plans for the years
ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 totaled $292, $290 and $219, respectively.

13. Commitments:

Portions of land related to five of the hotels owned by Boykin as of December 31, 2004 are subject to land leases
which expire at various dates through 2068. All leases require minimum annual rentals, and one lease requires
percentage rent based on hotel revenues, The other four Jeases are adjusted for increases in CPI every one to ten
years. Rental expense charged to operations related to these leases for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003
and 2002 was $877, $889 and $942, respectively for continuing operations. Rental expense charged to operations
related to discontinued operations for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 totaled $6, $31 and
$435, respectively.

Boykin entered into a lease agreement which expires in January 2008 for the office space currently used by
Boykin and BMC and its subsidiaries. Pursuant to a shared services and office space agreement, BMC reimburses
Boykin for its proportionate share of the cost of the space used under the lease agreement. Boykin's expense
charged to operations related to its proportionate share of the utilized space for the years ended December 31,
2004, 2003 and 2002 was $71, $75 and $64, respectively. Amounts reimbursed from BMC for the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 was $146, $147 and $119, respectively.

As a part of normal operations, Boykin has numerous operating leases related to the hotels in its portfolio or its
corporate office. Additionally, as a part of ongoing capital improvement projects at the hotels and corporate
offices, purchase obligations are often entered into.

Boykin’s annual obligations to make future minimum payments under the land lease agreements (excluding future
CPI increases), the office space lease, other operating leases and purchase obligations which are not required to
be reflected in the balance sheet as of December 31, 2004 are as follows:

2005 L $ 3,999
2006 . 4o e e e e 1,075
200 o 932
2008 . e e e e s 624
2000 e e 536
2010 and thereafter . ... ... e 22,677




In addition to the amounts disclosed above, as of December 31, 2004 Boykin has also entered into various
franchise, management and other lease agreements that are contingent upon future results of operations of the
hotels in its portfolio and provide for potential termination fees dependent upon the timing and method of
termination of such agreements.

Upon purchasing the Doubletree Kansas City in 1997, Boykin assumed certain obligations related to a tax
increment financing (“TIF”). The hotel is subject to a lease (the “Lease’) with the City of Kansas City (the
“City”), which provides for rent payments equal to the debt service related to the Taxable Lease Revenue Bonds
(Municipal Auditorium and the 13th and Wyandotte Hotel Redevelopment Projects), Series 1996 (the “Bonds™),
issued by the Land Clearance for Redevelopment Authority of Kansas City, Missouri (the “Authority”), offset by
incremental tax and parking revenues received by the City which are generated by the project, including real
estate tax revenues and special assessments paid by the hotel and parking rental payments made by the hotel plus
a credit enhancement fee. Revenues received by the City have, and are expected to continue to, fully offset rent
payments which would otherwise be due pursuant to the Lease other than the credit enhancement fee. The
present value of the fixed and determinable payments to be made pursuant to a special assessment, credit
enhancement fees and a garage management agreement have been reflected as liabilities totaling $6,077 and
$6,106 in Boykin’s financial statements as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, in accordance with the
provisions of Emerging Issues Task Force 91-10, “Accounting for Special Assessments and Tax Increment
Financing Entities.”

The City and the Authority have the right, commencing in 2006 and upon no less than 12 months notice, to
require Boykin Kansas City LLC, owner of the hotel and wholly-owned subsidiary of the Partnership, to purchase
certain property (including the land under the hotel and parking areas) at a price based primarily on the
redemption price of the Bonds (the “Purchase”). The balance on the Bonds as of December 31, 2004 was
$14,120. Under certain circumstances, this Purchase may be delayed by Boykin Kansas City LLC for up to two
years. In the event the City requires Boykin Kansas City LLC to complete the Purchase and redeem the Bonds,
the City has indicated that it will continue to make the incremental tax revenues available to support a
refinancing of the Bonds. The hotel serves as collateral for the Lease and certain other obligations of Boykin
Kansas City LLC.

14. Related Party Transactions:
The Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Boykin is the majority shareholder of BMC.

As a result of the TRS transaction discussed in Note 1, Boykin acquired 16 subsidiaries of BMC whose primary
assets were leasehold interests in 25 hotel properties owned by Boykin for consideration comprised of 1,427,142
limited partnership units valued at approximately $11,400 (based upon the average closing price of the common
shares for the five-day period prior to the closing of the transaction), and the assumption of $1,600 of working
capital liabilities in éxcess of assets relating to Westboy. In connection with these events, Boykin’s Board of
Directors established a special committee (the “Special Committee™), consisting only of independent directors, to
evaluate and negotiate the transactions with BMC. In determining the amount of the consideration paid to BMC,
the Special Committee considered, among other things, the expected profitability of the entities acquired offset by
the expected costs of management fees and income taxes to be incurred by the TRS following the transaction.
The Special Committee also took into account the benefits of expected operational efficiencies as well as the
elimination of potential lease termination fees upon the sale of hotels. The Special Committee was advised by
independent counsel and financial advisors. Boykin believes that the methodology used to determine the
consideration paid to BMC was reasonable.

Also in conjunction with the TRS transaction, effective January 1, 2002, BMC assumed management of 16 of the
consolidated properties in which Boykin owned an interest. Additionally, during October 2002, BMC assumed
management of the Doubletree Kansas City and the Pink Shell Beach Resort after Boykin terminated the
previously existing management agreements with Interstate Hotels and Resorts (“Interstate”). During 2003,
BMC assumed management of seven other hotels in conjunction with the Hilton Modification Agreement as
discussed in Note | and assumed management of the Holiday Inn Minneapolis West after Boykin terminated the
previously existing management agreement with Interstate. Management fees earned by BMC related to the
continuing operations of these hotels during the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 totaled $5,801,
$4,339 and $3,741, respectively. Management fees earned by BMC related to discontinued operations totaled
$261, $419 and $598 for 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. An additional $25 and $12 was paid during 2004 and
2003, respectively, for other services provided pursuant to the management agreements.
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The management agreements between Boykin and BMC were approved by the independent members of Boykin’s
Board of Directors.

As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, Boykin had related party payables to BMC related to continuing operations
of $1,063 and $873, primarily related to management fees and reimbursements of expenses on behalf of the hotel
properties.

Boykin Chicago L.L.C. has entered into a management agreement with a wholly-owned subsidiary of BMC to
manage Hotel 71. Management and other fees earned by the subsidiary was $483, $446 and $75 during 2004,
2003 and 2002, respectively. An additional $1 was paid for other services provided pursuant to the management
agreement for each of the years ended 2004 and 2003. During 2004 and 2003, fees of $1 and $12 were paid w0 2
wholly-owned subsidiary of BMC for design services related to capital improvements at the hotel.

During the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, Boykin paid a wholly-owned subsidiary of BMC
$329, $630 and $192, respectively, for design and project management services and for reimbursement of expenses
related to capital improvements at its consolidated hotels. During 2001, a subsidiary of BMC sold a portion of its
business to an unrelated third party. A portion of the sales price is payable contingent upon future revenues of the
business, including revenues from Boykin. During 2004, 2003 and 2002, an additional $53, $59 and $78 of sales
proceeds was provided to BMC as a result of purchases made by Boykin.

Fees paid to BMC and its subsidiaries for services which are not subject to management agreements are at
market prices as determined by the independent members of the Board of Directors, The Board’s market price
determinations are based from time to time on market checks performed by management and outside consultants,
comparative information provided by BMC and industry publications.

Boykin believes that the methodologies used for determining amounts to be paid to BMC and its subsidiaries for
management and other services are reasonable.

15. Statements of Cash Flows, Supplemental Disclosures:

As of both December 31, 2004 and 2003, there were $1,188 of dividends and Partnership distributions which were
declared but not paid.

Interest paid during the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002 was $13,922, $16,743 and $20,240,
respectively.

16. Quarterly Operating Results (Unaudited):

Boykin’s unaudited consolidated quarterly operating data for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003
follows. In the opinion of management, all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring accruals) necessary for a
fair presentation of quarterly results have been reflected in the data. Quarterly operating results are not necessarily
indicative of the results to be achieved in succeeding quarters or years.

For the 2004 Quarter Ended
March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31

TOtal TEVENMUES + .\ v e et ettt e $54.627  §56,563 $58,902 $50,292
Loss attributable to common shareholders before discontinued

OPEIALIONS .« o oot (1.546) (910) (181) (4,798)
Discontinued operations, net of minority interest ............. (2,964) 343 4912 43
Net income (loss) attributable to common shareholders.. ... .. (4,510) (367) 4,721 (4,755)

Loss attributable to common shareholders before discontinued
operations per share:

Basic... ... (0.09) (0.05) (0.01) (0.28)

Diluted ... ... (0.09) (0.05) (0.01) (0.28)
Net income (loss) attributable to common shareholders per

share:

Basic... ... (0.26) (0.02) 0.27 (0.27)

Diluted . ..o e (0.26) (0.02) 0.27 (0.27)

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding
(in thousands):
Basic. ... 17,397 17,412 17,447 17,450
Diluted ... ..o 17,574 17,446 17,529 17,587




Total revenues .. ...

Loss attributable to common shareholders before discontinued

OPETALIONS . v ¢ vttt ettt et et ettt et e
Discontinued operations, net of minority interest .............

Net loss attributable to common shareholders ...............

Loss attributable to common shareholders before discontinued
operations per share:

BasiC . . o
Diluted .. ...

Net loss attributable to common shareholders per share:

Basic. ... .

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding
(in thousands):

BasiC . . o

17. Subsequent Event:

For the 20603 Quarter Ended

March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
$55,638  $58,940 $61,721 $55,256
(2,260)  (1,975) (156) (2,256)
(466) 345 (21) (1,388)
(2,726) (1,630) (177) (3,644)
(0.13)  (0.11) (0.01) (0.13)
(0.13)  (0.11) (0.01) (0.13)
(0.16) (0.09) (0.01) (0.21)
(0.16)  (0.09) (0.01) (0.21)
17,317 17,339 17,344 17,344
17,413 17,420 17,445 17,509

During February 2005, the two low-rise buildings at the Pink Shell Beach Resort & Spa, were demolished to

make way for the new Captiva Villas tower.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Members of
Bovkin/ AEW, LLC and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Boykin/ AEW, LLC and Subsidiaries
(“Boykin/AEW”) as of December 31, 2004, and the related consolidated statements of operations, members’
equity and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Boykin/AEW as of December 31, 2004, and the results of their operations and their cash
flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a
whole. Schedule 11T is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic
financial statements, This schedule has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole.

/s!/ GRANT THORNTON LLP

Cleveland, Ohio
March 1, 2005




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Members of
Boykin/AEW, LLC and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Boykin/AEW, ILLC and Subsidiaries
(“Boykin/ AEW”) as of December 31, 2003, and the related consolidated statements of operations, members’
equity, and cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2003. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Boykin/AEW as of December 31, 2003, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the
two years in the period ended December 31, 2003, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Cleveland, Ohio
March 12, 2004
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BOYKIN/AEW, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2004 AND 2003

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)

ASSETS
Investment in hotel Property. ... ... o e
Accumulated depreciation. .. ... ... . e

Investment in hotel Property ~net .. ... iii it
Cash and cash equivalents .. ... .o e
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $13 as of December 31,2003 ..................
Deferred eXpenses — MEt. .. ...ttt ettt e e e
OTNET BSSELS . oo i ettt e et e e

LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS’ EQUITY

Mortgage note payable ... ... ...
Accounts payable and accrued @XPenses .. ... e
Minority interest in joint venture . ... ... . it e
MEMBERS’ EQUITY

Contributed capital ... ... e e
Distributions in excess of Income. . ... i s

Total members” equity . ... ... . ot

See notes to consolidated financial statements.




BOYKIN/AEW, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004, 2003 AND 2002

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)

2004 2003 2002
Revenues:
Hotel revenues:
RIS« oot $14,131  $12,929 $ 8,629
Food and beverage ...... ... .. 973 1,301 1,167
OtheT e 989 712 253
Total TEVEIUES . . o .ot 16,093 14,942 10,049
Expenses:
Hotel operating expenses:
ROOINS ..o 4,129 3,475 2,562
Food and beverage ...t 894 1,378 1,329
Other .o e 387 338 213
General and administrative .. ..... ... .. . 1,783 1,258 1,240
Marketing and franchise. ........ ... . .. 1,785 1,862 1,945
Utilities and maintenance . .........uuitiemne et 1,720 1,525 1,463
Management fees —related party ... ... i i 483 446 75
Total hotel operating eXpenses. ... ..ottt 11,181 10,282 8,827
Property taxes and insurance and other ............ ... ... ... ... ... ..... 1,514 1,054 1,188
Real estate related depreciation and amortization. . ........................ 3,102 3,099 1,938
Asset management fees . ... ... 196 191 172
Total Operating EXPENSES . . v« vut ittt ettt e 15,993 14,626 12,125
Operating income (10SS) .. ...ttt e 100 316 (2,076)
Investment income and Other ....... .. ... . it 35 14 26
Interest exXpense. . ..o e (1,760)  (1,716)  (1,648)
Amortization of deferred financing costs .......... ... ... ... ... o i (167) (277) (334)
Other amortization .......... ottt e (122) (5) —
Minority interest in loss of joint venture ............ ..o, 475 414 1,031
Loss before loss on disposal of assets ............. ... i i (1,439)  (1,254)  (3,001)
Loss on disposal of assets. . ... ) (5) (107)
Nt 08 oo $(1,440) $(1,259) $(3,108)

See notes to consolidated financial statements.




BOYKIN/AEW, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF MEMBERS’ EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004, 2003 AND 2002

{AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)

Distributions
Contributed in Excess
Capital of Income Total

Balance at Janwary 1, 2002 ... ..o e $20,390 $(2,526)  $17,%64
Capital contributions ........... o i e 7,511 — 7,511
Distributions paid to members . ..........oiiiiii i — (246) (246)
....................................................... — (3,108) (3,108)

Balance at December 31,2002 . ...t 27,901 (5,880) 22,021
Capital contributions ........... .o 825 — 825
Distributions paid to members .......... .. i e — (187) (187)
........................................................ — (1,259) (1,259)

Balance at December 31, 2003 ........... . . i 28,726 (7,326) 21,400
Capital comtributions ......... .o 750 — 750
Distributions paid to members ... ... . i — (225) (225)
........................................................ — (1,440)  (1,440)

Balance at December 31, 2004 ... ... . ... o $29.476 $(8,991)  $20485

See notes to consolidated financial statements.




BOYKIN/AEW, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004, 2003 AND 2002

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)

2004 2003 2002
Cash flows from operating activities:
Nt 088 . oottt $(1,440) $(1,259) $(3,108)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash flow provided by (used in)
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization. ..ottt 3,391 3,381 2,272
Loss on disposal of assets. .. ...t e 1 5 107
MINOTity INtEIESE L . ottt ettt et e e (475) (414)  (1,031)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities -
Accounts receivable ... ... e 478 (59) (168)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses ............ .. (291) (401) 273
Other .. e e 2 21 (298)
Net cash flow provided by (used in) operating activities...................... 1,666 1,274 (1,953)
Cash flows from investing activities:

Improvements and additions to hotel property, net......................... (614)  (1,946) (16,828)
Net cash flow used in investing activities. . . .......covvetinn e, (614) (1,946) (16,828)
Cash flows from financing activities:

Distributions to members . ....... ... (225) (187) (246)

Borrowings of term note. ... ... —_ 1,344 6,656

Payment of term note. .. .. ... ot (1,120) {764) —

Payment of deferred financing costs .. ........... . i (131) — {100)

Net contributions from joint venture partner.......................... e 175 212 2,432

Capital contributionS. . ...\ttt e 750 825 7,511
Net cash flow provided by financing activities. ......... ... ... . v, (551) 1,430 16,253
Net change in cash and cash equivalents................................... 501 758 (2,528)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year ................... ... .. ..., 1,145 387 2,915
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year . ......... ... ... i, $1646 $ 1,145 § 387

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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BOYKIN/AEW, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004, 2003 AND 2002

(DOLLAR AMOQUNTS IN THOUSANDS)

1. Background:

In February 1999, Boykin Lodging Company (“Boykin”), a publicly held real estate investment trust (“REIT”),
through its operating partnership Boykin Hotel Properties, L.P., formed a joint venture with AEW Partners 111,
L.P. (“AEW™), an investment partnership managed by AEW Capital Management, L.P., a Boston-based real
estate investment firm. The joint venture, Boykin/ AEW, LLC (“Baykin/AEW™), is owned 75% by AEW while
Boykin owns the remaining 25% interest.

In August 1999, Boykin/AEW partnered with a private investor forming Boykin Chicago, L.L.C. (“Boykin
Chicago”), in which Boykin/AEW has a 75% interest. Boykin Chicago purchased the 421-room Executive Plaza
hotel located in Chicago, Illinois for cash consideration of $48,000. The acquisition was accounted for as a
purchase and was funded with proceeds from a $30,000 secured mortgage note (see Note 3) with the remainder
in cash contributions from the partners. In September 2000, Boykin purchased the remaining 25% ownership
interest in Boykin Chicago from the private investor thereby increasing Boykin’s total ownership interest in the
hotel from 18.75% to 43.75%.

Boykin Chicago has entered into a management agreement with Boykin Management Company Limited Liability
Company (“BMC™), an affiliated entity of Boykin, to manage the property.

The hotel is located at 71 East Wacker Drive, one block from Michigan Avenue in downtown Chicago and
includes such amenities as meeting space and banquet facilities. The hotel also offers valet service, a health and
fitness center and a business center.

In 2001, Boykin Chicago commenced a renovation of the hotel’s guestrooms, meeting rooms and food and
beverage facilities, During 2002, Boykin Chicago completed the guestroom portion of the renovation and renamed
the property “Hotel 717 to reflect its new position in the market as a four-star quality independent hotel. The
renovation increased the number of rooms at the property by 33 units, bringing the total number of rooms to 454.
The remaining portions of the renovation were completed in 2003,

In 2004, Boykin Chicago entered into a contract to sell Hotel 71.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

Principles of Consolidation - The accompanying consolidated financial statements of Boykin/AEW include
Boykin/ AEW, Boykin Chicago and its wholly-owned TRS, 71 E. Wacker Leasing, Inc. All material intercompany
transactions and balances have been eliminated. The results of operations contained within the consolidated
financial statements reflect all costs of Boykin/AEW doing business.

Investment in Hotel Property - Hotel property is stated at cost and is depreciated using the straight-line method
over estimated useful lives ranging from ten to 30 years for building and improvements and three to ten years for
furniture and equipment.

Investment in the hotel property as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 consisted of the following:

2004 2003

Land .......... e e e $ 9100 $ 9,100
Buildings and improvements. .. ... .. e 58,387 57,813
Furniture and equipment. . ... o 7,423 7,863
Construction {0 PIOZIESS .. ..\ttt ettt ettt e e 250 266
75,160 75,042

Less accumulated depreciation. . ... . (11,489) (8,882)

Total . $ 63,671 $66,160




Boykin Chicago reviews the hotel property for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value of the hotel property may not be recoverable. Events or circumstances that may cause a review
include, but are not limited to, adverse changes in the demand for lodging at the property due to declining
national or local economic conditions, new hotel construction in the market where the hotel is located or changes
in the expected holding period of the property. When such conditions exist, management performs an analysis to
determine if the estimated undiscounted future cash flows from operations and the proceeds from the ultimate
disposition of the hotel property exceeds its carrying value. If the estimated undiscounted future cash flows are
less than the carrying amount of the asset, an adjustment to reduce the carrying amount to the hotel property’s
estimated fair market value would be recorded and an impairment loss would be recognized. Boykin Chicago does
not believe that there are any factors or circumstances indicating impairment of its investment in the hotel
property at this time.

Cash and Cash Equivalents ~ Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash on hand and in banks, plus short-
term investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

Inventories - Inventories consisting primarily of food and beverages and gift store merchandise are stated at the
lower of first-in, first-out cost or market.

Accounts Receivable - Accounts receivable, consisting primarily of hotel guest receivables, is stated at fair value.
Bad debt expense for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 was $13, $12 and $2, respectively.

Deferred Expenses — Net — Included in deferred expenses at December 31, 2004 and 2003 are the following:

2004 2003
AN CIng COSES . - o o e $130 $ 986
Accumulated amMOTtIZAION . ... ..ottt e e e e o7 (917
TOtal .o $33 § 69

Deferred financing costs of the mortgage note are being amortized over the initial term of the related credit
agreement, excluding any available extension terms. In 2004, additional financing costs amounted to $130 and
write offs due to maturities of underlying agreements amounted to $986.

Minority Interest — Minority interest in joint venture represents Boykin’s direct 25% ownership in Boykin Chicago.
Income and losses are allocated to minority interest based upon the joint venture partner’s percentage ownership
throughout the period as defined in the joint venture agreement.

Hotel Revenues - Hotel revenues including room, food, beverage and other hotel revenues are recognized as the
related services are delivered. Ongoing credit evaluations are performed and an allowance for potential credit
losses is provided against the portion of accounts receivable that is estimated to be uncollectible.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments - Fair value is determined by using available market information and
appropriate valuation methodologies. Boykin Chicago’s principal financial instruments are cash, cash equivalents,
accounts receivable and the mortgage note payable. Cash, cash equivalents and accounts receivable, due to their
short maturities, are carried at amounts which reasonably approximate fair value. The mortgage note payable (see
Note 3) bears interest at variable market rates and its carrying value approximates market value at December 31,
2004.

Income Taxes - As Boykin/ AEW and Boykin Chicago are limited liability companies, no related provision has
been made in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for income taxes for these entities since these
taxes are the responsibility of the members. Upon formation on July I, 2001, the TRS became subject to federal,
state and local income taxes. The TRS accounts for income taxes in accordance with the provisions of Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes. During 2004, the TRS
recorded income as a result of forgiveness of certain obligations in anticipation of the sale of the hotel, resulting
in taxable income. The TRS has a deferred tax asset generated by net operating losses sufficient to offset the
current year income. The TRS had previously recorded a 100% valuation allowance against the deferred tax asset,
and therefore, no provision or benefit from income taxes is reflected in the accompanying consolidated statements
of operations.

New Accounting Pronouncements — In November 2002, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 45, Guarantor’s
Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of
Others, which addresses the disclosure to be made by a guarantor in its interim and annual financial statements
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about its obligations under guarantees. Interpretation No. 45 also requires the recognition of a liability by a
guarantor at the inception of certain guarantees. Interpretation No. 45 requires the guarantor to recognize a
liability for the non-contingent component of the guarantee, this is the obligation to stand ready to perform in the
event that specified triggering events or conditions occur. The initial measurement of this liability is the fair value
of the guarantee at inception. The recognition of the liability is required even if it is not probable that payments
will be required under the guarantee or if the guarantee was issued with a premium payment or as part of a
transaction with multiple elements. Boykin/ AEW has adopted the disclosure requirements of Interpretation

No. 45 and will apply the recognition and measurement provisions for all guarantees entered into or modified
after December 31, 2002. To date, Boykin/AEW has not entered into guarantees.

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,” which
addresses consolidation by business enterprises of variable interest entities. In general, a variable interest entity is
a corporation, partnership, trust, or any other legal structure used for business purposes that either (a) does not
have equity investors with voting rights or (b) has equity investors that do not provide sufficient financial
resources for the entity to support its activities. Interpretation No. 46 requires a variable interest entity to be
consolidated by a company if that company is subject to a majority of the risk of loss from the entity’s activities
or is entitled to recetve a majority of the entity’s residual returns or both. In December 2003, the FASB issued a
revised Interpretation which modified and clarifies various aspects of the original Interpretation. The consolidation
requirements of Interpretation No. 46 apply immediately to variable interest entities created after January 31,
2003 and apply to older entities in the fourth quarter of 2003. Boykin/ AEW does not have any unconsolidated
variable interest entities as of December 31, 2004.

In May 2003, the FASB issued Statement No. 150 (“SFAS 1507), “Accounting for Certain Financial
Instruments with Characteristics of Both Liabilities and Equity,” which establishes standards for how an issuer
classifics and measures certain financial instruments with characteristics of both liabilities and equity. It requires
that an issuer classify a financial instrument that is within its scope as a liability. The effective date of a portion
of the Statement has been indefinitely postponed by the FASB. Based upon the FASB’s deferral of this provision,
the adoption of SFAS 150 did not have an impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

3. Mortgage Note Payable:

In 2001, Boykin Chicago obtained a $38.,000 mortgage note from Corus Bank, N.A. (“Corus”) to refinance the
initial $30,000 note obtained for the acquisition of the hotel and to provide $8,000 of funding related to the
renovation of the hotel. Corus advanced $30,000 upon closing of the loan. An additional $6,656 was advanced
during 2002, and the remaining $1,344 was funded in 2003. The loan had an original maturity date of March
2004 and contained two one-year extension options. In February 2004, Boykin Chicago exercised the first of the
available options to extend the maturity date by one year; the loan is now scheduled to mature in March 2005.
The loan is secured by the hotel property and bears interest at a rate that fluctuates at LIBOR plus 3.25% (5.27%
at December 31, 2004). Principal payments commenced in April 2003 based upon a twenty-two year amortization
schedule from the origination of the note. Principal payments of $1,120 and $764 were made in 2004 and 2003,
respectively. The mortgage loan agreement contains certain financial reporting covenants and Boykin Chicago was
in compliance with such covenants as of December 31, 2004 and 2003.

Subject to the provisions of the loan, additional funds of $4,000 are required to be posted to support the loan. The
loan agreement allows for Boykin Chicago to defer this requirement to the members of Boykin/AEW.

4. Percentage Lease Agreements:

Effective October 1, 2003, 71 E. Wacker Leasing, Inc. subleased space 1o MRG Enterprises, L.L.C. (“MRG")
to operate a restaurant within Hotel 71. The lease had an initial term of five years with three five year options to
renew, subject to earlier termination in accordance with certain provisions. The rent due under the percentage
lease agreement is the greater of minimum rent, as defined, or percentage rent. Percentage rent applicable to
banquet, catering and all other gross sales is calculated by multiplying fixed percentages by the total amounts of
such revenues over specified threshold amounts. Percentage lease revenues to 71 E. Wacker Leasing, Inc. were
$216 and $159 for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, of which none was in excess of




minimum rent. The lease agreement also requires reimbursements by MRG of certain expenses incurred by both
71 E. Wacker Leasing, Inc. and Boykin Chicago. Reimbursements for expenses received by Boykin Chicago and
the hotel for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 were $119 and $26, respectively. Percentage lease
revenues and reimbursements for expenses were included in other income.

MRG was obligated under the lease to complete a build-out of the restaurant space. In September 20004, MRG
filed for bankruptcy protection. Several of the contractors and the architect for the improvement of MRG’s leased
premises were not paid in full by MRG prior to its filing for bankruptcy; therefore, mechanics liens were filed
against the property. The total of the mechanics liens outstanding as of December 31, 2004 approximated $1,800.
As a result, if the liens prove valid, are properly perfected, and are not corrected through MRG’s bankruptcy
proceedings, the ultimate responsibility for the outstanding liens may be that of 71 E. Wacker Leasing, Inc. If

71 E. Wacker Leasing, Inc. were required to satisfy the liens, it is anticipated that ownership of the related assets
would transfer to the hotel.

In May 2003, 71 E. Wacker Leasing, Inc. subleased space to Ampco System Parking to operate a parking garage.
The lease has a term of five years. The rent due under the percentage lease agreement is base rent plus
percentage rent. Percentage rent applicable to gross parking receipts, as defined, is calculated by multiplying fixed
percentages by the total amounts of such revenues over specified threshold amounts. Percentage lease revenues to
71 E. Wacker Leasing, Inc. was $141 and $73 for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, of
which none was in excess of minimum rent.

Percentage lease revenues are reflected within other hotel revenues in the financial statements.

5. Related Party Transactions:

BMC is owned 53.8% by the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Boykin. Pursuant to the management
agreement entered into effective July 1, 2001, Boykin Chicago paid BMC management fees of $483, $446 and
$75 during 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Pursuant to the operating agreements of Boykin/ AEW and Boykin Chicago, asset management fees of $196, $191
and $172 were paid to Boykin for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, for its role as
the operating member. These fees are calculated based upon factors applied to aggregate contributions made by
the members, as defined in the agreements.

There were outstanding payables to Boykin of $16 at both December 31, 2004 and 2003, primarily related to asset
management fees. At December 31, 2004 and 2003, 71 E. Wacker Leasing, Inc. had outstanding payables to
BMC of $5 and $58, respectively primarily related to management fees and reimbursements of expenses on behalf
of the hotel.

6. Statements of Cash Flows, Supplemental Disclosures:

Interest paid during the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 was $1,902, $1,737 and $1,636
respectively.
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minimum rent. The lease agreement also requires reimbursements by MRG of certain expenses incurred by both
71 E. Wacker Leasing, Inc. and Boykin Chicago. Reimbursements for expenses received by Boykin Chicago and
the hotel for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 were $119 and $26, respectively. Percentage lease
revenues and reimbursements for expenses were included in other income.

MRG was obligated under the lease to complete a build-out of the restaurant space. In September 20004, MRG
filed for bankruptcy protection. Several of the contractors and the architect for the improvement of MRG’s leased
premises were not paid in full by MRG prior to its filing for bankruptcy; therefore, mechanics liens were filed
against the property. The total of the mechanics liens outstanding as of December 31, 2004 approximated $1,800,
As a result, if the liens prove valid, are properly perfected, and are not corrected through MRG’s bankruptcy
proceedings, the ultimate responsibility for the outstanding liens may be that of 71 E. Wacker Leasing, Inc. If

71 E. Wacker Leasing, Inc. were required to satisfy the liens, it is anticipated that ownership of the related assets
would transfer to the hotel.

In May 2003, 71 E. Wacker Leasing, Inc. subleased space to Ampco System Parking to operate a parking garage.
The lease has a term of five years. The rent due under the percentage lease agreement is base rent plus
percentage rent. Percentage rent applicable to gross parking receipts, as defined, is calculated by multiplying fixed
percentages by the total amounts of such revenues over specified threshold amounts. Percentage lease revenues to
71 E. Wacker Leasing, Inc. was $141 and $73 for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, of
which none was in excess of minimum rent.

Percentage lease revenues are reflected within other hotel revenues in the financial statements.

5. Related Party Transactions:

BMUC is owned 53.8% by the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Boykin. Pursuant to the management
agreement entered into effective July 1, 2001, Boykin Chicago paid BMC management fees of $483, $446 and
$75 during 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Pursuant to the operating agreements of Boykin/ AEW and Boykin Chicago, asset management fees of $196, $191
and $172 were paid to Boykin for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, for its role as
the operating member. These fees are calculated based upon factors applied to aggregate contributions made by
the members, as defined in the agreements.

There were outstanding payables to Boykin of $16 at both December 31, 2004 and 2003, primarily related to asset
management fees. At December 31, 2004 and 2003, 71 E. Wacker Leasing, Inc. had outstanding payables to
BMC of $5 and $58, respectively primarily related to management fees and reimbursements of expenses on behalf
of the hotel.

6. Statements of Cash Flows, Supplemental Disclosures:

Interest paid during the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 was $1,902, $1,737 and $1,636
respectively.
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BOYKIN/AEW, LLC

SCHEDULE III - REAL ESTATE AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2004

{IN THOUSANDS)

Casts Capitalized Gross Amounts -
Subsequent to st Which Carried Accomulated § Life on Which
Initial Cost Acquisition at Close of Perind Depreciution Net Back Depreciation In
Buildings and  Value Land and Sratement of
Buildings und Building and Buliding and Tota) Improvemenis  Buildingy and Date of Date of Dperations
Deseription Land Lapd Land (b) (e @y Tmprovements Construction  Acquisition is Computed
Hotel 71, Chicago, Illinois (a) $9.100 540,392 § —  $17995  $9.00  $58.387  $67,487 887719 358,708 1958 1999 30 vears
(a) This hotel is collateral for the $38,000 mortgage note payable.
(b) Aggregate cost for federal income tax reporting purposes at December 31, 2004 is as follows:
Land $ 9,100
Buildings and improvements 58,198
367,298
(¢) Reconciliation of Gross Amounts of Land, Buildings and Improvements
Balance as of December 31, 2003 366,913
Disposals —
Improvements and other additions 574
Balance as of December 31, 2004 $67,487
(d} Reconciliation of Accumulated Depreciation of Buildings and Improvements

Balance at December 31, 2003 $ 6,723
Disposals —
Depreciation expense 2,056

Balance at December 31, 2004 3 3,779




SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

March 15, 2005 BOYKIN LODGING COMPANY

By: /s/ Robert W. Boykin

Robert W. Boykin
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

March 15, 2005 /s/  Robert W. Boykin

Robert W. Boykin
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

March 15, 2005 /s/ Shereen P. Jones

Shereen P. Jones

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial
and Investment Officer

(Principal Accounting Officer)

March 15, 2005 /s/  Ivan J. Winfield

Ivan J. Winfield
Director

March 15, 2005 /s/ Lee C. Howley, Jr.

Lee C. Howley, Jr.
Director

March 15, 2005 /s/  William H. Schecter

William H. Schecter
Director

March 15, 2005 /s/ Albert T. Adams

Albert T. Adams
Director

March 15, 2005 /s/ James B. Meathe

James B. Meathe
Director

March 15, 2005 /s/ Mark J. Nasca

Mark J. Nasca
Director
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Third Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Boykin Hotel Properties, L.P.

L.P. dated as of February 1, 1999
1999

Key Employee Severance Plan*

Hotel Purchase and Sale Agreement; Hotel 71 Chicago, [llinois, By and Between Boykin Chicago L.L.C.. as Seller and the Falor
Companies, Inc., as Purchaser

Modification Letter — Stock Purchase Option Agreement by and among Boykin Lodging Company, Boykin Hotel Properties, L.P.
and AEW Partners IIl, L.P. dated as of February I, 1999

Modification of Employment Agreement between the Company and Robert W. Boykin*

Statement re Computation of Ratios

Subsidiaries of the Registrant

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Certification Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a), in Accordance with Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a), in Accordance with Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification Pursuant to 18 U.5.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Incorporated by reference from Boykin's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1999,

Incorporated by reference from Amendment No. 3 to Boykin's Registration Statement on Form S-11 (Registration No. 333-6341)
(the “Form S-11") filed on October 24, 1996. Each of the above exhibits has the same exhibit number in the Form S-11.

Incorporated by reference from Boykin's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1998.
Incorporated by reference from Boykin’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 1999,
Incorporated by reference from Bovkin's Form {0-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 1999.
Incorporated by reference from Boykin’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999.
Tncorporated by reference from Boykin’s Form 8-K filed on January 14, 2002.

Incorporated by reference from Boykin’s Form 8-K filed an April 20, 2004,

Incorporated by reference from Boykin's Form 8-K filed on October 4, 2002.

Incorporated by reference from Boykin’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002,

Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.



CEO AND CFO CERTIFICATIONS

Boykin Lodging Company has included as Exhibit 31 to its Annual Report on Form 10-K for fiscal year 2004
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, the certifications of Boykin’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer required by section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. Boykin Lodging Company’s

Chief Executive Officer also submitted to the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) in 2004, the annual certification that
he is not aware of any violations by Boykin Lodging Company of the NYSE corporate governance listing standards.




Corporate Information

Corporate Office
Boykin Lodging Company
45 W. Prospect Avenue, Suite 1500
Cleveland, Ohio 44115
Phone: 216-430-1200
Fax: 216-430-1201

Form 10-K
Copies of any financial report or other
Annual Sharehoiders” Meeting information filed by Boykin Lodging
May 24, 2005, at 2:00 p.m. Company with the SEC, including the
Embassy Suites Southficld 2004 Form 10-K, may be obtained without
Southfield, Michigan charge through our website or by writing

or calling our corporate office listed at left.
L Just ask for investor relations,
Share Listing

New Yi Excha Symbols: . . .
New York .chk xehange Symbols Visit Qur World Wide Website
Common: BOY
Preferred Depositary: BOY PrA Look for Boykin Lodging Company
on the World Wide Web at
www.boykinlodging.com.
Independent Accountant
Grant Thornton LLP
Cleveland, Ohio

Legal Counsel

Baker & Hostetler LLP
Cleveland, Ohio

Transfer Agent and Registrar

Natianal City Bank
Cleveland, Ohio

Forward Looking Statements

This annual report contains statements that constitute “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of federal securities law, including
statements concerning our intent, belief or current expectations or those of our directors or officers with respect to our cutlook for 2005
and beyond; leasing, management or performance of the hotels; plans for expansion, conversion or renovation of the hotels; adequacy
of reserves for renovation and refurbishment; financing plans; continued qualification as a REIT under applicable tax laws; policies
regarding investments, acquisitions, dispositions, financings, conflicts of interest and other matters; national and international economic,
political or market conditions; and trends affecting our or any hotel’s financial condition or results of operations.

You are cautioned that any such forward-looking statement is not a guarantee of fuure performance and involves risk and uncertainties,
and that actual results may differ materially from those in the forward-looking statement as a result of various factors. These factors

that could cause actual results to differ materially from our expectations include, among other factors, financial performance, real estate
conditions, execution of hotel acquisition or disposition programs, change in local or national cconomic conditions and their impact on
the occupancy of our hotels, war, terrorism, hurricanes, changes in interest rates, changes in the Jocal or national supply and construction
of new hotels, changes in profitability and margin and the financial condition of our operators and lessee, and other similar variables.
The information contained in this annual report and in our periodic filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission also identify
important factors that could cause such differences.



Hotel Properties

Doubletree Hotel & Executive Meeting Center
Berkeley Marina
Berkeley, California
369 Rooms
510-548-7920

Buffalo, New York
356 Rooms
716-689-6900

Doubletree Boise Riverside

L Boise, ldaho
10 ,
Doubletree Sacrz‘i“ﬂger:ia 304 Rooms
saaamegtg‘ E:‘S 208-343-1871
448 Ro

916-929-8855

French Lick Springs Resort & Spa
French Lick, Indiana it
485 Rooms Holiday Inn Crabtree
812-936-9300 Raleigh, North Carolina
176 Rooms
918-782-8600

Embassy Suites
Southield, ppieh

Doubletree Colorado Springs ic - ' . — Marriot N
Colorado Springs, Colorado 00ms 'gan clevelcaigeeﬁ?do%hio

299 Rooms 248-350-2000 375 Rooms
719-576-8900 216-252-5333

e m Fort Myers Doubletree Kansas Ci?y
Bestszc,tzteway Hotel Kansas City, Missouri
1slan Wvers, Florida 388 Rooms
Ft. 15Y7 Rb0ms 816-474-6664

Doubletree Omaha Downtown
Omaha, Nebraska
414 Rooms
402-346-7600 476 Rooms
503-281.51”

Melbourne Quality Suites

Melbourne, Florida W Jersey Doubletree 5an Antonio
208 Rooms 201 Fooms San Antonio, Texas
407-723-4222 — _ -896-666¢

290 Rooms
210-366-2424

P
Pink Shell Beach Resort & Spa arion Hote/ g Conference Centar

Ft. Myers Beach, Florida Yakima, Washington
192 Rooms 208 Rooms
239-463-6181 509-248-7850
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